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Latrobe Valley Hisborical Societies.

. Barly Activities for 1971L.

None of the three most active Latrobe Valley Historical Societies has
yet had its Annual uaet:z.ng or its first gezmral meeting for 1971, so the
* full yeart!s programme. has nm: yet been arranged. Below, we give details of
the February-liarch prﬂgramme - ‘

Sunday, 28/2/73, gxcurs:.:m %o Plat:ma, n&ax Walhalla, o

Traralgon Hn.stor:wal Society has arranged for this excwamn to
Platina, which used to be a railway station on the narrow gauge railway line,
Moe to Walhalla., It was so called because the mineral platinum was found
there, ‘ . _

Those who heard last year the excellent talk given by young Ralph
Durr of Traralgon on the Walhalla Railway Line, will remember that there was
a serious accident at Platina, when the little train left the line at a
sharp curve, and plunged down a steep embankment.

Traralgon members are asked to meet at the Traralgon Post O0ffice at
12,30 p.m. in their cars, and to go from there to the lioe Historical Society
Club Room in Kirk Street, lioe. The whole party will then leave =~ at 1,00 penns =
for Platina, led by lir. A. Summerton, who has agreed to ac‘t as our guide for
the day. Remember to bring your own afternoon tea.

This should be a very pleasant oubting, an excellent start for the
1971 year.

Tuesday, 23rd. H@mch, 1971.

Amual HMeeting of the lMorwell Historical Society, in the Library
of the Morwell High School, commencing at 8,00 pele

Sunday, 28th. lNarch, 1971, Excursion to Glengarry,

Cars will leave from the Traralgon Post Office for Glengarry,
at 1,30 peme Our guide for the day will be lirs, Jean Court, President of
the Traralgon Historical Society, who has just completed the history of
Glengarry and its district. The township of Glengarry is not as old as the
district, which was previously known as Baglehawk, and before that, as
Toongabbie South., The townghip came into ey*lstance when the Traxalgcmﬁaimw
loop railway~line was built in 1883,

The ares was low~lying and swampy, un‘bil better érainage converted

R it into the present lush pasture land.

Iuesday, 30th, March, 1971, Annual Meeting, Traralgon Historical Society,

The Annual lMeeting of the Traralgon Historical Society will be
held at the Civic Recepition Rooms, City Council Buildings, Traralgon, ‘starting
at 8,00 p.m, The guest speaker will be Mrs, Jean Court, who will 'bell us all -
about Glengarry and District.

[IRE A R ——
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s vseen oo Norwelld Historical Seciety..

L Ln.fe Hembers.
Miss G. Auchterlonie,- Narrd,can, 3824 Lrs. Ja« C. Liptrot, Laglemont, 3084

lir, R.N.Auchterlonie, Warracan, 3824 lire I.T.Maddern, liorwell, 3840
lirs. R. Bates, Crows Nest,N.S.!.,2065 lrs. E.lieadows, Yinnar, 3869
Dr. H.C.Disher, Strathfieldsaye, 3551 Mr. GeJesBenson, Horwell,3840
lir, R.S.udmondson, Horwell, 3840 - Hr, T.M,Ramsay, Richmond, 3121
lirs. O. Foster, Boisdale, 3860 Mr. A. Ringin, lioe, 3825

liost Rev. A.F, Fox, Sale, 3850 Iirs A. Ronald, lorwell, 3840
Ir, J¢ Gilbert, Yimnar South, 3869 Cr. M. Walker, Yinnar Sth,3869
lre E.G.Gregory,Alberton West,3968 Yarram Historical Society

lire G. Grout, Traralgon, 3844 Cr. Alan Hall, Budgeree,3840
lirs L+ Holyoak; WVarrandyte, 3113 = - o :

B A s TP AN

lembers -~ 1970,

It is much too early in the year to publish a list of financial
members for 1971. Instead, we give below the aomplcte list for 1970, as an
indication of the support the Society receives, and perhaps also as a
reminder that the 1971 subscriptions are now due. An asterisk beside a name
indicates that the 1971 subscription has already been paid.

liong. J. Allman, Sale Horwell Park S.S.,Morwell

Mr. As Bryson, Tennyson, 3572 lire Velis Haddern, Murtoa, 3390
Mrse. B. Cain, liorwell ) 3 lirs. Aes MHorrow, Cranbourne.
lre KeGe Crellin . .. ¥lirs. A.G, NcKee,Altona, 3018
lrs., F,3. Derham, Horwell Nepean Historical Society

Miss K. Green, llorwell lirs, Se Nicholls, lliddle Brighton
lire AJL. Hare, lorwell , Iiss B.A.Cs Payne, Hawthorn
lrs., H.G. Heywood, Oakleigh B "~ lr. R.V. Stephens, Boronis
Hamilton Historical Society Irs. H. Suares, liorwell

Kerang Historical Society - lrs. L. Sutherland, Wonthaggi
lrs. I.li. Lee,Valencia Creek,3860 ‘Sale High School o
Ire A. Ludeke, Horwell ‘ Mr. G, Taylor, Morwell

lirss J. Lubeke, lorwell N ‘lirs, G. Taylor, lorwell
*Commercial Rd. S.S8.,lMorwell . ¥llrs, S. Walker, lorwell

lirse A, Wiens, llorwell
- lirs, L. Wiens, Moxwell - . S e

Distr&butmn of" *ahe Iowell Ha.stor% 3 Socmtx News.

Until this year we have been pretty free with our dlstrz.bution of
the Morwell Historical Society News. Unfortunately, the steep rise in postage
has forced us to put striet limits on: fubure distributions. Of course,
members must receive their copies, and libraries wmust. remain on the free
1i$to

One difficulty is the large number of people belonging to sister
societies (e.ge. Traralgon Historical bocmety), who have been receiving
copies without meking any con‘cmbatz.on to our costs. This is in no way a.
reproach, since, in the good old cheap days, .we volunteered to give this
service. Perhaps one way out of this difficulty is for us to hand over
copies in bulk to the Treasurer of Traralgon Society for him and his Society
to distribute. (There is a cheaper rate for local distribution).

And what: aboui; %;he Jarge number of- h:.s‘i:orical societies affil:t.atad
with the Royal, Hlstorical Society, of V:.ctacma, and to; whom we have been :
sending our covies. Perhaps,- many of these societies are not really interested
in the local history of Horwell and Gz.ppsland generally, &:ﬁd could Well do |
without .our "Hews"., For those. few who really want copies, we think we could
manage to obllge them, on the old, free bagis. If SO, 1{»:«1: us know, and we
will keep you on the list. :

However, for this first issue under the new candﬁ;:.ons, we wﬂ.l
let you all have your copy as usual, partly because we want you to know
what is happening and what we are doing, and partly because, with this f irst
issue for 1971, we-inbend to do bur usbal annual good turn, perhaps for the = .
last time, of publishing the list and addresses of all. the Victorian Historical
Societieg. This may not. be entirvely comprehensiwe or absolutely accurate, -
but it must be of some use, and may help the Royal Soc:.ety pe:rhaps to yrcduce
something better.
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Lhe History of the International Language, Bsperanto.
Chapter 1 +sesesssslhe “vngau‘béap of Languages,

~In the history o:f‘ the 3_341&,%@% of the world, we find two major
divisions of development - firstly, the evolution of many languages
from one (or a few), and secondly, the evolution or rather the dominance of
one language (or a few) over the many.

The story of the Tower of Babel m the Bible may not be literally
true, but it does give to us in picturesque language and in a simple story,
an idea of the fundamental truth that one original, common language broke up
~into meny separate &mlectm@w{: of simplicity and wniformity, grew complexity

: : ;and diversity.

Let us consider first this spread of language diversity. FPhilologists
tell us that the modern languages of English, German, Dubch, and quite a few
others, grew from the one language, 0ld German, Similarly, French, Spanish,
Italian and Portuguese developed from Latin. Cornish, Breton, Welsh, Irish,
and Gaelic all had the one parent language, 01d Celtic.

But before these parent languages of German, Latin and Celtio, there
was yet an earlier language, Indo-Ruropean from which all three major divisions
sprang. It does seem that the Tower of Babel story could be right in its basic
premise that "the Lord said, Behold, the people is one and they have all one
language",

How and why did such changes occur? The main cause, and perhaps the
only cause, was the barriers of geography, which isolated men in separate,
little tribal groups. Great mountains, wide seas, distance itself kept one
trive apart from another, and what was once the same language, became many
different tribal languages, or dialects or national tongues. At first the
changes would be small and insignificant, but as the centuries and generations
of men passed, the differences multiplied and varied so much that one langxmge
was. dlfferent from another and could not even be easil,,r recognized ag
. springing from the same source. This isolation was made more complete, and
the great changes were made more inevitable by the inability of primitive man
to read and write a phonetic script., The spoken word was never r@cimied or
"fmed" by writing.

The language and the eha:ages made in one place and by one tribe,
_were never heard or read in another place and by another tribe, That is how, -
 an original common language broke up into the thousands of languages ami

d.'x.alec*hs we still have, though there are less today than 200 years ago,
- . We are inglishwspeaking peoples Alfred the Great was an English
Llng and spoke the 01d English ef 1000 years ago. But if Alfred could suddenly
 appear in our midst now, we would not undam‘band his English, and hew ould
not understand ours.

But the second process in language evolution has already begun - -
the process of unification, the move towards fewer languages, easier,: more .
direct communication, and the common understanding and brotherhood of ‘man,

The tremendous technical advances made by mankind during the last few -
centuries have destroyed the old, separating geographical barriers, and this =
has ’brought back to the mind of man the idea of a world language, not :
necessarily to .replace our family languages, but as a second language common -

to all families whereby we could communicate readily with one another.

] - The modern story on the subject of languages really begins with
‘hha,t rmovement known to historians as the Renaissance, or the recapture of

the laarm.ng and the knowledge of the ancient world of Greek and Roman times.

The Renaissance began sometime, within a century or two,about
1200 A.D. Changes began then, and very slowly, but are still continuing with
a vastly increased tempo, and have influenced the lives of all men, and their
languages. To the learning of the ancient civiliztions has been added . -
new knowledge, discovered by energetic and intelligent minds. The Renaissance
is still an existing force pushing the minds of men into hitherto unknowm
regions of thought. The Renaissance and its technical advances,by breaking
down woild barriers,have made an intermational language a mcessityg they
have also given man the power of mind to make an international language not
Just a possibility, but a certainty. :

Llready, from the seventeenth to the nineteenth cenburiss, barriers

_-between some countries have been broken down and union of countries and unity

of language have been achieved. Scotland, Ireland and Wales have been joined
to ungland to form the United Kingdom, Although, in the most isolated parts
of Scotland and Vales,a little of the old Gaelic language renains, it is clear
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The History of the International Languags, iisperanto.

that English has swept away the languages of the smaller partners. The last
person to spealc Cornish as his native tongue, died in 177C.

Bven in ingland itself, the diverse dialects are disappearing
rapidly before the pressure of standard inglish in radio, television, education
and general commnication,

in Augtralia, and the United States, the arrival of English~speaking
Buropeans, resulted largely in the disappearance of the native peoples and
their languvages with them. diveryvhere, the bigger tribes are swallowing up
the smaller tribes; the bzﬁger nations are absorbing smaller nations; and one
language takes the place of many. Perliaps evolubion in this way has deslayed
the acceptance of one common,second language, since the strong, weli-populated
and big countries tend to think that an international language is unnecessary,
or else they desire, because of their national pride, that all the world should
adopt their language.

Once upon a tzme, in the history of Zurope, there did exist a common
language, the language of Latin. Uhen Rome was master of the whole western world,
the language of the Romans was the language of that world, and Latin remained
long after the Roman Empire died.

“In the universities of the early Renaissance period, Latin was the
language of both teachers and students. All the books were in Latin, and a
student could go to any university in any country in Burope, knowing that the
one language would be used there. At first glance, it night seem that here, in
Latin, we have the answer to the problem of an international language. lot so.
For scholars, men of great intelligence, and spending all their time in study,
Latin served well enough, but it is too difficult and takes too long for the
ordinary, busy individual to learn. It should be noted that the creator of
Esperanto, Drs L. L. Zamenhof, first of all had the idea of re~establishing
Latin as the intermational language ~ wntil he realized how difficult it was for
the ordinary man, how impossible it was for the ordinary man t6 learn it. And so,
he set to work to create a bebter 1anguage, uuﬂéf&ﬂtb, well~described by a French
scholar as "the Latin of democracy". =

. Although the Roman Empire coll apsad before the attack of virile,

barbarian tribes, in the fifth century A.D., Latin was still used by scholars and
diplomats, right up to the emghteenﬁh century, nearly 1400 years later, "hen
Cromwell's government exzecuted King Charles 1 in 1649, and came under verbal fire
(in Latin) from the Catholic countries of Lurope, liilton defended the movernmen’c -
also in Latin. o

- JThen George 1, a German Prince, became King of ingland in 1714, he and
his Prime linister, Walpole, could converse only in Latin, since George 1 could
not speak inglish, and Walpole could not speak German.

For centuries after the beginning of the Renaissance, there were no
translations from Latin into any national language, and there was no national
literature. It was thought that the languages of the people - inglish, French,
German, and so on, were too vulgar, too limited in expression, too lacking in
culture to use in either original work or in translations. It seems incredible
to us and laughably absurd, that the language experts of those days should
consider such a rich and lively language as linglish, as unworthy of anything but
mundane use. Today, we see the same kind of conservative prejudice, ignorance
and stupidity, when scholars and educationists pretend that English is the perfect
language, and that Zsperanto is limited and lacking culture. The reverse is true.
Gsperanto is a betlter, nobler and ‘clearer language than English. The world of
the future will ridicule the irrational language poseurs of today, just as we
suile at the follies of the Latin protagonists of yesterday.

Suddenly, the idea of one common, second language for all struck the
minds of many men about the same time. The hour had come for one more gigantic
step forward by mankind. Unhappily, the energies and enthusiasm of mankind
directed to such a noble project, were dissipated somewhat in a multiplicity
of hasty, unsatisfactory, poor attempts to create an international language,
the last and perhaps besteknown attempt bein; that of Basic inglish.

Barly attempts included a picture language - but how can we converse
over a telephone, for example, using pictures, and in any case, how clumsy and
limited such a language would be. Someone suggested a sign language, a language
which could neither be spoken nor written.

As Dr, Bernard Cavanagh, President of the British Agperanto.ﬂsaociatmna@“”
says, only one international language has ever got beyond the planning stage, fu
has been tested and proved successful, has been used widely for many years, and
is being more and more widely used from year to year, — and that langusge is
dsperanto.
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The H;sfqu of the International Leanguage. Esperanto.
Chapter 2..... The Search for an International Language.

A Russian linguist and historian has calculated that,during the last
300 years, there have been at least 300 atteupts to devise a suitable
international language. ' R

Cne of the earliest protagonists for a common language was the French
philosopher, Descartes, who obviously gave the subject much deep thought,
and propounded the basic principles which must underlie such a language.
Here is his brilliant conception on language structure for an international

t 8 . - o . .
ongu "Such a language must have only one form of conjugation or declension,

and a regular method of word-construction. It must be complete, and it must have
no irregularities or exceptions. Changes to indicate verb tenses, and the
building of vocabulary must be by means of affixes added either to the beginning
or the end of root words. Such a language couid be used by the average man with
very little study". ' ' ‘

It was 250 years later that Zamenhof produced his language, using some
of the fundamental principles of language structure so well enmunciated by
Descartes, but without knowing that Descartes had laid down such rules.

In 1663, Voss, a Dutch philologist advocated a sign languvage similar
to that used by the deaf and dumb., It is true that a sign language can be
used, and always will be used, in certain elementary situations. For example,
a person travelling by car in a foreign country can easily indicate by signs
or pantomime, if he wants petrol for the tank or air for the tyres, But this
can hardly be dignified with the name of "language'.

_About the same time as Voss, an Snglishman, John Wilkins, Bishop of
. —Chester,published a book entitled,"A Philosophical Language". It is said that
only two persons ever read the book ~ Limself, and a friend. It was based on
the work of Dalgarno, but had no particular virtue.

In 1653, Sir Thomas Cromarty published his "Introduction to a Universal
Language", but secmed to think that the greatness of a language depended on
its difficulties and ccuplexities. Incidentally, this seems to be the line of
thought of many university auvthorities. One of their chief arguments against
Esperanto is that it is too easy to learn. This is the reverse of Descartes’

idea . . L - , y e
*  In Odessa, Professor Scherzl tried combining natural sounds (like the

cyying of a child) with a sign language -~ surely too clumsy and limited a
procedure t¢ be taken seriously by anyone. :

In 1860, a German theologist and historian, Tritemius, became interested
in a common language for all mankind, and put his ideas into print, but he was
accused of dabbling in the works of the devil (for had not God,himself, brought
about the confusion of laﬂguagea), and his books were publicly burnt.

A Berlin avchitect, Herr Tiemar, invented a number language. Words in
various languagss having the same meaning, would be given the same number,
and speech would be in a succession of numbers, so that "12 - 80 ~ 17",for
example, might mean "I love you'. It is a better idea than many others, but
it takes no cognizance of the differing grammatical constructions in languages,
and demands a tremendous effort of memory to remember all the words and their
.appropriate numbers. It is not very satisfying cither, emotionally.

Later, Sudre, a music teacher, noticed that music -~ or music forms -
constituted a kind of international language in music. He thought this idea
might be extended to general conversation, but we are left wondering how.

Then, a whole crop of language projects arose, all of the inventors
baging their internmational languege cn a simplified form of their own national
languages ~ on¢ Italian, *hree Spanish, oune Scandinavian, one Slav, one German
(calied "Veltdeutsch" or World German), and finally, much later, Basic English,
which was bought by the British Government, but failed to gain any adherents.
The threefold. defects of all such attempts were the national nature of the
languages (and therefore unacceptable to every other nation), the gifficulties

- that still remained in them, and their wretched limitations in expression.
A.P. Herbert laughed Basic English out of existence when he explained that
the famous Churchillisn expression of "Blood, sweat and tears", could be
translated in Basic English only by "Blood, body-water and eye-wash".

Then came Volapuk (World Speech) launched in 1830 by its author,
Father llartin Schleyer, a Roman Catholic priest in Germany, a briliiant man
and a distinguished linguist. His language was a compiete one and truly
international - but it was very difficult, At first it took Hurope by storm,
but it failed, as interest rapidly declined when people found they could not
Yearn it, Then, in 1807, dsperanto took its place.
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The History of the International Language, Esperanto,
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The three fundamental principles upon which the laaguage is
based are:
1. Spelling and pronunciation are phonetic;
2. The grammar is simple and regular;
Ze¢ There is a regular and logical system of word canaﬁructxon.

Ihe Phonetic Neture of Esperanto.

- In Bsperanto every symbol, or letter of the alphabet has only the
one sound, and each particular sound can be rapresented by only one symbol or
letter, Some of the letters in the inglish alphabet, for example, merely .
repeat or dupllbate the sounds represented by other letters. Such unnecessary
duplication is avoided in Esperanto.

' The letter "x" in Bnglish is always pronounced “ks“* the letter "c"
is alweys pronounced "s", or "k"; and the letter "g" is only used with "u" to
give the "ky" sound. It wvuld be more logical and more regular if we spelt
the following words, exactly as we pronounce thems

!fbofﬂ as "bﬂkﬁ“ - nmc&n as f!maet! ° Nc&keﬂ as "kﬂke";

. "quinece" as "kwins".

Hence, the letters "x", "e", and "g" have been dropped from the

Baperanto alphabet, althcugh et has been rewin%roduced to represent another .
sound.

Conversely, there are some letters in English grossly overworked,
%avwng t:cg three, four, and sometimes five different sounds. A simple example
o the letter "g" which has one sound in a word like "gate", and an entirely
dwxferent sound as in "age". In Esperanto, the letter "g" always has the hard
scund as in "gate". To represent the soft sound, as in "age!", Esperanto uses
an accent over the "g", as in the word "ago" meaning "age".

There are no new symbols or letters in Esperanto, but merely accents
sver existing symbols to represent a different sound. The "sh" sound, as in
"ship" is ropresented by "s" as in "sipo", and the "ch" sound as in "church" is
represent.? by "G" as in "Gielo" (sky).

#hen you learn the sounds of the 31 symbols in Esperanto, which takes
about five minutes, you can spell any pronounced word, and pronounce any spelt
word, with the absolute certainty of being correct.

-

Graumar,

Unnecessary grammatical rules (and there are many such in every
national language) have been eliminated, and what few remain are completely
regular, without any exception. The foolish, unnecessary grammatical gender in
7anguages such as French and German, do not exist in Bsyperanto (or in English,
fer that matter). This one saving reduces the time-cost or work-cost of learning
the language, by hundreds of hours.

Just as Important is the Esperanto simpliecity in verb forms. The simple
tenses in Esperanto, for each one of the hundreds of verbs, can b learned in
two minutes. The infinitive verb ends in "i", the present tense in "as", the
pagt tense in "is%, and the future tense in "os". For example, we have:-

lerni = to learn; lernas = learn, learms; lernis = learned; lernos = will learn.

Gther grammatical wmatters are treated in a similar CONMON=Sense Way.
That is the story of the beautiful simplicity of Esperanto grammar.

Vocahulary.

- If a student wishes to be as proficient in a second language as in
his own, native language, and if he knows 5,000 words in his own language, he must
learn the equivalent of those 5,000 words in that second language - a tremendous
effort of memory. This learning of vocabulary in Esperanto also requires time and
effort, but a clever system of word building greatly reduces the difficulty.
A1l verbs (the infinitive) end 1n "its pouns in "o"; adjectives in "a",
and adverbs in "e". Hence from the root word "rapid" , we can form four words:-

rapidi = to hurry up; rapido = speed; rapida = fast; rapide = rapidly.

The affix "mal" gives the opposite meaning; the suffix "in" gives the
femivine of {the species. Hence, we get double value from learning certain words:

beln = teauwtiful; malbela = ugly: knabo = boy; knabino = girl.

Other affizes enable the learner to double, treble, and even quadruple
2z bagle vocabulary, without further effort,
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The History of the International Language, Esperanto,
Chapber 4. e... Dre L. L. Zamephof, 1859~1917.

Iudovie Lazarus Zamenhof, creator of the international language,
hsperanto,was born, 15th. December, 1859, at Bialystok, in Russian Poland,
the eldest child of liarcus and Rosalie Zamenhof (nee Sofer). The Zamenhofs
were a Jewish family, and all their lives suffered from the petty, permanent
persecutions,and the sporadic severer persecutions,the Jewish race has
suffered for centuries. All three of Ludovic Zamenhof's children were to
suffer execution at the hands of German Nazis, for no other crimes %than
those of being Jews and Bsperantists.

Marcus Zamenhof was a teacher of languages. He knew seven different
languages, but his son surpassed this, and became proficient in twelve.

In 1873, when Ludovic was 13 years old, the family moved to Warsaw,
but it was while he was still at Bialystock that the child, Ludovic, had
begun to create his international language. In Bialystok, there were fouxr
separate national and religlous groups - Russians, Poles; Germans and Jews,
and constant friction and distrust between all four. It was Ludovic's idea
that the language barrier caused much of the suspicions and hatreds, and
that if only the various groups could communicate easily and freely with one
another, then Bialystock might be a more peaceful and happier place.

His mother gave him a birthday party in “arsaw in December,l1873,
but the party was also a celebration by him and a few school frlends of the
launching of his early international language.

In 1879, he completed his secondary schooling and entered Hoscow
University to study medicine, the only profession open to Jews, His father,
anxious for him to succeed in his studies, commanded him to abandon his
international language work - and, in fact, burnt all his new-language note-
_books. In the long run, this was not the great disaster that it seemed,
since it forced a longer time on young Zamenhof, and brought a greater
maturity and experlence to bear on the construction of a finished and perfect
product, the language isperanto.

Pamily and financial considerations forced him to return to Warsaw in
1881, and to complete his university course there. He graduated in medicine
in 1885,

He practised as a doctor in two or three small country centres until
he decided to specialize in eye-work, and settled down in Warsaw, for the
rest of his life. :

In 1887, he had married Clara Allbernmch, and it was Clara and her
father, Alexander Zilbernick, who helped him establish BEsperanto. "Your Ludovic
is a genius; my daughter, you have a sacred task before you", said Clara's
father to her.  ind Alexander Zilbernick provided,out of his scanty ecapital,
the nmoney for Zamenhof to publish a book on hiz world language, under the

- pen-name of Doktoro Esperanto (or Dr. Hopeful).

The book was a-guccess and quickly gained for Zamenhof the support of
leading philologists in many countries, The nuuber of practising Esperantists
grew, remarkably rapidly. The first International Bsperanto Congress was held
at Boulogne, France, in 1905, and Zamenbof was awarded the Legion of Honour,
by the french Government, the first of several decorations from various
countries, )

But the nations of Europe went to war in 1914, and the idea of
international brotherhood was submerged beneath the hatred of nations at war.
Zamephof died in Varsaw, 14th. April, 1917.

Genealog¥e 1 cug Zamerhof  merried, 1858, Rosalie Sofer

. - 1837-1907 ! 1839-1892.

N 1

; S ; ' |
Sara, 1860-1870 . 1. Ludovic Lazarus Zamenhof, 1859-1917
Fania, b.1862 m, 1887, Clara Zilbernick,1864-1924.
Augusta, 1864 !
g 1o 2. Sophie, 1689-1942 (executed by Nazis)
Leon,’ 1275 _ 3« Lydia, 1904-1942 (executed by Nazis)
Alexander,1877-1916 -l. Adam,  1888-1940 (executed by Nazis)

Ida, 1879 m. Jenda xrﬁﬁkel (died 1954)

MudGVIC Zamephof, b. 1925
1

1
Two daughters.
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:Chanter 5. E sper nta, 1887~1971, Booms and Depressions.

Let us flrst cast an overall glance on the story of Esperanto
from its’ inauguration in 1887 until the present time, illustrating and
explaining the ebb and flow of popular acceptance and support, the effects of
outside circumstances, its suppression by tyramnical governments, and the
dedicated work of idealists and progressive people, who slowly but surely are
establishing Esperanto as a major contributor to the lifting of our spiritual
standards, and leading mankind from the eras of petty, tribal warfare to one
of universal brotherhood and peace., It is strange,indeed, that religious,
political, and philanthropic organizations, while loudly professing their
desire to create a better world, have largely ignored Esperanto, and the
practical help it can give in achieving such desireble aims. Worst of all,
our educational authorities, particularly in Australia, studiously ignore
msperanto, the most cultural, practical and educational subsect available,

“In table form, the big dmvxmxong in the hm&tcry of asperanto are:

1. 1887~1908 A perzad of unallayed success, of tremendous expansion, of
unchallengea acceptance by 1ingulsts and governments.

2e 1?08~1919. A period of abeyance, when Esperanto was at fxrst -hampered by
e division amongst its adher-nts, and. ‘then impeded by the
hatreds amongst nations, eagendered by world War 1.

3. 19é0~l930. Resurgence, as people turned wearily from the disaster of War
o to hope for a better world. : : A

4. 1930~1946. The depressing period of the Grea% Depression, w1th the
L limniting factor of world-wide poverty, followed by the rise
of brutal, despctlc governments in many countries, ‘such as
. Russia, Germany, Italy and Spain. In all these countries,
- Besperanto was partially, or wholly, suppressed by law.
Suppression of Hsperanto became necessary for such governments,
- when communication with the free peoples of the world would
-nullify the effects of national propaganda.

5. 1946-1971. Once again there has been a vast reaction in favour of Esperanto,
' and against the crippling influences of nationalism and war.
At first, the new progress was slow, naturally, since the —
worldd needed time to recover from- the vast, incalculable losses
of the holocaust. of war. Then, the tempo increased, until
taday, the Zsperanto liovement is stronger than- it has ever been.
There can be no doubt, that we are reaching the final stages,
when Esperanto will be accepted by every nation,:and taught
in every school and university throughout the world. It is a
‘great pity that we, in Australia, through lack of educationists
~and administrators of understanding, have to sit back and wait
for other countries to lead the way, when we presumably will
. follow, not. because of virtue and understanding, but because of
the lesser motive of simply dozng what other pecple do.

”he Eatabllshment of Esperanto.

In retrospect, the immediate success of Esperanto, following the
publication of Zamenhof's book in 1887, was amazing and incredible, in the face
of two huge handicaps. The language barrier was the first handicap, since his
book was in Russian, and therefore could reach only a very limited reading
public, and secondly, there is the very human failing that we readily. accept
change, only when everybody else has accepted it. Any reform, no matter how
great and how necessary, has difficulty in getting off the ground. Zamenhof
and a few friends were the only ones who could speak Esperanto. It was not E
yet a world language. Why should .anyone else bother to learn it? And yet,
the language was accepted, and thousands of people learned it - an indication
of the intrinsic merits of this wonderful language.

Within four years, by 1891, there were available 33 text~books
in 12 different languages. By 1894, there was a multi-lingual Esperanto
dictionary available, giving the equivalent Inglish, French, German, Russian
and Polish vocabulary.

Immediately, a literature of original and translated work began
to appear, with Zamenhof himself, an author of considerable merit, contributing
mightily.
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It is extraordmnary the amount of work Zamenhof did. Apart from the
heavy load of correspondence he now had with many of the greatest linguists
and scholars in Burope, and in addition to many articles, and literary
compositions, he produced a second book on Esperantce in 18838, and a third
in 1889. In 1890, he tranelated one of the lesser known novels of Charles
Dickens.

The first Esperanto magazmpp appeared in Germany {Nuremberg) and
the second in Bulgaria, both in ”889 ~ only two years after the launchlng
of the language.

But everywhere, in every country, Esperanto was being accephed widely.
It had the support of the great German linguist, Max Muller, and of the great

Russian novelist, Leo Tolstoy. Richard Geoghegan, the brillient Irish
philologist, was the first English-speaking person to learn Esperanto, and
it was he who translated Zamenhof's books on the subject into English, in
R 1889, under the title, "Dr, Esperanto’s International Language".
‘ In 1893, Zamenhof founded the League of Esperanflsis, the precursor to
the present Universal Esperantc Association.

Joseph Rhodes, a journalist, founded the first hsnerau%c Ciub in
England (at kexghley) in 1902, and in the same year, H. Bolingbrcke Mudie, -
supported by the famous editor, W.T. Stead (lost in the Titanic,1912),.
founded the present London Esperanto Club.

By 1908, there werz Esperanto Societies in Russia, Poland, England,
Germany, Sweden, Spain, Italy, Switzerland, Bulgaria, Roumenia, Austria-
Hungary, Holland; France, and other countries in Eurcpe, as well as in
the U.S.A., Mexico, Chile, Brazil, irgentina, Peru, Bolivia, Uruguay,
Venezuela, Cuba, Australia, New Zealand, Japan, and North Africa, - a very
remarkable growth in twenly years.

France. _Congresses, : :

It was in France, that Esperanto had its first most enthusiastic
support - although, it was also in France, that the unfortunate schism of
1908 occurred, hindering,but far from stopping,the advance cof Esperanto.
The leaders in Prance were Louis de Beaufront, Carl Bourlet, General Hippolyte

. Sebert,Emile Boirac, Theophile Cart, Alfred 1’;3‘.cJtmu:s;:9i Rene Lemaire, Gaston
Moch, Gabriel Chavet, Paul -ru;etier, Ernest Archdeacon, and Dr.Emile Javal.
They were all men of distincticn, leaders in their professions; most of them
with university degrees, and some of them university professors.

"In 1904, a meeting of the leading Esperantists tock place at Calais,
France., There were 180 Lisperantists taking part,and as a result of the success
of the gathering, which, in some ways, might be considered as a preliminary
World .Congress, Michaux suggested a full-scale Congress for 1905.

S0, the first Universal Esperanto Congress was held at Boulogne in
1905, and, excepting for the war years, an annual congress has been held
ever since, during the first week in August. Below, we list the congresses
and the places where they were held, from 1905 to 1970:

1. 1905..Boulogne - 20. 1928, .Antwerp - 38. 1953..Zagreb

2. 1906, .Geneva 21, 1929..Budapest 39, 1954..Haarlem

3. 1907..Cambridge ©22¢ 1930:.0xford =~ 40. 1955..Bologna

4, 1908..Dresden 23, 1931..Krakow 41, 1956,..Copenhagern
5. 1909..Barcelona 24. 1932..Paris - = 42. 1957..llarseilles
6. 1910..Washington 25, 1933..Cologne 4%, 1958, .liainz

7. 1911,.Antwerp 26. 1934..Stockholn 44, 1959, .Varsaw

8. 1912..Krakow : 27. 1935..Rome 45, 1960, .Brussels
9. Ber DBerne 28, 1936, .Vienns 46, 1961, .Harrowgate
10. 1914..Paris 29. 1937.,Warsaw - 47. 1962,.Copenhagen
11 1915..San Francisco %0, 1938, .London 48, 1963.,.50Tia
12. 1920..The Hague 31. 1939..Berne 49, 1964.,.The Hague
13. 1921..Prague . 32. 1947, .Berne 50. 1965, .Tokio

14. 1922..Helsinki 33+ 1948..Malmo 51, 1966..Budapest
15.. 1923..Nuremburg 34, 1949, .Bourremouth 52. 1967..Rotterdan
16. 1924, .Vienna . 35, 1950..Paris 53%. 1968, .liadrid

17. 1925..Geneva 36. 1951, lunich 54. 1969, .Helsinki
18. 1926..Edinburgh 37. 1952..08l0 ' 55. 1970..Vienna.

19.  1927..Danzig

Cengresses for the next two years have been arranow; for London (1971)
and Portland (U.S.4.)(1972).

Average attendances at these congresses are about 2,000 msnérantists the
largest being 4963 in 1923, and the lowest 163 in the war y@ar949l* in the U S.h.
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The 1908 Schism.

In 1908 occurred a remarkable incident which did some damage to
Esperanto, and at the same time wrecked the reputation of two men, who, up
to that time, had been counted amongst the most fervent supporters of Esperanto.

Some organization or group of individuals in France decided to set up
an official commission, which would meke a study of the various international
language projects, and select the best one, which the world might accept. In
that way, the divisive and stultifying effect of having several sections all
a&vocating a different language, would be avoided.

- " There was nothing in this to worry Bsperantists, because they were
confident that Esperanto would be the language chosen., There was no other
1anguage project, which could possibly stand a chance against Esperanto.

The Chairman of the Commission was a linguist of standing, and also
an Esperantist, Louis Couturat. The Commission then laid down a strange rule of
procedure, which, although .strange, aroused no suspicions at the time, that no
creator of a language could argue his case for that languag@ vefore the
Commission, but he could send a representative,

There was only one man that Zamenhof, in the circumstances, could
choose as his representative - Louis de Beaufront, the leading Esperantist in
France, editor of the Esperanto journal there, and a close associate and
follower of Zamenhof from the beginning:

The case for Esperanto was not presented. InsteadsDe Beaufront put
forward another project which he called Ido, a modified version of Esperanto,
the author of which wished to remain anonymous.

Couturat, who seemed to be working in close conjunction with De
Beaufront, in advocating Ido, wrote to Zamenhof, suggesting the reforms be
accepted, and adding as a sop, that the new project could be called Esperanto.
Zamenhof, with quiet dignity, refused, saying that the language:Esperanto, now
belonged to the BEsperantists, and could only be changed with their. consent.

The Commission put the Ido suggestion to a postal vote - and
received only four votes in favour - and yet, Ido became the language adopted by
‘the Commission. The Esperantists in Europe were furious - except for Zamemhof,

who remained calm, and expressed his pity for De Beaufront rather than any
anger.

Later, De Beaufront admitted that he was the author of Ido,
apparently not realizing that he was admitting deceit and skulduggery of a
double kind. In the first place he had betrayed Zamenhof's trust in him, and
had put no case for Esperanto, and secondly, he had deliberately broken the ~ -
rule that no author could attend the Commission to argue for his project. It
seems that Couturat also was a party to this double treachery.

The only explanation for this strange action of these two men, is
that both were ambitious for fame and glory, and wished to be placed at least
as the equal of Zamenhof, as benefactors of mankind.

If that was their object, subsidiary to the stated aim of the R, S
Commission, they failed doubly. In the first place, they did not bring unity -
into the universal language question, but division. In the second place, they
achieved no fame, but only notoriety, and the scorn of their erstwhile friends.

0f course, they gained a little following, but Ido is dead now, as
are other plagiarisms, and Esperanto has been left in the field as the only
acceptable, and accepted international language.

We have no space to tell of the vicissitudes of Esperanto between
then and now, but we can give something of the present picture.

Egperanto Today.

Most of the great classics of every country have long since been
well translated into Esperanto. The Esperanto translation of the Bible, in
full, was dedicated in Edinburgh Cathedral in 1926.

Sixty publishers, apart from Esperanto Societies, regularly publish
- books in Esperanto. Between 100 and 200 Esperanto books have appeared regularly
for the past 50 years. The smaller standard dictionary for English Esperantists
only, has sold 120,000 copies, and there are similar dictionaries for all the
countries, It is taught as a school subject in over 600 schools, and as &
degree subject in at least six universities. The Universal Esperanto Association
has a membership of some 40,000 Esperantists, and this is increasing yearly.

This Association, the Universal Esperanto Association is perhaps the
biggest and widest flung World Orgenization in existence. It has 3000 consuls
or ambassadors in 50 countries or mowe, to help fellow Bsperantists.

A recent petition to U.N.0 asking for its recognition of Esperanto
represented 76,000,000 individuals,
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We do not know who was the first Australian Esperantist, but guite early
in the Bsperanto story, Zamenhof had some communication in Bsperanto with an
Auvstralian. The Australian Encyclopaedia states that George Alphonse
Collingridge de Tourcey, 1847-1931, founded the first Esperanto Club in
Australia, but gives no date, This could be true, because Collingridge (as he
was known here) was an early and enthusiastic Esperantist, but that does not
necessarily make him the first individual Esperantist.

In Zamenhof's first Address List, 1889, appeared two names from Australla,
D. G. Rienits, and Herman Ritz, both from New Scuth Wales. By 1909, there
were exactly 100 names from Australia, in the various addwess books, of whom

"~ 29 were from Victoria, 23 - New South Wales, 16 - Jueensland, 16 =~ South
Augtralia, 8 - Tasmania, and 8 -~ Western Australia, but there must have been
a great many more, who were not members of the Esperanto League.

Of the early clubs or societies, Melbourne Esperanto Club seenms %o have
been the biggest and the most active. The early minute books of the Club
show that it was established in 1905. :

Australian Bsgexanto Congresses.

 The first Australian ﬁsperanta Congress was held in Adelaide, (at the
Unlversity of Adelaide), from the 26th. to the 28th. October, 1911, and was
highly successful. An imposing list of Patrons included the yleutenant»
.. Governor of South Australia; the Premier and five members of his cabinet;
edght - unxverszty professors; an isrchbishop, a Bishop, and five clergy;
a Dlrecﬁor of ‘'Education; and a number of other dignitaries.
The full list af Australian ﬁsperanta Congresses is:

1. l9lle~Adela1ae S Te 19504 JMelbourne . 0 13, ?9620.Sydney

2. 1912..lelbourne . .8+ 1952, .Sydney - 14, 1964. Jelbourne
341920, .Sydney .- 9. 1954..Perth 15, 1966, .Canberra

4. 1923..8ydney . 10. 1956,.Canberra 16, 1968, .Manly

5. 1925..Melbourne 11l. 1958, .lelbourne . 17. 1970.:Perth

6. 1929,.Perth 12. 1960, .Hobart 18. 1972..to be at

Melbourne.

The Australian Esperanto Association.

Although Australian Congresses were held from 1911 onwards, it seems
as though there was no official Esperanto Association until 1915, -and
this probably faded away quickly because of the war situation then. The
present Australian Esperanto Assnﬂlatlon was formed in 1937.

Presidents have been: :

1937~l959..Joab Bliot - 1956--1959, .Dr. ?red Wz:lmams

1 +1939~1941, .Cedric Cowling - 1960-1961. .Ralph Harry
1941-1942. .A11lan Turnér 1962-1963%.,Dr. Ross Robbins
1942-1949. .Florence Rawson 1964~1965, .Marcel Leereveld
1950-1951,.Dr. C. J. Caldera 1966-1967, «Ivan Maddern .
1952-1955. .Ken Linton 1968-1971. .Ken Linton
Secretaries. :
1959—1941..Mrs. N. D. Cowllng o 1948«1949o.nass 0. Sﬁremnel
1941-1945,.G. H. Hlllerman , , "[1950—1967 <Herbert Koppel

- l946~l947..Dr. C. J. Caldera '“}1968-19”1-g08011 C. Goldsmith.

| bdltor df "The An»trallan Esgerantlst"a..ur@ F. Ra.Banham,

Recent Growth. A , ~
&1nce the Second World War, th number of Bsperanto Clubs
in Australia has grown from six (one in each capital city) to fourteen,
made up of five in Vlctorla, four in ueensland two in New South
Wales, and one each xn 'estern Auw%ralla and South Au&%ralla, and
Ganberra.‘

Norwell High School.

R horwell H;gh Schoel introduced bqperantc as a regular school
subject in 1964, with approximately 300 pupils every year taking the
subject. It has now been recognized by the authorities as an examination
subject at the Leaving Certificate level. Other schools,led by Box Hill
High School, and Donald High School, are introducing Esperantc ~also.
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hapter 7 ..p..OvQ031tion to Esgeranto.

T A hlstcry such ag this would not be complete’ 1f it did not deal
in some measure, with the opposition,that has existed and still does ex1st, to
both the idea of an international language, and to the language itself.

-7 Practically all of the criticism is subjective, rather than
ob;ective. ‘In other words, the critics do not examine the whole question,
dispassionately, and with open minds, and theén form their opinions. On the
contrary, they form their opinions flrst, and emcﬁlunally, and then think up
bad arguments to support their wrong decisions. For example, one critic, a
university graduate, and therefore, supposedly an intelligent human being,put
his poQ;txon in this way: "I know nothing about Bsperanto, but I am against it".

; ‘Some reasons for such attitudes are apathy, laziness, misplaced
national loyalties, and a vested interest in the maintenance of existing
languages. Strongest opposition comes from the teachers and professors of
national languages, whosé real opposition to Esperanto, is a fear of the
displacement of their own language, or the second language they teach, and
because of which they hold their present status positions, and earn their
comfortable salaries. Some years ago, a teacher of Greek.in a Victorian public
school retired at the age of 65 years. The next day, he was reported as saying:
"I have wasﬁad my life teaching Greek, but I could not say so until now",

'~ These language experts are wrong t0.be. afraid of Esperantc. There
can be no. doubt. that Esperanto will replace all the secand languages now taught
in our schools, but we will need these language teachers more than ever. It will
mean & new 1ease of life for this proféssmon. These men can,be,anﬁ should ‘be,
the Esperanto teachers in our schools and universities. They would be teaching
Esperanto to hundreds of thousands of willing students, instead of teaching
national langusges to a handful of unwilling students, forced to take those * -
subjects by ‘unnecessary, and irrational, pre-requisite provisions, ‘

~Recently, a group of such teachers condemned Esperanto (although
they know ncthlﬁg, or next to nothing about:it) on: the three following graunds,
which we will examine a little more closely:

1.“Esgeranto is a hageh»ggtch of a ;ggggége "

The word "hotch~potch" is an emotive word, a derogatory description.
of a mixture, which might be either good or bad. These critics use the word to
mean a "bungle". If they said Esperanto was a skilful selection of the best
elements in language structure, they would be nearér the 'mark. But Esperanto is -
not really a mixture; it is the purest language in the world. On the other hand
there is no greater a "hotch-potch" in languages, than English itself, a confused
mixture of 01ld Bnglish, Danish and French, with words of many other langliagses -
also. But, we Esperantists would not gall English a "hotch~potch", We have too
much respect for it, A 1anguage can be a mlxture, and still a. fine 1anguage,3ust
as you may have a building of great arch;tectuxal beauty, though a "hotch—yctch“
of cement, metal and glass.. _ e

2."Esperanto has no cultural xalue" -

We wonder if those people WhO bandy the word "culture" about g0
much, really know what it is. Can they define it? Perhaps we could say it is:'
a knowledge and appreciation of those things, which develop our own abilitiesy
and at the same time, add to the richness .and happiness of our livas. In other
words, we equate it with educatlon, with development. hast of eur culture or -
education comes through contact and aommunicatzon with others. If we learn French,
we may communicate with 50 million Frenchmen,.a tiny. part of the world's
population; if we learn Esperanto, we can communicate with intelligent and
cultured people in every country of the world. There is no second language so
important to our culture and education as Eaperantc.

Really! We had not nntzced 1t. hy thanAdo we bether to teach French
in our schools, if the French already know English? Why are some of our . experts
in education urging us in the schools to teach Asian languages? Surely, all the
Japanese and Chinese and other Asiatic people know English. Why has the United
Nations Organization officially recognized five langudges, if, as is.claimed, we
already have English as the international 1anguage This statement by the
critics of Esperanto is simply not true. It is ‘a further example of the
illogical attitude of people who desperately want not to ®ecognize ﬁsperanto,
who think up "bad arguments to puppurt a wr@ng declslon . , ‘
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Aﬁdf&SSB& of Victorian Historiﬁal Societies,
Additions and Amendments to the List Given, 15/2/71,

17. Camperdown H. S. .. lir. James Wilson, "Boonat”, Camperdown, 3260,
l7a.Casterton H. S, ... lrs, . Edwards, 22 Jackson St., Casterton, 3311,
22, Colac He Se wessoos Lirse I. licIntosh, Colac, Victoria, 3250,

. -28a.Dimbocla He S. ... Mr., B, Muir, 26 Hope St., Dimboola, 3414.
29. Donald H. S. ..., Hrs, B. K. Grewer, "Coolabong", Cope Cope, 3477,
49a.Korong He S. eececs brs. E. Beacham, Yaitchie St., Wedderburn, 3518,
44, Horsham H. 5. ...., lirs, S« Rudge, Box 14, Horsham, Victoria, 3400,
46, Kerang He Se eevo., lirs, G. D. Narrow, Box 30, Kerang, Victoria, 3579,
45, Kaniva He S¢ ivee.. Lr. alex Hicks, Box 126, Xaniva, Viatoria, 3419
65. Nhill He Si see.ees biss A, M. Jordan, "Lister Vale", Kiata, 3415. .
73. Portland H. 8. .... Iirs, D. Ii. Sandeman, Box 58, Portland; 3305.
85. St, Arnaud H., S. .. lrs. Elvie VcDonald, St. arnaud, Victoria, 34784
79a.Sale H. 8. «vev.... Mr. Stuart ashton, 21 Nacalister §$t.,Sale, 3850.
85a.5tratford H. S. ... Mrs. Alice Baxter, Blackburn St. ford, 3862,
86. Swan Hill H. S. ... lrs. G. F, Fraser, Fergus®n Court, Swen Hill, 3585
91, Warrnambool H. S. . lirs. M. Snell, 49 Timor St., Warrnambool, 3280.
2a, Apollo Bay H. S. .. Fr. K. Watkins, Apollo Bay, Victoria, 3233.
43a.Heytesbury H. S. .. The Secretary, Timboon, Victoria, 3268.
53a.Lorne H. S¢ seevae. irs, G. Wheal, Lorne, Victoria, 3232,

lioe Historical Society.. Change of lonthly Meeting Wights.

.The Secretatry of the Moe Historical Society, lr. andy Ringin, has
notified us that the monthly meeting night for the Society has been changed
from the fourth Thuwrsday .of -the month to the fourth Tuesday of the month.,

Tioe's next meeting will therefore be in the Society's Club Rooms
(the 01d Water Trust Building in Kirk Street) on Tuesday, 25th. lay, 1971,

Obituary......Irevor King, 23/4/T1.

It was a very great shock to us to learn of the death, suddenly,
apparently from a heart attack, of Trevor King, who has so often entertained
historical societies in the Latrobe Valley with his folk songs of Harly
Australia, and his racy anecdotes of life on the diggings, and on stories
of bushrangers. Trevor had lived all his life in Traralgon, until recently,
when,because of the closure of the Gas and Fuel Corporation here, following
the Bass Strait discoveries of natural gas, he moved to Ikelbourne.

He was only 46 years old. He was a cheerful man, an interesting
personality, a good friend, and a keen historian in his specialized line ~
the songs of our early sustralians, We will miss him very much.

Historical Exhibition, Rosedale, 3&/4/7§' to ?f5/7;&

Assisting the Rosedale Centenary Celebrations Committee, the
Traralgon Historical Scciety mounted a magnificent History fxhibition in
the Rosedale Shire Depot Building, in Cansick Street, Rosedale.




x, 28th. rebm “_;;g.. Jie mxwrsion te ?la‘cma, near dalhal.;.a.

bundav, zsth. March...“...a.bxeursian tn Glengarry.

The guest syeaker was st¢ Jean Ccurt ?r351dent of Traralgon Hoe Sey
who spoke on "The ona&erlng Families of Glengarry and Distrlct“
ot AR
Tuesday, %h* - .....a_donzhxy ueetlng a% ﬁhe Civic xeception Rooms‘
- Ghest bp@aker ++ Rev. Selwyn Reynolds, whose subject will be
.. 'The Diary of Rev, Thomas Moorhouse'. Rev, Thomas Noorhouse is

R speaker's granafathur, and was Traralgon's first resident
Church of England minister, 1878-1883. His diary is 1nvaluable
source material Jer th@ hmstory of Traralgcn.

Tuesday, 22nd, JUnG...osess hwn%hiy Heating at the Civic Reception Rooms.
Guest Speaker... hr I T Maddern, th will speak on the "History
of Cewwarr”‘ﬂ : ‘ .

Manggv. l2th. JUlVeennoens mcnthly xeetlng dt the Civic Feception Rooms.,

" The programme will include the showing of historical slides of
Traraigen and District. ,

fuesday, 24%H, Augus%...¢..‘sont1ly leeting at the Clvlc neceptian Rooms,
- Talk b;y Ralph Durr, on "Ballarat",

lionday, 1§thz Segtembeg.ng nnnth&y Meeting at the Civlc Reception Rooms.'“f

* o

Konday, vllth, Octaber.»‘..un&ﬁthly &eetlng at the Civic Receptlon Raoms.,_A .
("Barly Writings on' Barly Augtralian Histéory" .. & prcgramme arranged
By Hrs. Jean Court (Pr@s;dent) and Hrs. Teasdale (Town lerarlan)

ﬁon@gv,‘: Bth@ November.,asncntnly meetmng at %he Clvxa yeceptlen Rooms,
ﬁn ad&ress on "Rosedale", by lr. B. 1, Crooke, of Holey Plalnsq~

londay, éth; December..;.anmwtmas Party. _
/The guest speaker will be lr. Andy Ringin, becratary of the hoe
i Hxstorlcal Society, and his subaect will be "Bogong Jack".

uneclal Act1v1tles fer 1221, with netalls stlil to be dxranged.
June, 197 ....: An exca?s;on uo,uelbourne by bus.. «
September, 1971..Annual Diﬁner'cfzthé“Laﬁrcbe Valley Historical Societies.

Hovember, 1971...5xcursion to'lount Vlew" Briagalong,,the historic home of .
Mrs. He B. Challens - 0 o cme o o SRR RN

‘ tegarir Celebrations of the Rosedale Shire, 1821-@;311
"The uentﬂnarv Hlstnrv af ‘the Shire of Roggdale‘.....bv 1. T, La&d g

This bcok consic 1ting of 108 pages, 1nc1u&ing many illustrations,
has just been published.It is~obtoincble from the Secretary, thre of Rosedale,
Shire Offices, Rosedale, 3847. “rzce..aw3~ﬁ0‘ C

"Back uo Rasedale“'

‘To mark the Centanary 0¥ the Shlre, a "Back %0 Rosedale“ from Frzday,
30th, April to Friday, Tth. May, was organized. ‘
. A very full programme, particularly Tor the weekwenﬁ, was aarried out -
in near perfect weather conditiens. We list below, some of the more important
items in the celebration prcgramme

Priday, - 30 1...4 bpeclal Centenary Meetlng of the Council, attended
L by many guests.
Evening...01d Time Dance in the Kasedale Mechanics' Hall,

Saturday, 1/5/71..."Back %o School". Street Procession. 'Concert.
thtae Athletic heetingy Football lMatches. Aircraft Display.

Sunday: 7L, Church Services. Vinbage Train from Helbourne.
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', & History of Glengarry and District,

by
lirs., Jean Court

Introduct;pgs :
"~ This is “A History", and nat “The Al%%cry of Glengarry", a 11ttle

townah;p and its surroundlng dlbtrlct, situated about half-way between Traralgon
and Toongabbie. The township of Glengarry is a fey hundred yards east of the
Traralgon~Toongabbie Hoad, and six miles from each of those neighbouring
centres. . 0f the three places, Toengabbie is the oldest, having its beginnings
in. 1863,’qith Traralgon, starting as the homesﬁeud area of the Traralgon Cattle
1n 1844, but not achieving any real tawnahlp gtatus until .the-lelbourne Coach

Service began in 1865. Glengarry township did not come into existence until
1883, when the loop railway line, Traralgon to Bairnsdale was built, and a
railway station was establlshed at that spot.

Loongabbie South; Raglehawk; La Trobe; and Gleng .

. The township, taking its name from the station, has always been
known as Glengarry, but the district was first known as Toongabbie South,
then Eaglehawk, so named from the creek on which it is situated; then La Trobe,
for a short time; and finally,Glengarry.

, Much of the land in the area was 105~1y1ng and inclined to be
swampy, until drains were made to curry off the surplus water, leaving lush
pastures. Toongabbie South was the natural name for the area to begin with,
since Toongabbie was an important staging place on the main tracks from
Sale to Walhalla and Rosedale to Walhalla; and since it was cut off from
Traralgon by the Latrobe River, until the Scarne Bridge was built in 1875.

Maybe the uﬁucatzon Department was responsible for the change of
name to Eaglehawk (in 1880), since it had made the mistake of naming two of
its sahaala, Toongabbie South - No. 1235, and No., 2281l.

But Eaglehawk was also a confusing name, since there was.a . ,
township and a school, so called in the Bendigo area, and hence, we find the
change to a third name, La Trobe, in 1882. This was not a very good choice,
either, since the school at Willow Grove had been called Latrobe. We do not
know whether it was the HEducation Department or the Railways Department, which
hit upon the final, and most satisfactory name of Clengarry, in 1883.

"Glengarry" was the first name for the Latrobe River, and it was
given by Angus Mcliillan in his journey through Gippsland in 1840. He named it
after Aeneas Ronaldson lLiacdonnell, Chief of the Glengarry Cldn, who had come
to - Australia about that time. Perhaps it was MNeliillan who influenced him to
settle at Greemmount, near Yarram in 1841, This man, the 16th. Chief of the
Glengarry Clan, did not stay long at Greenmount, but moved on to New Zealand.
Ho~one seems to knov anything more about him. It is even possible that he
returned to Scotler *. lirs, Harrison (formerly Mise m.u.Bermangham) of Glengarry,
on a trip to iféw “ealond, discovered the grave of his son, Alistair Ronaldson
¥Haedonnell, the ITth. Chief ax Glengarry, dled at Dunedin, 2/6/1862, aged 28.

The Historx of Gleggar;z

- A very gaoé”h;story-of Glengarry"was written by the late ilan G.
Burnet, for the "Back %o Glengarry" Celebrations of 1955, but he had little
space to do more than mention by name the early Glengarry pioneers. This
story that we have to tell could well serve as a supplement to his "History",
adding to his -account, the interesting stories of the earliest families to
settle in the area. - and some of them came as early as 1866, But, it will be
necessary to repeat some of the background facts, ngen by lr. Burnet.

The Sguatters.

The squatters soon poured into Glpp3¢dnd after the explorers,
ingus MclMillan, 1839, 1840, 1841, and Strzelecki, 1840, blazed the trails.
The Glengarry area, seems to have bordered on to three of the early Cattle
Runs - Snake Ridge; Scarne; and Rosedale (now gmnerally called '0ld Rosedale!,
to distingu;sh it from the township of Rosedale), At e

John Reeve is shown as holding Snak@aﬁwuﬁﬁ 1842, and Scarne
in 1847. David Parry-Okeden took up Rosedale Run in 1844, and held it till
1854. John King, as a partner in the squatting firm of T. Holt and Co.,
and also, acting as a station-manager for that firm, was in Gippsland as early
as 1842, and apparentlv in this area from 1849 onwards, since he is shown as
holding Snake Ridge in $a4&, and - hiu firm as holding Scarne in 1853, and
Rosedale vtatlan in 1@94. i - e
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Thy Sclectors,

The first type of soettlor in Australia was the squatter, a man
of wealth, who was able to lease meny squarc miles of land, at a nominal fue.
At first, the fee was a more £10 & year. The big expenscs for the squattbrs
were those of stocking and runﬁ¢n¢ the station.

In the 1860's, governments began to make land available for small
farmers, and on generous terms. For cxample, a scttler could lcase 20 acres of
land for a rental of £5 a ycar, and if he lived on his farm, cultivated it and
improved it, after seven years or more, he could apply for a lanﬂ grant - or in
other wor&s, assumc the owncrship of his small plot.

In the 1870's, the governments became evin more gonerous in a
process called "unlocking the lands". Renewal of leases was refused to the
squattcrs, and the land was divided into 320 acre lots, called selections, and =
madc available to "selectors". If the selector paid 2/6 an acre rent for this
land, and if he farmed it satisfactorily for three years; the property beeame
his. The old squatters woerc allowed some compensation. They were allowed to
keep as their own propoerty 64& acres of their former leaschold land. Naturally,
they normally chose the best 640 acres, land ncar water, and on which their '
homesteads and sheds were built. lany of them secured many more acres, by
nominating members of tholr families, and paying agents (ar dummles) to take
up the adgac ent seclections,

There werc other defects in the system.. No dlaﬁlnctlon was made
betwéen the quality of the selections, so that a farmer might havé to pay just
as much for a. stony stretch or a swampy patch, as another did for rich,arable
land. Some, like .John Bermingham of Glengarry, were unlucky to strike what
we now call "red-tape" government, when petty officials in their Melbourne
offices, remote from the struggling farmer, harassed him with unsympathetic,
and impossible technlcalmtieg¢ Nevertheless, if the farmer had ¢ourage and
prersistence, things evantualwy turned out well, as the story of Jahn Bermingham
shows. :

The Selectars at Gl NEArYY.

. How is it that sclectors werc on the sccne at Glengarry, yaars bafora
selectors atMorwell, Traralgon and other placcs? We find definite-evidence of
this in the dates of the cstablishment of schools in thesc respective arcas.

“The earliest school at Glengarry was State School No. 1235, the
nuliber 1nd10at1ng that it opened (or was approved) in 1873, whoreas the earliest -
schools in the Morwell -ares were Eazelwood Ridge, No. 1768, (1876), and
Maryvale Ridge, No. 1939 (1877).

. There are three reasons. First of all, there was some gcld found at
Glengarry, and such land was immcdiately alienated to the government. Farmers.
could select land within an area of ten miles of a gold-ficld. Similar action
was taken, when towns sprang up, as Toongabbi¢ did from 1863 onwards. The
squatters were not allowed to hold land nceded for town purposes.

And perhaps thc squatters were not very interested in the. land at
Glengarry, because much of it was heaV&ly wooded, and some of it was little
better than a swamp.

The third recason was that the roads 1o the goldflelds were tha
busy highways in the 1860's. There wculd.have been much morc traffic on the
Rosedale-Toongabbie-Walhalla Road, then on the Rosedale-Morwell-lelbourne Road.
Farmers in such en area might make a good lévxng by selling their pro&uce to
the people on the gold fields. B Co

Alan Burnut, in his DGOk&Ct lzsts the following as some of tho
pioneer selectors at Glengarry:

Horthern area. ~ Families by the name of Siater, Ch%lbtbnsen, Hambrook, Carey,
' Bermingham, and {illiams;
Hastern arca:- Families named Russell,'Duk@, Waita, ﬂumphruy, Bassett kann.
R . Treéston King; John King, John Walker, Ned O'Mara, A. V,_O‘Mara,
MeCauley, Spuck B%ab,,Chrlstensan, Farmer, Jacksan Orr,
: T.-Lloyd,and Heddinnot.
Western area:- The Pratt Christcnsen,Chrichton, and Lang families. .

Uﬁ&oubtedly, some nemes Wll& have ‘been missed. There was Johh Kyne,
for example, who had a farm, in the centre of the area - opposite the present -
Glengarry State School; No. 2888. Some of the families have died out (like the
Pratt famlly) and others, or their descendants, will have leff the district.

In any case, we must limit ourselves to a few of them.
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‘The Township of Glengsrry,

The first survey ofl the district. was .made.in 1866 by Surveynr George
Hastings. There was another survey made of the. fuwnship area in 1886, by
George Robinson, aliheugh it -could hardly be calied a tvwn%th survey, since
‘it only served to allot = halfeacre block each for a mechanics' institute,.
an@~fcr.th8 Church of England: ﬁpparently‘the‘tax ship has gust grown up
round the railway station, by private arrangement, -and without any control .
by the Lands Department. ‘

: ~ There were earlier: public buildings scatbb ed “Qund about -~ the
first school, Toongebbie South (. 1 ), No. 1235 oie and a half miles northe
east of the station, Toongabbie South (2), Ho,2281, known locally as the Scarne
School, one and 2 half mile¢ south-west of the uyqilon; and the first Church of
ingland, on the @dlrnbr«dk Road, on half an acrm uf l@nd, given by John King,
from his property. Lk

.. In the fol‘ewwng list of publlc bumidznu& in Glengarry, LCE have
added, where possible, the dat@ of astabllshment An- brackets.

The" Raxlway Station &1855} . Church of mngiuné (1878)
The Raglway Hotel (188 - (later mcved into the township)
The Commercial Hotel \1885) ' Roman Cathe'iic Church,(1885)
“(re~built in<1927; L nethodist Church, (1890)
Shamxock Hotel (1883 ol :
o4 q g N ¥
(delicensed, 191)3 State School, o, 2888 (1888)‘

Meahanlcs' Instituteg(LBB{) ‘Butter Favtarv, i18§0)

The fmrﬁt store was. coniucte& in turn by Tohn bn@lish {i882a1885),
Richard King (1885-1909), lir, Burgsss (1909-1918), W. Bs Fox (1918n1928),
R. Coates, Manager for Layton Brﬂu.*Traralg SN (”9“%ml937)y ‘since When it
has been a branch of W. A. Purvis Stores. . . -

There is a second store a2t Glengarry, a ‘baker® @, @ﬂd a. butcher's. There
was a blacksmith'® shop opened in 1883 by C. J. Williams, and it flourished
well in the early days, but engines have le& since rep)aceé horses and
garages have taken Ghe plaae of the village blaccowith.,

The first service in the Church of England, un the oid smte was taken
by Rev. Thomas MQarhonse of Traralgon, Sunday, 21/7/1878, ;. ' :

Saw-lilling, . S o - : ;
Saw~m113ing was an 1mporﬁant industry in the Toongabbie area
in the early days, serving a double purpsse, firstly.providing a llvellhood
for many people, and ﬂecandlyp clearing the land for the more permanent
prosperity of agr"ﬁulture» The timber resourves of the area must have been
large in quantity and good in quality. Apparently ‘ﬁﬂhﬂ@f'it was red-gui,
and paving blocks from the Giengarry mills and othews were used in their
thousands\fcr the tr@@ts cf felbourna and for: ﬁvwgﬁﬁrg Stre&t~RailWay
btaxlon. i

“Ini “the "ngtory of Toongabbze, ¢86?~¢967", 1% is stated that
lr. W. H. Goodwin came to Toongabbie from Walhalla in 1877, and opened tlhe
first saw-mill there, in pertnership with Mr. Mitckell. He sold out his share
to James Lang, but when uhm firm of nmu‘hali aacd .Lang moved to Glengarry,
he began a new saw-milling buginess. at. Toongabbie.

Apparently, the first saw-mill in the Glengarry district was ,
lioorey's Mill on Baglehawk Creek, where the cresk emerges from the hills on
to the plain country. James Lang worked at this mill from 1875 onwards,, -
until he went into partmersh&p with Mr, llitchelil.

Communlcatlons - The Scarne Brxdge 18 22

anle the main connection with the outside world lay with the " ..-.
road to Rosedale, where the Latrobe had been bridged in 1862, and to Port

_ Albert, the isolation from Traralgon was of no great importance. But as
the Saleuﬂelbourne road became more generally used, and Traralgon grew,
and a parallel railway-line was mooted, it became necessary to link the
two townships on opposite banks of the the laitrobe River. The Scarne Bridge
was built in 1875 by Messrs Miller and James for £400, MWiller and James also
had contracts to build sections of the railway line, and the Scarne Bridge
gave them access to the red-gum sleeper supplies from the saw~mxlls north -
of the Latrobe - particularly Mooney's Saw-ill.

The Scarne Bridge had to be weplaced after the great flaed of 1934.

The brldge at the Bluff was built seven yeara later. in 1882,
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Sone Pibneer Foamilies of Glengarry eeesese...by 018, Jeaﬁ Court,
The Alng Family, of "Brookisigh', Cazrﬁhroak Roa&, G;enggggx
: The pioneer member of %hls family, John King, 18301902, is not to
be confused with the squatter, John King of Snake Ridge Station, nor with the

Glengarry storekeeper, Richard King. These three families were not related in
any way. :

John King was born in County Cavan,in Ireland, in 1830, and married
in 1860, liss Pratt, a sister of Thomas Pratt, another Glengarry pioneer, and
also from County Cavan.
. The King family emigrated to Vlctorla, and settled at Fyansford,
-near Geelong, where lirs., King died in 1869, leaving four surviving children,
the fifth, one of twins, dying soon after birth, and about the same time as
his mother. The four surviving children were John, (born 1862), Margaret,1864,
Robert, 1866, and Thomas, 1869.

In 1870, John King married again, his second wife being Eliza Jane
Rountree, a cousin of his first wife, and newly arrived from County Cavan.

Shortly after their marriage, they travelled to Glengarry by bullock
dray, and selected the property now known as "Brookleigh", which is still held
by the King family. Their first home here was the typical wattle and daub
construction of the early days, built on the original selection of 280 acres,
on Cairnbrook Road, east of Eaglehawk Creek: This house was replaced by the
present large, and comfortable home, occupied now by John King's grandson,
Richard (or Dick) King, and his family.

The eldest son of the second family, James Klng, was something of
a scholar, became a teacher, and was the head-teacher of Moe State School,
1904~1906., He had three sons, the eldest of whom, John Wing, graduated as a
Civil Engineer, and supervised the designing and building of the present
Rosedale Bridge, built in 1934~1935.

liost of the information about this family was provided by a grand-
daughter of the pioneer, lirs. ¥W. Saxton of Longford, who was formerly Janie
King, daughter of Stewart King. e give below ﬁhé family tree:

Zobp Ling, 40J0-1 gratt .....John (1862) Margaret (1864), Robert (1866)
‘ » Thomas (1869) Twin brother (1869-1869)

m, (2) 1870, Eliza Jane Rountree.
’

1. James (1871-), Head~teacher, lice State School, 1904-1906,
m.(1) Louise Kelly (no issue); (2) iary Campbell - 3 sons.

2. Bliua Jane, 1873-1894.

3. William %18753 m. Isabella Widdis .... two daughters.

4, Stewart,(1877),m. 1901, Nellie ﬁolier.....John, Janie (lirs. Saxton),
James, Ellen, Panny, William, Thomas, lMarjorie, Kemneth,
Frederick, Noel. : .

5. Elizabeth (1879) m. loel Courtenay.

6. George (1881), m. lMary King......lary, Richard, George, Dorothy.

7. hary Ann. (1883), m. Charles Bassett.... one daughter.

The Christensen Brothers, Zacchasous, Adol and Chrisgtien.

Zacchaeus Christensen was a lime-burner living at Boggy Creek, near Sale,

when he applied for 80 acres of land at Glengarry in 1866, In 1871, he found
that he had complied with the conditions of the 1869 Land Act, which anabled.ig
him to buy the land for £80, vhich included his five years‘ rental.

Christien Christensen applied in 1870 for an adjoining block of 33 acres,

but suffered from the bushfires of 1878, which delayed his opportunity for

outright purchase. This man was a councillor of the Shire of Rosedale,from
1877 to 1881, heading the poll for Toongabbie Riding in the first elections
for the twelve-man Council, in 1877.

Adolph Christensen, was a carpenter at faglehawk, when he applied for the
lease of 50 acres of land at Glengarry in 1873, After eleven years of
occuvancy, he was granted ownership of the property for a tatal cost of £53,
or a little over £1 an acre.

It seems that the first Glengarrv school, Iio, 1235, was built on
his property, or close to it, about 1} miles, north-east of Glengarry.
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The Pratt Family of "Riversdale! Glenga . N P
Robert Prat3,18§§~188 , died at Glenpdrry, aged 42 years, and unmarried.

Thomas Pratt, 1840~ 2

The two brothers, Thomas and Robert Pratt came to Victoria from County
Cavan, Ireland, where they had been nexghbours of John King, who had married
their sister, and 1ater their cou81n.

* They, too, settled at first in the Geelong district - at Batesford,
where Thomas Pratt, in 1871, married Catherlne Turner, who had come from
ﬁelenaburgh Scotland. The Pratts followed the King family to Glengerry, then
known as Eag1ehawk, with Thomas selecting land on the north side of the river,
and Robert taking the block directly opposite, on the south side. When the
younger brother,Robert, died in 1886, his property passed to Thomas Pratt,

There were six children of the marriage, but since only the youngest
married and left no issue, the Pratt family has now disappeared w1thout
descendants -~ a very sad story.l The six children were:

1. Elizabeth €L13z1e) b 18?3 S g, Agnes Jane (Jan;e), 1878
2. Mary Anne {Annie), 1874 - .~ 5,Thomas William (Tom), 1880
3. Bleanor (Wellie), 1876 B ‘Robert Lrnest (Ernie) 1882.

As a child, Annie met with an accldent when she fell between a baat
and a wharf, whilst on a holiday, and this left her crippled. She was a
musician, a flower lover, and an artist. For many years, she was the organist
at St. John's Church of &ngland, Glengarry. . Som@ .of- her palntmngs can still -
be seen in Glengarry homes today. .

After the first wattle and daub house, Thomas Pratt built a spacious.’
‘and gracious home on his "Riversdale" property, a home that became 4 social
centre at Glengarry, with card evenings, musical evenings, and such pleasant
neighbourly gatherings. There was a magnmflcent garden and orchard, the water
for which being pumped from the river by.a windmill. There was a boat on
the rivér, and their friends, the Vaites, the Humphreys, the Kings and others
would sometimes join them there in river picnics and trips in the boat.

The youngest and last surviving member of “the famlly, Brnie Pratt
died in 1956, and the estate wastauctloned.

Thé Farmer Family of'Bush hfield Park", Glengarry. John Farmer, 1831-1911.

- John Farmer. was. one of the earliest settlers at Glengarry, gelecting
land there in 1869 Both he and his wife, formerly hary Ann nansfleld, were’
born in County Kerryy: Ireland.

- He had;arrived in &ustralla in the early 1850‘3 and for some years
tried.hxs ‘luck on.the goldfields. Aftér their marriage at Bacchus lMarsh in
1861, the couple spent a further three years in that area before moving to
Sale in 1864, where John Farmer was engaged in a carrier's business between
Sale and Port albert, In 1869, he selected land at Glengarry, and died there
in 1911. He was one of tha=pioneersfcf'the Glengarry Creamery Co. and Butter
ﬁactory, and- was 2 director of the Company for 16 years. He was also a prime
mover.in gebting. the first Glengarry school established, No. 1235. .

Children of John and lMary Farmer were:-

Eligabeth, 1862 (died young) lary Ann, 1870
Richard, 1864 o o ‘ Thomas....lB?Z
- John, 1866 c ' Elizabeth Jane, 18"4~18?4

Robert,_laéa o ; Rosanna, 1876,

Dr. Archxbald hagdcnalu, 18g6~131ﬂ.

Dr. Archibald nacdenald %he son of a Scattlsh doctor, and the
~father.of an Auspralisn doctor, was born at Antigonish, Nova Scotia in 1826,
emigrated to Australia in the .gold-rush days of the 1850's, lived at Ballarat,
andvpassibly;Staweiivar a.while, and then,eventually, set up a practice at
Horsham in 1861. There, e married Christina-langlands, a member of Horsham's
oldest. family. It seems that he came to Gippsland about 1863; and lived for
some years at Baglehawk (¢ lengarry), before transierring to Sale, where he
built his residence,"Armadale", and where he died in 1918.

He was most energetic in urging the.construction of the Scarne
Bridge,1875. He was a member of the Rosedale Shire Council, 1873-~1876, and
he took a major part in the capture of two "bushrangers" at lice in 1877.

Hrs, leliicken of Rosedale is a grand~daughter.
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John Bermingham of "Lynchville", Glengarry.

John Bermingham, 1849-1924, was born at Roscommon, Ireland in 1849,
and arrived at Port Albert in 1867. For some years he was a driver on the coach
run from Port Albert. to Rosedale.

In 1874, he merried ilizabeth Lynch (1857=-1932) of Jack River. Her
p&rents came to Australie in 1857, from Dublin. Elizabeth was born on the ship.

John Bermingham had applied for land at Glengarry in 1872, and
immediately after the marriage, the young couple settled down on their block
of land at Glengarry. This property, called"Lynchville", was half of a 640
acre allotment, the ather half baing ﬁaken up by Stephen Hambrook, a cousin of
John Bermlngﬂam‘ ;

There were ezght chzldren in the family, cons 1ut1ng of:

1., James, b. 875 ' 5,John, 1883
2. Annie, 1877 . 6.Kate, 1885
%. Thomas, 1879 o -7 . 7. Nellie, 1887
4, illiam,1881 8. Frank, 1889,

John Bern;ngham had to fighit hardagainst officaldom to gain:
recognition of his work, and his right to the property, but eventually won,
in 1880, six to emght years after h@ had been granted a lease.

James Lang of WOakenghaw" Gler &&arfv.

James Lanb, 18381911, was a sawyar a% liooney's Iiill, when he
decided in 1875, to take up farming. He called his property "Oakenshaw", after
the place in Lancashire, ingland from which he came. He gtill retained an
interest in:saw-milling, and went iauto partnership with Robert Mitchell, in a
mill at Toongabbie, and later at Glengarry.

In 1864, he hed married Mary Alice Starkie, ~844w1928), and there
were six children: B ‘

1, William abraham, 1666 James Starkie, 1873
2. John Henry, 1869 . Joseph Suthers, 1875-1876
3. nary Jane, 1871 © Benjimond Peter, 1876,
é’aw#
Mrs. sham had come from Clitheroe, Lancashlre, and the pdlr

were married at Brisbane, Queensiand,l864. : '
James Leng was a counciilor.of Rosedale @hire from 1889 until his death
in 1911, when his son, W. A. Lang was elected in his place serving in the
Council, 191Y to 1938, giving father and son a combined total of 5C years.
The scheool, officialily known as Toongabbie West, or Glengarry VWest
Schooli, No. 2884, was mors generally known locally as Oakenshaw School, since
it was established on the Lang property. B

School Petitions. L : ;

Frequently, the names cf the earliest pioneers of a region can be
found in the petitions ‘for a school. The first petition for a school in the
Glengarry area, which resulted in the estabiishment of Tocngabble South School,
No. 1235, was presented in 1872 and carried the following names:

Hugh Brown John Farmsr - Daniel O'lMara - John Waite ¢

Robert Duke John King Benjamin Russell Thomas Williams.
Additional names in 1873 were: CL U

Hugh licCauley T, King - C. Christensen James Slater

Jogeph Banks - Rodgers, - o

The petition for the school at Scarne; early in 1879rcarfied~the e
signatvres ofi-

Joan Berminghan . Christensen James. Lang - Charles Taylor
~ James Brookes . 'John Duke ~ P. leInerney = Thomas Timms
‘William Burns Joseph Fitzglbban, Walter lMarstin Thos. Twomey

James Campbell (., ¥W. Fleischer Oliver Wentworth James Nixon
William Campbell = Stephen Hambrook Thomas Pratt - fJohn:Kynef'“

; Ullllam Carey _ John Smith. v

A secoﬂhd Scarne petltxon in 1880...nessrs. Blnns Cone,- “uncan, ﬁensley.
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The Sc QOlS of G;engargg

l. HNo. 1235, Toangabbxe South State School, 1873-1894

2.  No. 2281, Toongabbie South State School (2), 1880~1892 (Scarne).
3, Ho. 2884, Tooagabbie West State School, 1888-1914 (Oakenshaw).
4. No. 2888, Glengarry State School, npened 1888.

1. No, 1235, Toongabbie State State School (1), 1873-189%4.
(41so called Haglehawk; La Trobe; and Glengarry).
The township of Glengarry did not exist when this school was founded
. in 1873. Traralgon was a very small centre, but Toongabbie, the last staging
. place on the way tc the immensely wealthy gold town, Walhalla, was the really
important place in the area., It is easy to0 understand why this school was
called Toongabbie South, rather than Traralgon North.

The school was situated about two miles or less,northe-east of the
present township of Glengarry, its location still clearly indicated by a
box~thorn hedge. If you take a square of three mile sides, with Glengarry
township in the centre of the square, and then draw the diagonal from the
north-east corner, through Glengarry to the south-west corner, three of the
schools we are dealing with, would be spaced along this diagonal. The first
school, No. 1235, would be at the north-east of this diagonal line; the
second school, No. 2281 (Scarne) would be at the south-west end of the line,
and the fourth school, No. 2888, the present Glengarry School, would be at
the centre of the line, equidistant (about two miles) fromfthe other two.

The first petition by the residents for a school at Toongabbie South,
- or Glengarry North-Rast, was presented to the authorities in 1872, and it

-~ seems that the school was either approved or set up privately by the local
people in 1873 or 1874, with a ¥Mr. B. Alezander as the first teacher.

A further petition in 1874 suggests that the Education Dep&rtmsnt
had not, up till then, been able to provide a teacher.

As stated elsewhere in this story about Glengarry, the people who
signed these early petitions were Hugh Brown, Robert Duke, John Farmer, John
King, Daniel 0O*Mara, Benjamin Russell, John Waite, Thomas Williams, all on
the first petition, with the further names of = Joseph Banks, T. King, James
Slater, C. Christensen, Hugh McCauley, and Mr. Rodgers appearing on the
second, or 1874 petition. ‘

Officially, the school opened at the beginning of 1875, with
Charles F. Woolnough as the head-teacher. However, the number of the school,
No, 1235 is a sure proof that it was registered as a State School as early as
1873, Compare,for example, its number with that of No. 1300, Denison State
School, which opened in 1874,

The name of the school was chdnged frem Toongabbie South (1) to
dZaglehawk State School in 1881; from Eaglehawk to La Trobe State School in
1883; and from La Trobe to Glengarry State School in 1885,

When the railway line came through in 1883, and a township began to
grow up at the railway head, it soon became necessary to establish a State
School there, and this was done in 1888, This central school sapped the
strength of the twe nearby schools, and they, inevitably, closed - Toongabhie
South School (2), unofficially known as "Scarne" School, in 1892, and th'e
Toongabbie South School (1) (or Eaglehawk, or La Trobe, or Glengarry) in 189%4.

The head-teachers at this latter school were:

18744eeeses lir. B, Alexander 1889-1890...Walter B. Camfield
1875~1878,. Charles F. Woolnough 1890-1894., . Jfrances M. Caiims.
1878-1889.,. Alfred William Crowe ' :

Two of these teachers are of particular interest to us.
Alfred wWilliam Crowe merely transferred from the old Glengarry school in 1889
to the new Glengarry school, where he taught for five years, 1889-1893,giving
him a total of 16 years teaching at Glengarry. Later, he taught at various
other schools in the Latrobe Valley, and Gippsland, such as Moe State School
where he was the head-teacher, 1906-1911l. He was a very competent musician,
and,indeed, his name and his musical ability have been handed down to his
grandson, and his great grandson. lir. Alfred Crowe of liorwell is the grandson,
and his son, in turn, is dnother Alfred Crowe, the eighth in a direct line
to bear that name.
Miss Frances Larg@ret Cairgg*wlsgz ;Qﬁﬁ ‘is ome of the great, early characters
of Rosedale. the was the organist, and a Sunday School teacher for many years
at the Presbyterian Church, and alsc the Church of ingland at Rosedale. At
various times she taught at_Rosedale,Sydney Cottage, Glengarry, Seaton, Cowwarr.
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2. Yoo 2281, Toopgabbie South Staﬁe School P

(ﬁncff1c1a1vg bu% more generallg knawn as ”Searne“ ‘State School)

Theugh kvswn locally as Scarne School, the official name for the
school always Rdd iBEs Toongabbie South State School (2), the number being added
to distinguish it from the earlier Toongabbie South State Schaol (haglehawk,
La Trobe, or Gleﬂgarry)p .

It was, in fact, situaﬁed ‘on "the northern'bardar of the pre-~emptive
right area of the old Searne Cattle Run, and two miles south~west of the
present township of Glengarry, close to the point where five roads meet, and
known,locally, as Five-Ways. :

On the 7th. August. 1879, a mee*lng of paxents was held at the -
home of Ifr, Mars stin, and +they dzcided that "the most desirable site for a new
State School is on a portion »f land offered by Mr. Oliver Wentworth,situated
on the east side of the road, Tyers to Toongabbie, and on the north side of the
road, which is the northern boundery of the Scarne Pre-emptive Right."Those
attending the meeting were liessrs. Pratt, lang, Bermingham, Hambrook, Smith,
Carey, Marstin, Timms and Nixon. The petition which followed, stated:

"We, the undsrsigned parents residing in Toongabbie South, being

«éebarred from sending our children to the present State School,No.1235,
through the. ﬁmpagsable state of the roads, and the distance to travel
“being over three miles, beg to recowmen& that the site selected at a
‘public meeting, and i&scrmbed in the. minutes attache&, be approved, and
a school ex cacted thege as soon as ‘possible.”

Listed ‘below ave the parents aaa thelr chmidren who would be derved
by this ‘school: : -

John anmgngbam (3 chxldrem un&er 1;), Willmam Carey (3), James Brooks (5),
John Duke (1) John Xyne (5), Stephen Hambrook (2), James Lang (5),Walter
Marstin (1), Thomas Pratt &33 James Nixon (7), John Smith (6), Thomas
Timns (5), Thama Twomey (6), and Charles Taylor (5).
Chaxlas Taylor is shewn as a hatel»keeper, all the others were
farmers. »
Another 218% names %ae children expecte& to uttbnd. They were: . .

CONE. ..o llary (6), Owen (5), Jobn (3), Edwin (2), and Catherine (1).
Bimns.......0o0cge (12), Matthew (10), Walter (7), and Maria (4). »
Brooks. ..., Blizabeth (12), Bertie (9), Ellen (6), Henry (7%%
Duncam...ai“waman (11), Fred (8), Jessie (6); Christobel (4 Grace (1). -~
“They live nearer Tyers School, but the road is impassable. .
Fig nbon,gia seph -(13), Edward (11), Michael (10), Mary (9),El&zabeth (7),
' and Catherine (6). A difficult creek ta cross.

Hensluy..,.oiaraaa (7% Lilian (9), Swdney (8).

lower......donie (12), Barbara (10), James (9, Charles (7)
Marstin.....Charles (14),
McInerney...Four children, aged 6, 4%, 3, and 1.
Pleischer...Themas (12). Father has Jjust died,and family may 1eave.
Pratt.......ETxyabﬁbh (6), snnie (4), Fllen (3). - '

ssell.....Hovwie¥ (33), laria (11), Susan (8).

Smlthoa.aa&@F&Tq her (14}, Tames (16), William (10), Catherine (7).
Toylor......Elizabeth (129, George (7), 41£ (9), Ben (5), Lilian (3)e¢
Timms.......Four children aged 9, 7, 5 and 3.
TwemeJa.*a,,wwllﬁ (11), Arfred (9), Thomas (5), Augustus (3).

The head:- teachers at thls school (Scarne), serving the area west
of the presen’t “cwnship of Glangaxry, were:

~ 1880~1832, ;Ruth Broadway 1887~i888..Helen B. Pennycuiok
. 1882-1885 c@xﬁxgaxet Seott. 1888-1889, ,Elizabeth J. Lister
188§w1866sﬂuarv J. Robertson 1889~1892‘.Ju1ia A, Coonmber

1886-1887 . .Thomag E. Dobson.

Thomas W, Kewish is shown as the heaﬁwteaCﬁar briefly in the
early part of »882, but verhaps he was only relieving at the school.
- A Jevter froum Miss J. &, Coomber to the Department reports
that she ceased teaching at the school, 3.30 p.m., ionday, 8/8/1892.
She then became the head~teacher at o, 273C, Yinnar South School.
Thomas B. Dobson nmust have gone straight from "Scarne" School
to Mce State School,(Wo. 2142), where ha was the head~teacher, 18871888,

-
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3. Toongabbie West State. School, Ho. 2884 (Gakens}mw Y.

This school was lmown locally.as “Oak@nshawﬁ because it was built
on James Lang's property of that name.

. In 1887, neither the Bducation Deparﬁment nor the people of Glengarry
knew what to do about the schools in the area, b.cause the new railwaﬁ* and
the rise of a'new township had chan ed the population placement. There were
three interlocking problems. The people at Toongabbie West wanted, and needed
a school there. The new township of Glengarry needed a school, and the people
near the two Toongdbbie South schools (l§ and (2), now known as Glengarry
and "Scarne" respectively, did not want their schools closed or moved.

‘Alfred Crowe, for example, wrote to the district inspector, iir,
Hepburn, suggesting the removal of his school (ﬂo. 1235) to the station,
and #0 "to have one school instead of three”, and then to establish a new
. 8chool at Toongabbie West". This was the plan eventually adopted. -

‘ However, lir. Jackson Orr wrote a letter, 12/12/87, strenuously :
oppesing the shifting of No, 1235 into the townskip, "as a parent of eight
children, and likely to have eight more" (We have never discovered if lir.
Orr achieved his ambition). :

The Toongabbie West parents hald a meetzng in the Mechanics! Institute,

' Glengarry, Friday, 23/9/1887, and unanimously decided to ask for a school in
the north-west of the area,

William Carey offered to lease his barn for six months as temporary
premises for the new school.

The Board of udvice thought the site chosen was unsuitable, since
it was close to "a dangerous creek", and "because of the impenetrable. nature
of the scrub surrounding it, and the difficulty of approaching it", .

A district inspeéctor, William Hamilton, thought the site, on a h;ll,
. . was excellent, that the creek was not dangerous, and that in any case, it
would be bridged within two months.

The school opened in July, 1888, In January,1889, James Lang reported
that Mr. Carey needed his barn in three weeks' time, that there were 46 nupils
on the roll (Average sattendance of 33) ,and that the Department had done
nothing about providing a proper school building,

' The school had to be closed for seven months, until August, 188
when teacher and pupils moved in to their new schuvol on Mr. Lang's property
of Oakenshaw.

‘Twice the school was threatened with bush—flres. In January, 1898,
the year of the Great Gippsland Fires, John Bermingham wrote,"Unless rain
falls tonight or tomorrow, the Toongasbbie West State School and residence
will be in great danger of getting burnt by bush fires raging to the north,

- within 40 chains, and on the west, within three-quarters of a mile. The
school is surrounded by scrub and timber. Everyone is engaged trying to save
his own place". In ifarch, 1914, the teacher, Mrs. Mary Cameron, wrote that
a bush~fire had threatened the school.. o - 0

Head-teachers. at the school Were.jwi> '

1888»1891..hary Brodefick , i 1903~1907..Henry Se O*Nelll

18980 IR ..‘)O’U.A-u LQT.‘{‘I’t P ’ 1910“’191490&1?3 'y I:&m’ 4'5:! Came«?m

. 18991903, JHdward J. Grieve

We have been unable to find the exact date of the closure of the
school, since our records end in 1914,

. John Kyne's selection was right where Glengarry township is new,
He had seven children ~ Owen, Mary, John, Francie, Ted, Ellie and Rosie,

Owen, Francie and Resie, all became feachers, with Rose Kyne being stationed
at "Oakenshaw" for at least twe years, 1908~1910. She was also at the Rosedale
school (as an a&sistant), and ether schoels in Gippsland, Phonse Kyne, the
former, well-known Cellingwoed foetballer was a son of Owen Kyne. :

‘ Mrs, Harrison, formerly Nellie Bermingham, daughter of John
Bermingham, was also a teagher in several Latrobe Valley schools, including
Cowwarr, Trarvalgen and Sale, She went te school at "Oakenshaw" in the time
of Zdward J, Grieve, who, she says, was an exdéllent teacher, In 1901, when
Australia became a Commonwealth, at a celebration to mark the occasion, she
planted a Norfolk pine on one side of the entrance gate, and Ada L&ng,
oak tree on the other.

. She tells us that Ir. Grleve,eventually, became the head»teacher
of Williamstown State School; that one of his sons became the fmrst :
Superintendent Doctor at St. Vincent's Hospital, lelbourne; and that anather
son,-is, or Was, a. prafess@r at Perth University. Western Australia. o

.
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State,Scheal (the resent schoolz, 18384 |

The numbers of the two schoels, Glengarry ‘est, No. 2884, and
Glengarry, No, 2888, indicated that thay'wera ogened at about the same time,
Fo. 2888, Glengarry State School began, 24/7/88 in the local Mechanics' Hall,
and was conducted there for a little over a year, until %0/9/89, when the new
school building - across the road from the .present school building -~ was

4. Noo ?BSBL_Glegg ;w

.. ready for occupation. This szte mist have been law«lying, since there was

constant dampness trouble, aggravated by the drainage works of the school's
neighbour, John Kyne. The eventual solutlﬂn of this trouble was the shifting
of the school to its present gite ~a move which took place in 1915.

There is a short, mnteresting descriptian of the township of
Glengarry, given in January, 1888, by Mr. Hark Ellwood, who was objecting to
the establishment of a school in Glengarry, in opposition to the original
school, No. 1235, approxzmately two miles away. He belittled the place, saying
that it consisted only of two hotels (Ccmmercial Hotel and Shamrock Hotel),
two stores, a butcher's, a blacksmith's,two cottages, and a sawmill, To the
unbiassed reader, however, this seems to Be high praise rather than condemn-
~ation, and ample justification for the establlshment of a school. L
- Head~teachers at the school have been:-

© '1888.......51lizabeth Cheyne 1942~1045, . Arthur Di-Ward

1889~1893., .Alfred William Crowe 1945-1950. . Reuben Hi" Bennett
- 1893-1894, Mrs, Angelina Thomson =1951~195),.A1fr&d Haley
1894~1917..James Thomson 195541957, ,Stanley Annear
19171920, .John BE. Chenhall 1958. 44444 .George Valentine

--1920-1922, ;George J. uick - 1958~1960, .Edwin G. Prince
1922-1931. ,James::R. George : 1961......4Valerie Ji Sinclair

. 1:1931~1933, JDavid A. Dorrity = 1961,.......Ronald Vinzer

) lg&:3 "‘19370 awllll&m ﬂ.i Ha‘tsm : 1962¢ vEsEw .I*«enile‘th Ll ROg,’erS
1937~1941..Victor J. Barlow 1963¢......David W. Pollock
1941~1942.,bydney H. ¥Wickens = .. 1964~1971.,.Willian Charles Sutton.

Nrse Angellna mhomﬁon, 1893~1894, was the Wlxe 0¢ Jamea Thomstn,
her successor at the school. Befare her marriage, she W&w ‘Niss Angalnna :
Canale,. and both she and her husbanﬁ had been teaching at country schools in
the Drouin-‘area before coming to Glangdrry. Later on,..she was the sewingu
mlatress at Glengarry school. f,

Jamas'?homson re;gneé at the school for 23 jeara, 1894»1917.

Thel@l ngar rv Schaél Reg;%t&rn

From the flrst two ‘pages of the regxster, we can calculate that .
the gross envolment of the. schooi in its flrst year, 1883, was 45, Pupils were.

Annie and John Bermlngham, isily Brooks; Ghrlsﬁmna and hary Bryde;
Thomés , hiaggie, Katie“and Jamss Considines; Hary Drane; William Farrier;
James, Frandes, lauriée and John Hambrook; Beatrice Coghlan; George Fisk;
Ada, Jessie, Annie and Hector licNeil; -~ Robert: ﬁnwrlght,} Annzs Hazel;
Annie, George, Elizabeth, Stewart and William Kings - R

Lily, Clara, Thomas, Nellie and Edward Taylor; L i
Owen, John, Frances, Hdwarg, Ellen and Rose Kyne; “‘: U s
Lary, Katie, and Nelldie Willians Gt .

New enrolments in the second year, 1889, werer . T

hlfred innie, Bdward, and Vichox Crowe; Eliza,ﬁnnle, an@eAgmea Murtagh,
Harry, Herbert, Ada, and Daniel Lillingston; lNarion and Jessie Tncmas,j
Alice, Henry, John, Willism and James Duke; Daisy and Lily Bryde; .
arthur, Beatrice, Lily, and Tler@nce Buff, ‘Charles Berg; Samuel Eavy,
_iate Bermmnghamy;:Jllllam ahxtﬁxe, ,Rﬁ%ert Dukes. Aléxander Horney
“Isabel Paul; James King (172) (This-was the James King, who became a
teacher. ‘He left lipe . State School dn: 1906, to go to Victoria's first high
school, the helbourne Cantznu&txon School » pregumably to ﬁeaeh there)

Parenta and Thelr Oceugatienﬁ ' i
Iin uha Register, most of the parents are shown as belng farmers,
Some- of the others were: ¥
. hﬁtelﬁKeQ2M§S’* Charles. Taylor~<30hn licNeill; Kate Cognlan, William Mcoreg .
" and Henry Smith. ‘
Station-lasters:— James Considine and Alexander lowatt.

4 Blackemlthﬁ. Charles Williems and Harry Reynolds.
© Carriers:- Henry Berg; William Friar and Charles andrews.

Storekeepers:-~ VWilliam Horne and Richard King. - Wheélwrlggt - John Holt.°
Commigsion Agent:~ John Doctor Heywood. Railway iorker:-  John Duke.
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Journal of the horwell ﬂlstorlcal &ocmety. Published quarterly - on the 15th.
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Treasurer.....¢ hrs. G. Taylor, 17 Dénise Strggt, liorwell, 3840,

Latrobe Valley Historical Societies.
_ - Remaining Programmée for 1971. .
Tuesday, 24th. August...lonthly lieeting at the Civic Reception Rooms,
L - .Traralgon, of the Traralgon Historical Society.
Guest Speaker........r. Ralph Durr.
Subjectessessensssa"Sovereign Hill", lorth Ballarat.
For supper, on this occasion, and on all -other occasions, would
members contribute by bringing a plate of supper edibles.

Fridey, 24th. September...Third innual Dinner of the Combined Latrobe
Valley Historical Societies, to be held at Phelan's Restaurant,
Traralgon, commencing at 6.30 p.m.

Guest Opeakersseseslire C. G. Gregory of Hedley,South Gippsland.
Subjecteseecersse."The History of Port Albert”.
Bookings ~ $3-00 per person,should be made before 1lst, September.

Saturday and Sunday, 2nd. and 3rd. October,... "Back-to-Cowwarr".
This promises to be a most pleasant, well-organized function,and
it should attract a large crowd of visitors to this pretty,litile
township -~ one of the oldest in the Latrobe Valley.
A book, "The History of Cowwarr, 1l868-1971" is being published
\ far ‘the occasion. i limited number of copmes will be available at
5100 per Jcopy. |

Fridey to Sunday, lst o 3rd. October,.... The Fourth Biennial Conference
of the RH3Y will be held in lielbourne, with the Victorian Arts Centre,
and the Universiﬁy of ilelbourne being the principal venues.:

Yonday, 1lth, October.....lonthly leeting of the Traralgon Historical Society,
at the Civic Reception Rooms.
Guest! Speakers....hrs. Jean Court ‘and lirs. Teasdale (Librarian).
Subject.... "Sarly uritings about uarly Austyralian History".

hond&y. 8the Hgvember....,honthly lieeting of the Traralgon Historical Society.
Guest Speaker....lir. @. L. Crooke, af Holey Plalns.
DUbJQC";. LR L B I ’: ROS&‘@.&:&B" b -

Mcgggzg 13the December....Ch:}stmas Partyu
Guest Speaker....lir., indy Ringin, Dacretary, hoe Eistcrlcal

Society.

Subject......."Bogong Jack“

ey

The Current Issue of the "vews"

We have davated thls number, almasﬁ entlrelv to Gowwarr, h0p1mg to
arouse,a healthy interest in its "Back-to-Cowwarr Calebratlans“, early in
Getober, ' We:invite those, who may be better informed than we are on the
story of Cowwarr, to add 1o, or subtmact: fram, our account of the history
of the place. In that way, the book on Cowwarr how being assembled may be
made a more interesting, a more accurate, and therefore a better History of
Cowwarr, than it could otherwise be. Speak now, or else for ever hold your
peace,

[




Page 26. _
The Morwell Historical Society News, Vols: 20; Nou 3. weesvosseesss.s:15/8/71,

Vlotorlan Committee of Affillated Hxstorical Socletges.
 Gippsland Region.

Morwell High School,
: ‘ : .. Morwell » 3840
To the becretarles of G ﬁvsland Hmstorical Socxetma&* : 4th, sugust, 1971

Balrnsdale H, S. ' Leongatha H.S. OmeovH Sa Stratford H.S.
Berwich H. 8. " Maffra H, S. -~ "~ Orbost H. S.  Warragul H. S.
Foster H. S. Moe H. S, .. Traralgon H. S. VWonthaggi H. S.

Korumburra H. 3. Morwell H. S. Sale Ho S. Yarram 35, Se

Dear Secretaries, ' e T

The existence of a prpsland Federatlon cf Hlstormcal
Societies is more &maglnary than real, more a matter of wishful thznkzng'than
of actual fact. The idea was sponsored by the Royal Victorian Historical
Society, some two or three years ago, but in Gippsland, at least, the theory
has not yet become a concrete reality. Perhaps it is time we considered if
our Societies are in favour of such a Federation, if they are willing to
cooperate, and if an executive should be formally appointed or elected. To
test the feslings amongst our Gippsland Societies, we have now decided to call
a meeting, inviting all our Societies to send at least one delegate. This
meeting will bhe held: '

Sunday, 12th. Septembnr&lQZI, at Morwell Higﬁ School, 11~00 a.m, t0 3 00 psm,

Ihe programme will be:.

1100 Assembly and Lorning Tea
11-15 Business Meeting. Reports of Delegates
12-45 Lunch. we suggest that delegates brlng eut lunches with them.
Tea and Coffee will be provided.
1-30 Business heetlng‘ Address on, "HEarly Dascrlptlons of Gippsland
Togns".
3-00 Afternoon Tea and Closure.

Business ~
The main items of business w1ll be.'.

1. Formatlcn of a Gippsland Federation of Historical Soc1etie$ o~ to be or
not to bel

2, i Federation - or Two Federations (uest Glppsland and East prpsland)

The extremities of our 1ong, peanantwshaped Gippsland are pretty
remote from one another. For example, to meet at Morwell, delegates from
Omeo and Orbost will have to travel 164 and 143 miles respectively; from :
the eastern extremity; and the Berwick ﬁelegate will have to travel 72
milés from the western extremity. .

 Would it be. Dbetter. to have Marwell as the ﬂentre for a weat Gippsland
Region, and Stratford for an Hast Glppsland Region?

3, If a Pederation (ar Federatlons) is formally esﬁabilshed,‘ aﬁﬁexecutivef
(or Executives) must be elected. What meetings should be held, and when,
and where? One suggestion is that there should be an annual meeting, the
first or second Sunday in Aprll, and -an annual ﬁlnner, the flrét and- -+ E
second F«aaag in"Cotober.”

4. Reports. Basic information Which .should be supplied is:

(a). Names and addresses of the President and the Secretary of each
Soclety. , -

%b) Date, time and place of regular meetlngs.‘

¢). Fumber of members. » o

(d). Advance notice of the year's programme, or of coming'programmes;‘

» Would Secretaries please notify me, before the end of August,
if d»legates will be attending the Meeting, Sunday, 12th. September?.
Would Secretaries also please send in the basic informationm,
listed above, of their reports? If this is done, we can arrange for this
matter to be printed and made available to all, obviating the need for an
oral report, and saving a great deal of time.
I. T. Maddern
Ve C'nshoo. Regional Representative.
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The History of Cowwarr.

L Cowwarr is a small township on the Traralgonuﬂeyfield Road, eighteen
miles fTOm Traralgon, and Seven miles from Heyfield. It is. also a railway
stopping place on the loop line, which branches off the main line at Traralgon,
and passes through Glengarry, Toongabbie, Cowwarr, Heyfield, Tinamba, Maffra,
to join the main Melbourne-Bairnsdale line again, at Stratford. A glance at
the map will show that it is less than fifteen miles away from Walhalla, as
the crow flies, a little south of due east from Walhalla.

It was the discovery of gold at Walhalla in December, 1862, which
brought about the establishment of the transport and supply centres of :
Toongabbie (1863), and Cowwarr (1868), situated on the plains, just before the
rugged mountain area begins, turning the "crow-flying" distance of 15 miles,
into a considerably 1onger road over rough, and dﬁfflcult mountain tracks,
for the: earth-~bound miners.

The road through Taengabble was the flrst &mmect road from Sale to
Walhalla - (1863), but an alternatlve raad was &eveloped through Cowwarr, about
1868; - .

The Forty-Second, og Cowwarr._

Cowwarr was first called The Forty-~Second, surely a strange name for
any township, and one liable to misinterpretation, as though it was built at
the forty-second milestone from somewhere, or that it was the forty-second
township established in Gippsland. In fact, it was called The Forty-Second,
because the authorities allowed selectors to take up land in this area, under
the provisions of the forty-second clause of the Amendment to the Land Act
of 1865. This clause reads:

"The Governor»xnncauncll may, from time to tlme, 1ssue licences |
for any period,not exceeding one year, which shall entitle the holders
. .. To reside on or cultivate any lands on any gold-fields, within the
meaning of any act, relative to the goldfields or adjacent lands thereto,
not exceeding 20 acres, subgect to: the payment of the 1lcence fee and
such terms approved."

Up till 1869, the squatiers held the bulk of ﬁhe wide lands of
Victoria. They did not own the land, but held, individually, anything from
ten to fifty square miles of land on yearly leases for the price of a few
pounds each. The discovery of gold introduced a new situation, and on the
gold-fields, miners' rights replaced the squatters' leases. Provision had
to be made, not only for a township area at any gold strike, but for. transit
towns on the way to the goldfields, and perhaps for adjacent farming areas, -
on which food could be grown for the mining towns: While Toongabbie was
mainly a "packing-centre", where goods were transferred from the wagons and
drays to padthorses and mules to finish the last section of the long kaul to
Walhalla, presumably places like Glengarry and Cowwarr were meant to be
agricultural or farming centres, producing some of the vast quantities of *
food needed by the gold-miners of Walhalla and neighboring strikes. :

It was not until 1869, and 1870-71, that further Land Acts limited
squatters to a pre-emptive right of 640 acres, and threw open the rest of
the agricultural and pastaral lands to selectors, entitled to select 320
acres each. -

Twenty Acres or Bighty Acres,

Twenty acres of land seems a very*small area for a farm, and soon ,
we flnd the holders of land at Cowwarr voicing ‘their protests. The "Gippsland
Times" for the 12th. June, 1869, reported that a meeting was held at Cowwarr
to protest about the 42nd "clause of the Amendment. to the 1965 Land Act
limiting selection to 20 acres, a much less. -generous provision than the
12th. Section, which allowed the selection’ of 80, or 120 acres, apparently, -
the protestors convinced the authorities, for we read of no further protests,
and a survey of the district, 1870-1871, shows regular allctments of 80 acres
or more, - . -

The hame,,“Cowwarr"

The name of "he Fortvaecond" for the townshlp,did not last very
long ~ parhaps no more than a year, officially. In the issue of the "Gippsland
Times" for 23rd. January, 1869, we are told that "the inhabitants of that
rapidly rising little town, Cewwarr, more familiarly known as the Forty-
Second Township, have had reserved an area of one acre, for a Catholic Church."
No-one seems to know who bestowed the name of "Cowwarr", (also spelt
"Cowar®, "Cowarr", and "Cowwar'", at various t;mes), but one authority says
that it is an abormglnal word meaning "mouritain”, ‘“hounﬁamnéView" would be a
better description, for Cawwarr is s1tutated on the edge of 'a plain.
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The First Settlers at Cawwarr.

Ve have a reasonably full list of ‘the early families that settled at
Cowwarr or in the Cowwarr District. These have been obtained from the first
petitions for the first two schools, the Church of England School, and the
Roman Catholic School, both established in 1869; and from the early maps of
the tawnship and the district, provided by the Lands Department. Presumably,
the first surveys were made as early as 1868, or possibly a year earlier, and
then, as the blocks of land were sold, the owners' names were added to the
survey maps.

Roman Catholmc Schaol Petitxogegs, 16(3[1@[0.

© An applicatzﬁntfor.ald for the Roman Catholic School in Cowwarr,
which really means an application for the acceptance of this school as the
Cowwarr Common School, entitled to government financiel assistance, was made .
16/9/1870 by Rev. Matthew Hayes, a Roman Catholic clergyman, resident at
Stratford, and by William Fogarty, storekeeper; Theodor Gebhardt, hotel-keeper;
Hugh Harkin, farmer; Patrick O'Brien, farmer and miner; and James Rice, farmer .
and miner. In this petition, they listed the following families, whose
children were attending or would be attending the school::

William Fogarty Catherine Gibney (5 years);
Joseph Fitzgibbon (the ‘teacher) —=. Joseph (4%) ; Bdward (3), Michaal (2),»
Theodor. Gebhardt —---Minnie (3);.
Mary Hillier - Eliza (11);
Charles Johnson —-——Elizabeth (16); Jane (15); Catherine (13), Caroline (10), ,
Isabella (8); Mary (6); Louisa (6); Emma (4); ﬁ
John Kilmarbin —-——--Daniel (14%; inne (11); Mary (9): ionnal (35
Peter MoEwen w=—-—-—-Richard (9); Peter (7); Robert (5); Edward (3);
David Morgan ~————William (11); Catherine (9), Fanny (7) John (5)
© David (5); Ellen (2);
Denis O'Brien —————-Elizabeth Holliday (14); Denis: (5); Patrick (4);-
Baward (4); William (2), '
Patrick O‘Brlen ——mme(atherine (Q)
James Rice =mrm—mmmm—- Michael Doyle (16); James 0'Connor (11), Francis (5),
' Susan (3); alice (2); Mary 0'Comnor (8); "
James Woadheuse ———eeBllen (15)3 James(M) Alexander (12); i::.lliam (10),
. ‘Daniel. ES) Charles (6), David (4); :
mdward Wykes -*-~~-Daniel 113 Sarah (8).5

>

5 Cfahn» (6);

‘This petztion was supported by the 31gnatures of the: fcllawing St
fifty residentss S

John Alliss —=————=—-John (3), Susan (7); Ada (5)
John Baker w=wmmm-we—slary Jane (8); Alice '(5); Martha (3), ) ’
John Buntine ~-~~#@—Thnmas (15); Mary Ann (13) Jane Symington (11); Hugh

" hlexander (9); John Symington (7); Robert (5); Ben,}amin (3),
William Campbell =—-—~James (6); William (4); S :
John Drane ———we=wm——-Catherine (13); Annie (10), Frederick (7);
Theodor Gebhardt ----Robert Smith (9);
Robert Henry ————--—-largaret (6); John (4); e e
41fred Hollingsworth —— Elizabeth (10); Sarah (8) Mary (6)' Ellen (3);alfred (3);
Thomas Irvine —w————-Jessie (6); George (4);
Charles Johnson ———<~Cathérine (4);Caroline (12);Isabella (10); Louisa (8) Mary (8);
James Johns m-——————-Bmily (11); Annie (9); Harriet (7); James (5) |
Edward Jones ————e—--—lirancis (14); Eliza {10)
Edward Martin ——-—-———Ellen (16); Annie (14); mnicent (11)
Francis Sherwood --=-isabella (10); Louisa (6) o ‘
Henry Whittles —----Henry (14); Jessie %13); William (11), Esther (9),

‘Lucy (7): Caroline (4); »
Samuel Allardyce; Andrew Falla; Robert liann; John. Stephen5°
Richard Andrews: James Farrow; Bdward Martin,sen. Charles Thompson;
William Adubrey; =~ - Martin: Fox; - Robert Martin; . - BEdwaird Timmins;
John Bodycomb; .~ .Joseph Garrett; . James lMitchell;" John Re. Talmme,‘j R
Benjamin Clarke; =  Henry Hawthorne; Francis Moore; - -William Tulloch; = -
John Colquhoun; . : J. A, King; * ~  Villiam O'Meara; * George Walker .- ™!
William Cook - Alex Lyons; . * Richard Packett; Henry Walker,A
He Eavies' “‘f~f .- uHenry Nalllngton John Powell; . Henry Williams;

Thomas Young.

Map Nemes (not mentioned in school 1ints) were....ﬁ. Lee; E. Lee; A Boormaﬁ,“¥37
Neilson; Doyle; John Wilson; Napper; E. Gibney; ‘and J.C.J. Johnson = S
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A Condensed History of Cowwarr.

There is some%mmes, some advantage to be gained by telling the main
story of a locality, or giving its general background, before going on to the
detailed story, or the history of individual femilies, or organizations, such as
the first pioneers, or a particular church, or institution,

Some of our suiuvrce material comes from a series of articles in the
Traralgon "Journal", 11/1/1937 to 22/3/37, written by ¥r. O. S. Martin, son of
an early head-teacher at Cowwarr State School, Mr. Thomas P. Martin (1889-1901),
supplemented by further information from another former, old resident, the
late Mrs., Mary Anne Iseppi (nee Smith). The State School records held at the
school, and also at the Latrobe Library; early survey maps held by the Lands
Department; and information provided by the yearly Municipal Directories, are
important source material also.

We know that Cowwarr began in 1868, when selectors were allowed to
take up 20 acres of land at first, and then 80 acres, because the area was
accepted as being within the allowable margins of a gold field.

In 1869, two schools were established, - a Roman Catholic School
within the township boundaries, and a Church of England School, about 1+ miles
west of the township. Por some time, there was rivalry between the two schools
as to which one would gain the favour of the authorities, and be accepted as
the Cowwarr Common Schuol, with government subsidies. The Roman Catholic School
proved to be the. better patronized, and it became the Cowwarr Common School
until the begwnnl of 1873, when subsidized Common Schools were replaced,
under the Great Lduﬁdtlﬁn Act of December, 1873, by free and compulsory State
Schools. Under.a special provision of the Bducation Act, the Roman Catholic
Common School, was allowed to continue for another five years, as & Capitation
School, or a school sub31dlzad .by the Government at a rate of so much per
head, or per pup;l. )

This arrangement ceased in necember,1877, at the end of the five yeays'
grace, when a rczular State School, No. 1967, was opened, its first pupils
all transferring in December,1877, from the Cowwarr Capitation School. But
the Roman Catholic School continued to exist, the lineal descendent of that
first Catholic School, cpened in 1869,

= " In its first full year, 1878, the Cowwarr State School had a gross
enrolment of 77 pupils. Since the Roman Catholic School might well have had
just as big an enrolment (for Cowwarr has always been a very strong Catholie
centre) Cowwarr in 1878 must have been a very thriving little township.

' The 1880 Municipal Directory showed 00wwa?1n%as a township within the _
Rosedale Shire) as having two churches, two hotels, and a population of 300
people, but by 1885, when a third hotel had been established, the population
figure was drastically amended to 115 people. Perhaps the first figure of
300 included the surrounding farmers, and perhaps the second figure referred
only to the township proper.

~ The Traralgon-Feyfield-Maffra-Stratford loop railway line was built
in 1883,  and must have helpad considerably in firmly establishing the township,

An interes sbing comment in the 1885 Directory was that "the largest
racehorse training-stable in Gippsland is at Cowwarr". :

In 1902, the establishment of a butter factory at Cowwarr was neted,
and the population was given as 200.

Postmistre: a&s listed were: 18941898, Mrs. Gebhardi; 1899~1910,

Dora (Dorathea Elizz) Andrews.

Cowwarr identitiss who have served on the Rosedale Shire Council have
been William Fogariy, 1880-84 and 1889-1919; David Morgan, 1907-15 and 1926-44;
James Stewart Neilson, 1916-26; David Aubrey, 1922-25; and Norman Thurman
Farley, 1963~70. The present representative is Cr.Barrett John Houston,
elected in Deccumber 1970, in the byﬁelecticn resulting from the death of Cr.

N. T. Parley.

Cowwarr w1ll always be a p"etty, a pleasant, and a prosperous little
township, surrounded as it is by rich,pastoral land, supporting magnificent
homesteads, but it has declined as a township since the more favourable days of
the early years of this ceniury, and it could easily decline further. The
modern tendencies towards bigger holdings, smaller families, better roads,faster
cars, and centralisation, all tell against the little townships. The butter-
factory is closed; there is now only one hotel, where once there were three;
the Catholic School has closed with the pupils and teaching sisters travelling
daily to Heyfield; and the State School enrolment is as small as it has ever
been. The gold of Walhalla, which brought Cowwarr into existence, has gone,
and the big towns of Sale, Traralgon and Morwell shepherd little Cowwarr away
from the main highway, Melbourne to Sale.,
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Street Names.,

To names are gifén‘on the survey map té.ﬁhe,sevénwsﬁréets that bound "
and divide the township into blocks. sccording to the local residents, the
streets we have marked A.and B. still remain nameless. The others are

fain Street, or Toongabbienﬂeyfield Road.A
‘Morgan Street
Cricket Street
Church Sireet

Ce
D
E
F
G = Backwater Road.

o un il .

Land-Holders.

The six persons holding land on the boundaries of ﬁhe tGWHShl? e e R
Joseph Garrett, Thomas Garrett, Samuel Boyd, Robert Charles Cunningham Ne;lson,-w‘*
Peter McEwan, and Denis Q'Brlen all held their land under the provisjons ™ -~
of the 42nd. clause of the amendment to the 1865 Land Act, which, at flrst, S
limited the holding to 20 acres. This was soon extended to 80 acres. - S

~ Allotment Owners, ' R

Apparently, the first sale of allotments was made in ﬁctober, 1868,_:

(30/10/1868), exactly one month after the first survey. Further sales were

made 24/8/1869; 10/12/1869; .17/7/1870; 25/10/1870; 23/5/72; ~ 12/11/72.

Purchasers were: In 1868...J.C.J.Johnson; C.Napper; J. Eapper, k.Hapﬂer,

In 1869 ...C. Johnston; J. Rice; W.Hillier; J.A. Geold 3. Hmckey, L

In 1870....58. Gibney; -W. Fogarty; .

In 1872....8. Rice; J. Garrett; T. Gebhardt;»ln'18744.. G Relly.
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Some Cowgarr Families.

Space does not permlt us to tell the s*ory of every interesting
Cowwarr family. We must limit ourselves to a few of those families, whose names
have been connected with chwarr for approximately 100 years,-the pioneers and
their descendents. - :

Denis O'Brien, 1837-~1921.

Denis O'Brien was born at Abington, County Limerick, Ireland, in 1837,
emigrated to Victoria in 1861, at the age of 24 years, married liss Mary Gleeson
at lelbourne in 1864, and died at St. Kilda, 5/5/1921. Children of his first
marriage were Denis (1865), Patrick (1867), Bdmund (1869); william (1871),

Mary Jane (1874), Nargaret (1878) and Nora (1880). After the death of his first
wife, he married Catherine Clancy in Melbourne, in 1886.

Denis O'Brien joined several gold~rushes before finding his way to
Stringer's Creek (Walhalla), where he made his fortune, and then turned to
farming at Cowwarr, becoming the biggest land-holder in the distriet. In the
1890's he further increased his land holdings by buying that part of the Tyson
Estate of Heyfield, lying between Cowwarr and the township of Heyfield, for
£76,000 cash. All of this property is still in the hands of his descendents.

Patrick: O'Brlen, l828~1292.

'Patrick O'Brien was not related to Denis O'Brien, but they met on ‘the
golduflelda, and became close friends for life, He too, made his fortune at
Walballa, and then settled down on the land at Cowwarr. He was born at Orwell,
Prince Hdward Island (whieh is situated in the Gulf of St.lLawrence, Canada, and,
incidentally, which is. the smallest province in Canada) in 1828, the son of
Gregory O!Brien and Catherine O'Brien (nee MoCarthy). He emigrated to Australia
about 1848; just before the beginning of the gold era in 1851, He first mined
on the Yarra River, and then, in succession on the gold fields at Caledonia,
sZmerald, Tanjil (where he met Denis O'Br:en), hatlcck, Woods Polnt Donnelly's
Creek, and finally Walhalla.

In 1864, he married liss Ellen Mulecahy at Brighton, lMelbourne, and
their children were Catherine (1869), inne (1872¥ Gregory (1874); Mary (18763
Ellen (1878), John Stephen (1881), ﬂga5h3(1883), Ita (1876) and Teresa (1878

Theodor Gebhardt, 1824-~1880.
Theodor Gebhardt, of German parentage, was boru in Po?and, where his
father was Carl Gebhardt, a brass founder. He came to Victoria in 1850, and in .
1853, married Miss Wilhelmina loeller, in Melbourne. The couple had no children
but adopted a little girl, known as iilhelmina Gebhardt. From evidence available,
it seems probable that the little girl was a relative,sent to them from Germany,
Theodor Gebhardt was both the first hotel«keepex (Crwcket Club Hotel),
and the first postmaster at Cowwarr. Apparently the Gebhardt family continued -
to conduct the post-office after Theodor's death, for Hrs.Wilhelmina Gebhardt
is shown as the post-mistress up to 1898, when her grand«daughter, Dorathea:
Eliza Andrews succaeded her and held the position until 1937.

James Rice, and mllen Elce, 1846~1882. ‘

James Rice was ‘one of Cowwarr's early personalxtlesg but we are
handicapped in our research into his story by the fact that we do not know when
he died, and we are therefore unable to procure a copy of his death certificate.
Apparently he died while travelling in the Dargo area, and was buried,tempor-
arily,by the roadside. Before better funeral arrangements could be made, a fire
swept through the area, destroying the markings of the grave.

However, from his wife's death certificate, we find that she was
formerly Ellen Connor, born 1846; the daughter of David and Honora Conunor (nee
O'Connor), -and that she married James Rice in in 1863, Children of the couple
were Francis (1865), Susan (1867), Alice (1868), David (1870), arthur (1872),
laurice (1874), Agatha (1877); Tora (1879), Sydney (1881), Vincent (1883), and
Leo Sebastian (1886).

Hugh Harkin, 18%8-1892. ‘ '
Hugh Harkin's name appears on the Catholic School petition of 1870,

and he is listed as a member of the School Committee. He was born in County
Donegal, Ireland, in 1838, the son of Hugh Harkin, farmer, and 4Anabella Harkin
(nee Doherty).f He came to Australla in 1855, and in 1868, married Idss kary
lulcahy, at Brighton. Children of the family were John (1870)q illen (1872),
Hannabella (1873), Rosanna (1875), Gerald (1877), Frances (1931), and Mary
Clare (1885). He lies buried in the Sale Cemetery.
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Some Cowwarr P es \continued

¥illiam Fogarty, 1839-1927. ‘

William Fogarty opened the first store in Cowwarr, in 1870 or
earlier, He was born in Ireland in 1839, the son of James Fogarty, farmer.
and liary Fogarty (nee Ryan). He emigrated to Victoria in 1866, and was
twice married, His first wife was lLdss Mary Kemnedy, whom he married in
1867 at liaffra, and their children were lary (1870), Winifred (1872),
Catherine: {1874), and Agnes (1876) Lirs. lary Fogarty died in 1876, aged . '
29 years,

« 7 In 1880, william Fogarty married L;ss Ellen Doyle, at Creswick,
and “their children were William (1682), James (1884), Thomas (1886),
ﬁllen (1888), and Winifred (1890).

Tt c'yilliam Togarty represented Cowwarr (Toongabbie Riding) on .the
Rosedale Shire, between the years 1880-1903, and he was President of the
Skire, -1891-92, and 1896~97, and 1899»1900).,

m&ward Jones 1820~188l. ;

Edward Jones (more commonly knnwn as Ned Jones) was born in
Birmingham, Stafforsnare, England in 1820, and emigrated to Tasme~ia in L
1840. Like many others, he was attracted to Victoria in the gold rush daya,
though he tended to be more interested in supplying, and cater&ng for the .
miners, rather than in mining for gold himself, For example, he was in~
Toopgabbie as early as 1865 or 1866, and built and conducted the second
hotgl. there, in -1866.".He bought a block of land at Cowwarr in 1871, and
there built Cowwarr's. Second hotel, the "irince of Vales Hotel", not right
in the township, but.a llttle-way out on the west alde, on the road to
Toangabb;e. el
©Lon-In 1861, he married in Souﬁh Glppsland,(probably in the Tarraville
area) lLiss Hliza Sherwood, and their children were Emma (1854); usdward (1857),
Francis 1858) and Eliza (1862) He died 4/6/1881 and was buried at Toongabbie,

Bdward - Jones, 1857~12§ 2 “the' eldest son of udwar& and Bliza Jones, was born
at Tarraville, 1857, but the famlly moved to the qungabbie«Cawwarr area,
whilé ‘he was stxll a boy. A .

© o He was” marrlu d first to‘ LS8 Catherlnc Campbell at Tasngabb;e, R
in 1876, aid thén ‘to'liss Catherine Villiams, at Cowwarr, in 1887, His i roe
children of the first marriage were Alice (1878), ddward 1881) .and mllza
(1883), and ‘'of the second marriage, William (3889), Herbart (1891), LeS&ng';
(1900), ‘0live (1903) &nd Clement (1910). S

Ted Jones, the Preslden% of the "Back~to~00wwarr" Gommittee, isA
the @on of lir, Clem Jones and Florence Lary Jones (nee uldﬁars) who were
married at Traralgon in 1990. He 1s therefore, the, greatugrandson, of the
original Cowwarr Edward Jones. ‘

.. It is said that the bricks for the hotel were made. from clay
in the property of Edward Jones and the adjacent block, owvned by Hugh Harkin,
The, hotéA closed in 1913 (Robert Douglas being the last 1icencee), and was . -
used as & przvate house until it was demolished in 1955. The horse stables,
made of brick, can still be seen on the property, close to the road. It is
said that this hotel was a coaching stage in its early days, ,

The Reminiscences of Ir. . 5. lLartin, and the late lirs, lary inne Iseppl.
. Just before the last "Back-~to~Cowwarr" held at Haster time,
Friday to lMonday, 26th. Larch to 29th, larch, 1937, ixr. 0. S. Hartin -
wrote a series of articles on the History of Cowwawxr, for the Traralgon
"Journal", 11/1/1937 to 22/3/19%7, and these were: supplomented by an =
important additional article sent in by Lrs. lary anne Iseppi, (1/3/)7}, then
aged 80. She said her family (the Smith family) moved to Cowwarr in 1867,
when she was ten years old. . This makes the year of settlemeﬁt at Cowwarr,
at least a year earlier than we have estimated it (1868).°
. svhe stated that the first building in Cawwarr was a bark shanty
"on the late iir. George Wood's property", conducted by Mr. and lrs. C.Johnson.
"Their daughter, Lizzie Johnson was drowned in the backwaters, and her body
recovered by Hughie Doherty. iy first memories of Hughié Doherty were before
he was married, and vhen he lived:on the backwater near lir, and Irs. Hillier,
in a bark hut. He prospered by carting provisions from Port Albert by bullock
team, along with William Hillier and Thomas Neilson. =~ . -
The first hotel was kept by Theodor. Gebhardt - the same hotel -
now carried on (1?)7) by Lirs. Boyd. It was there that most of the dances
were held, in a room built -at the back for that purpose.“
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Mrs. i A Iseppl, in her remlﬂiscences, went on to say:ie
" Williem FPogarty built the first store. I knew Him’ before, when he
delivered drapery dround Demison with a pair of horses in a caravan, The next
hotel was built by Ned Jones senlor, and Kept by him and his two daughters,
Emma (now lrs. Doolan), and Lizzie, (the late lirs. Siater). Later, the hotel
was leabed by the late William Allen. It was at this time that Robert Pollock,
one of the early bullbck»drivers in the 1wcality, cleared most of lMr. Allen's
property, now known as Chester's Estate.
Then, Bob went on to cart milling timber for Munro's sawmill, Mr,
Eldridge being the manager pf the mill, which was on the opposite side of
where the butter factory now stands. Mr: uldrldge resided in Mrs. Gibney's
cottage, Mrs, Gibney being a dressmaker.,
The school was then held in the Catholic chapel by Mr. Tennyson, -
The only shoemaker was James King. The follawing are some of the people who
lived in Cowwarr, when I was there:

Jack Evans (butcher) Dan Kilmartin 4lex Drane - William Hobson
George inderson (saddler).. CMp. & Marse. Wilks - . Dan Tuske Harry Sherwood
Ned Cummings (blacksmith) JHr.& Mrs.i.Thompson Harry Davis  Johnny Jackson
Dick Eldridge . My.& Mrs. Davis lick Doyle '
Hamilton family . ¥r.& Mrs, Page - - Joe Garrett

lr. Denis O'Brien's homestead stood near the old stockyards on
the Heyfield Road. His son's present preperﬁy was owned by James Doyle "

Mr. 0, S. Martln s Story.

And here are a few eytracts from the leﬂgthxer articles of Mr.
0. S, Martin:

, "The Cowwarr flats were so densely covered with dogwood and other
scrub, at the first selection, that it was impossible-to get through. The
first fences put up by the pioneers were post and rail fences, some of which
are still standing (that is, in 1937).

I remember the late lir, Edward Martin, father of Mrs. M. A
Heywood of Tyers, télling me how he and his daughter (Mrs, Heywood), came by.
coach from llelbourne to Rosedale, and from there,on horseback, to Stony
Creek, which was in flood, and which they could only cross by means of a rope
flung across by friends on the other side., lirs, Heywood was the first Sunday
School teacher in Cowwarr. Follawing her was Mrso Gebhardt, and then Mr.
Uriah Sadlex.

Most of the new settlers were "horsey" men. Mr. Jack Rice built
a racing stable, a first-class job, and he owned some of Gippsland's best:
race-horses, lr. Pat O‘Brmen also had a racing stable, and owned the Ellenvale
Race Course.

William Fogarty opened the first store, but later bought Shamrock
Lodge, one of Cowwarr's best dairying propertie». He sold his store to lir,
Irvine, who,in turn, sold it to Lr. George Wood (about 1885) and the Wood
family ran it for over 50 years (until 1936).

- Ihanro started a sawmill in James Rice's paddock adgomnlng the -
railway line, cutting red gum sleepers for the railway construction gangs,
and blocks for paving Melbourne streets. Sam Bldridge was boss at the mill,
Bill Kenevan the engine-driver, George O‘Meaxa, the benchman, and Jack Ing
and Jack Wippe, the tree:fellers. -

-Bill Richie opened a small smathy in the western corner of the
nill paddock. Steve Dwyer had a buchery business across the road from the
old Catholic school. Bob Oates and Dick Andrews were the early carpenters.
They helped to build the Cricket Club Hotel, then the Prince of Vales Hotel,
and finally, the third hotel, lr. Allen's Cowwarr Hotel.

The first bakery was run by lirs.Oates across the road from the
State School ground. This building became Charlie Riley's bootmaker's shop.

' Walter Napper had a beautiful mansion built on Lambrook Park,
overlooking the town and flats, and planted a park of about ten acres round
the house, Ada Crossley, the famous singer, was a pupil, briefly, at the
Cowwarr State School, while visiting her sister, Mrs. Napper. - .

e Ned Murphy was the father of Frank and Len Murphy, the bcllingm
wood, fbntballers. Both boys attended the Cewwarr State School, ag did HMop"
Gibbs, the Melbourne star player.

The local dairymen built their own butter facﬁory in the 1890's,
The first manager was Jimmy Souter, then lir. Brown, and finally lr. T. W.
Frawley, who has been in charge there for about 30 years. For a tlme, the
factory also made cheese,"

P
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The Schools of Coww H

The Pirst Sc_]_n,oolg the Church of England Sc hool, ngwarr West.

‘ In 1869, John Wilson applied to the Government for aid for the
Cowwarr Church of England School, which was situated near "Boorman's
Waterhole,' about 13 miles due west of the townsh;p area. This was the
same John Wilson, an original member of the Rosedale Road Board, 1869.

’ Barly trustees of the school were Edward Martin, John Buntine,
and EBdward Jones, and the local committee for the school, in 1872,
consisted of John Alliss, farmer; Alfred Hollingsworth, carpenter; John
Buntlne, farmer; John Baker, packer; Edward Martin, farmer; and Edward
Jones, farmer. However, this school was mnot situated centrally enough; it
did not function continuously; we do not know the name of any of its teachers,
and some of its keenest supporters, John Wilson (in 1870), and John Buntine,
John Baker, and Francis Sherwood (all in 1872-73) left the district. The
Catholic School was chosen as the Cowwarr Common School, with aid from the
Common Schools' Board, and the Church of England School simply faded out of
existence. & plan of the State School site in 1883, shows that Church
Street was then called Baker Street, presumably named after the John Baker,
who was a member of this school's Committee.

The Roman Catholic School, or Common School, or Capitation School

The Roman Catholic School also opened in 1869, a few weeks after
the Church of Ingland School. It was recognized by the Common Schools! Board
in 1872, and so became the Cowwarr Common School for that year.

However, the Great Education Act of December, 1872, introduced free
and compulsory education as from the beginning of 1873,replacing the Common

-Schools' Board by the Education Department, and the Common Schools by State
Schools. A special provision of the Act allowed some private or religious:
schools to continue for five years longer on subsidy at so much a head (or
commensurately with the school enrolment), so the school at Cowwarr became
the Cowwarr Capitation Schoeol., A State school was built in October,1877,
.and punctually to the day, at the-end of the five years' grace, the per
capita payments stopped, and the Cowwarr State School was opened, December,
1877. Thirty-two pupils transferred from the Capltatlon School to the new
State School, virtually next door to it. '

> The Roman Catholic School continued nntll 1895, when decreasing .
nunbers forced its closure, and the fourteen pupils transferred to the State
School. It opened again in 1919, but closed again in more recent times,
with the teaching sisters and thelr pupils tramsferring to the Catholic School
in Heyfleld.

. Ve are not sure whether the Mr. Tannjson mentloned by lir. Hartmn an&
also lirs. Iseppi, taught at the Church of England School, or the Catholic ,
School, but we do know that Joseph Fitzgibbon was in charge of the latter -
school in 1870, and that he was followed by John McCarthy in 1871-1873,
who covered the Common School period and the transition tc the Capitation
School. We have no further information on the five year story of the Cowwarr:
Capitation School, except for the list of transferees in December, 1877.

Cowwarr State School, Ho. 1967. ' .

Cowwarr State School opened in December, 1877, with an enralment
of 33 pupils, and with George 4., Rylah as the first head-teacher. The full
list of head-teachers at the schoel, 1877-1971, is as follows:

1877-1879...George i. Rylah; 1940-1948, . .John £, Blain;
1879-1886...Thowas B, Dobson; - 1948~1950.,.Pat:ick L. Howe
1886--1889. . .ary J. Robertson; 7 1950~1952, . ,Thomas Gilheany;
1889-1901...Thomas P, liartin; ° =~ 1953=1956...Robert H. Dosser;
1902-1907...Frances Cairns; 1957-1962. . arthur K. Jewell;
1907-1914...Patrick Moore: 1962~1964, . s Ian M, lorley; ‘
1914~1919. ..Charles H.Z.Smith; . 1965-1968...Kenneth H. Baxter;
1919-1920,..CLlifford A. Anderson; . 1969:.....:.Barry Gemmell; :
1921-1925, ..5dgar S, Hall; 1970440 .. ... David Wear;

1925-1937. . .48hley Stuchberry; . ga1971..n.,Qg,Peter Hicks.
1937-1940...rhilip Dwyer; S

Some of the early Wurk~m1@ﬁresses were’ Catherine Andrews (1878«80),7
Iiss Alice Dobson (1361-~84); lirs. ilma Dobson (1884~86); Phoebe Robertson
(1887~89), and lirs. Emma Hartin (1889-1902).

Recent assistants have been liss Kilgower (1966); Helen Flanders
(1967)(now irs. Farley); liss Canavan (1968); Keyrene Christianson (1970),
and lliss Frances Bowen (1971).

2
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ipitation School) (Ages in-brackets)

lary ann Rz.ley (13), Wilmaina Gebhardt élog; Dora Andrews (4);
Annie Garth (4); John Garth (8); Br:.dget Campbell- Frederick Drane (13);
George Drane. (10), William Aubr ; David Aubrey (9);. Marion Weed

ida Weeding (6); Bdward Garth (°§ Alice Attwood (11); Annie Clark (10);
Samuel Clark (5); Elizabeth Clark (14); Isabella Clark (8); Annie Drane (16);
Clarence Clarke (6); Richard Smith (14); Frances lorgan (14); Ellen Morgan (9);
George lMorgan (6); William Clarke (11); Harriet Johns (13); Nelly Johns (6);
Charles Mitchell (6), David Morgan (12), John mOrgan (9); John Mitchell; Jane
Johns, James Johns

mﬁz*' ‘Ada Andrews (3); Eliza Clark (8), Charles ﬁoa&hvuse (13), David Wood-
house (11); Margaret Woodhouse (4); Christina Woodhouse (9); Eliza Woodhouse (7);
Isobel Stone (6); Edward MeBwan (11); John McEwan (8); Elizabeth Riley (12);
innie Riley (10); William Riley (8); Henry Riley (6); Helen Wickes (15);
Catherine Wickes (10); George James Wickes (7); Ellen Woods (4); Catherine
McEwan (6); Francis Rice (13); Robert Oates . (?3 Mary.Frances Wickes (12);

David Rice (7); Arthur Rice. (5); Harlow Wickes (5), Robert McEwan (13);Peter
MeEwan (15; Frank Comnor (14); Kate Morgan (17); (4 names missing); Frank
Croaker (9); Lawrence Rice (115 Ada Mitchell {5), Eva. Wécdhgus;niésg.ﬁdaﬁaw;4
Hamilton (12), Julia Thomas (135 David Thomas (7), James Thomas 9); John
Rhoden (6) mllza Wood (3) John aneao

1819 Hichael Sullivan; Mary McEwan; ada Crossléy, Janet Hamilton; George
Hamilton; Alice Aubrey; Albert Garth; Johanna Hayea, Henry Bastin Forrzson.

1880 James Mitchell; Julia Wakeling, Susan hndrews, Mary ﬁglcahy, Elizabeth
fulcahy; Thomas Muleahy; Ellen Mulcahy; Jeremiah Woodhouse; Edward Crossggz
4dgnes Riley; Joseph Mulcahy; liargaret Oates; Charles Nippe; ﬂlexan&er ‘
Hamilton; Henry Mitchell; Annie Clark; John hllmartin, Olga Bruche; Maria Bruahe.

188L:. Ju1ius Bruche; William Hollingsworth; William Bruche; Anna Bruche;
Clara Hollingsworth; Daniel Bedggood; Annie Hollingsworth; Alice Jones; David
Johns; Arthur Garth; Madaline Hollingsworth; Robert Woodhouse; Margaret Wilsonj
Janet Wilson;vWilliam'Wilson; Mary WOod; William Briggs; William liorrison.

In 1882. ' - a T
Amemxa Nippe; Frederick Nippe; Katie Wllaon, annie Miles; Lilias Gales;
Edith Sadler; Margaret Clow; Robert Armstrong; Thomas Nartin; William Farrier;
Eva Woodhouse; Benjamin Woodhouse; Hdward Jones; Aunnie lMaria Bell; Frederick
Bell; Dorothy Bell; Amy Norris; Bridget Neville; Margaret Bell; lNargaret
Neville;: George Lee; James Lee; Charles Lee; Alfred Lee, Alice Leea

"Q“;§§§Valter lorrison; Clara Gales; Patrick Mangan; Lillian Young; Frederick
Sadler; William Le Strange; Catherine Blythe; Harriet Lee; Alfred Donnelly;
Richard Andrews; Arthur Mitchell; William Wood; Augustus Riley; Clydesdale
Horrison; Augustus Garth; Walter Andrews; Louisa Johns; Annie Hamilton; -
Louisa Williams; Richard Williams; Elizabeth Williams; Richard Verran.

In 18‘_&_« : ’

- Eliza Le Strangﬂ, Ernest Crossley; Harriet Taylor; Oliver Taylor;
Georgina Beattie; Bertie Napper; Allen Thompson; Ellen Williams; Mary Ann -
Barlow; Robert Mitchell; Mary Clark; Linda Clark; Stewart Neilson; Frank
Horgan; Philip Wixon; William Wixon; Horace Hixon; Percival Nixon; Henry
Sadler; Nellie Evans; Marcella Garrett; Thomas Garrett; Lellle Garrett;
William Garrett; Joseph Garre»ta '

In 1885.

James Morrison; lLari Garrett, Gertrude Aﬂd?@ﬁﬁ, Glara Gales,Arthur Tood;
Henry Jones; lary Emma Jones;. Archibald Broadfbct vaelock Fia Eldri&ge.

la*&ﬁgéGaorge Johnsg; EBliza Wzlllams, Julla Timmins; Agnes szmmns, Margaret
Pollock; William Oates; Hemry Colson; William Good; William Timmins;. Bdward
Cole;Hugh Eldridge;alexandra licRae;ilizabeth McRae; Eliza Garrett;.Ellen
Folwell* Rcsa Folwell, «111mam Folwell, Austin Polwell, Donald IcRae.

in l§§1 - .
Walter andrews; Annie ¥cRae; George Dcw; Janes Duw; Helen Dow; Thomas
howat; Jane Pollock; Benjamin Woods; James Kirby; Leonard Riley.
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Camrarr State Schco& Regi

nglled in 1888, ¢ S -
7~ farriet” Ing, Wilhelmina i;crmson, Hary Campbell, Michael Smith;

‘Freder:x.ck. Le Strange; Harriet Johns; Florence Johns; Catherine Johns; lMartha
Beard; George Beard; .rnest Beard; Florence Amor; Phillip Malley; John Johnsj;
E;izabath Hamilton; Annie Dow; Rose Loomes; Douglas lMcDowall; William Amor,

lary NeKay; Joseph LcKay, Gregory Garrett; Alice Johns; Annie
Neilson; Lily Neilson; Phillip Woodhouse; Albert Amor; Jane Hammill; Robena
Hammill; Henry Gotz; Lily Johns; Evelyn Stamm; Emma Stamm; Mary Brunis :
Marcella Hibbs; Walter Amor; Florence Napper; Edward Rouch ; Charles Callaghan;
Daniel Shiels; Stéphen Shiels; Violet Shiels; Ruby Rouch; Hulbert Black;

Ada Beard; lMary Clark; Ernest andrews; Alma Napper; Winifred Wood; Frederic
Rumpff; Ethel Grimley; Robert Martin; Arnold llartin; Bertram Martin; Oswald
Martin; Charles Martin; Norman Atkinson; Owen Doyle; Charles Ban’t:on, William

" Banton; Blanche Martin; Annie Pollock; Bertie Pratt.

In 1890. -

Ellen Wrigh’c Ernest Noye, Robvert Wood.house, John Ward; Andrew
Rose; Flora Harbeck; Patrick Ward; Mary Loomes; Edith Sadler; William Morrison;
Mary Wood; 4licé Jones; liartin Gotz; Thomas Ludbey; Harry Martin; Alice Sadler;
James Johns; BErnest Le‘Strange;‘ liartin Fox; liary McCole; Pearl Cole.

. dn. 1891, Ernest King; Thomas liorrison; John Kelland; Roderick Kelland; Hary
Kelland; Walter Riley; Christapher Pratt; John Dow; Daisy Shiels; Ethel
Radeliffe; Sarah Reid; Laurence Rlcka'h'hs, Septimus Kelland; Annie Kelland;
Jane Ing; William Eeard. '

in 1892, Helen Ha.wley, Vena Riley; Amelia Ing; Joseph lurcutt; Eva Murcutt;
lMary Murcutt; James Imrcutt; William Iurcutt; Joseph lulcahy; Bartholomew
Muleahy; Edward Garrett; Elizabeth Banton; largaret Williamson; Arthur Neilson;
Ruby Neilsen; Isabella Docherty; Ernest Smith; Albert Sadler; Haud Iiller;
Juanita liller; Walter liiller; EBva liller; Annie,llary and liichael Riley.

In 1893, Laurence Hawley; James Jones; Charles Harbeck; Vera 4ndrews; Mary
Duncan; Albert Peirce; Alfred Le Strange; Florence Wood; Charles Dow; Thomas
Williamgson; David Johns; William P:x.ke Matilda Pike; James Pike; Herbert Biauat;
Archibald ImAlpme. '

in 18%4. - James Thomson; L:x.ly Turcutt; Lilly Greenhill; Jessie Greenhill;
Victor Greenhill; Arden Greenhill; Clifton Greenhill; Rose Greenhill; James
Anderson; Harry Hans Anderson; lMargaret Anderson; Frances Neilson; James
Stiles; Charles Pike; Julia Beard, ‘Alfred lcGregor; Daisy Hamilton.

In 1895, (The first 13 trg_;;sferred from the Cowwarr Catholic School - closed!

William, James and Thomas Fogarty; Donald . James and Raymond
Woo&house' Helen, liary and ‘:m:.fred Doyle; S’haphen, é.gatha and Ita 0'Brien;
Donald MeGregor; Clare Harkin.

: Catherine’ Fraser; Harion Fraser; Br_uce Neilson; Owen Davies;
Walter Marstin; John Collins; arthur Collins; James Garrett; William Burch;
Annie Olga Andrews; Charles Wykes; Iargaret Riley; Helen Scctt John Martm,
Halcolm licGregor; James Russ; William Russ; MHary Russ.

Names a.z:,d Occugatiezzs of Parents (or Guar@&s}.

December, 1877. . ohn Riley (Shoemaker); Theodor Gebharﬁt (Eaatmaster) Richard
Andrews (Carrier); Henry Garth (Labourer); John Campbell (Famer)* John Drane
(Farmer); Jane aubrey; Thomas Weeding (Farmer); James Attwood (Butcher);
Robert Oates (Parmer); George Clarke (Publican); John Smith; David Morgan
(Famer) James Johns (Farmer); James Lrhchell (Famer)

In 1878 James Woodhouse. (Famer)? Charles Stone (Packer), Peter McEwan
(Carrier); Harlow Wickes (iiiner); George Woods (Starekaeper) James Rice
(Grazier); .

In 1819 4dan Thompson (Parmer); William Thomas. (Hiner); John Rhoden (Coach
Proprietor); Edward Jones (Publican); Timothy Sullivan (Publ:.can) Walter
Napper (G::»azier), Elizabeth Hamilton; John Morrison (Labourer).
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In 1880,

George fakelzng (Publican), Richard undrews (Contractor), o
Bartholomew lulcahy (Cattle Drover); Ldward Crossley (Ironmcnger,@axravxlle),
Robert Oates (Labourer); John Nippe (Farmer); James Hamilton (Farmer); George
Clark (Farmer) John Kilmartln (Farmar) - William Bruche (Produce Dealer).

in 1881“ Helen Hollzngswcrth (Teacher), “Phomas B. Dobson {Teacher), Edward
Jones (Bullock~driver); James Johns EBullockndriver), James Woodhouse (Grazier);
William Wilsan (Packer), Jchn Briggs Labourer); . John Horrison (Horse»breaker)

In1882. p.iiel Gleeson (Publican); Charles Cales (Butcher); Uriah Sadler
- (Shop.Assistant); Edward Martin (Farmer); John Farrier (Labourer); Frederick
Bell CBaardlngwhause Keeper), Michael Neville (Navvy), Henry Lee (Publlcan)

In 188"' Joseph Young (R&i&way 0ff1c1al), Frank Le Strange (Butcher), e
Michasl Donnelly (Labcurer), Charles 4ndrevis (Farmer) Richard Williams (Farmer);

In 1884, Henry Taylor (Ganger), James Nixon (Sawmiller); Joseph Garrett (Farmer);

1685. .. ... .Henry Jones (Staticnmaster); Wm. Eldridge (Sawmill lanager).
1886+ ... James Pollock (Police Constable); William Allen (Hctelakeeper)
~1887...... Austin Folwell (Beker); william Beard (Cattle~&ealerg
1888-90....John Loomes (Gate~keeper); J.S.Grimley (Hotel-keeper Thomas Martin,
(Teacher); Honorah Ward ( Gatewkaeperg Richard Andrews (carpenter).
1891-95. . . .Edward lartin (Hotel-keeper); liary Ann Riley (Nurse); william. :
Turcutt - (Constable,1892); Arthur Neilson (Publican); Edward:
Suliivan {Stationmaster,1893), Thiomas Mouat (Carpenter); Williem
Pike (Baker); John Fraser (Creamery Manager,1395);
later......George Newstead (Stationmaster 189#% William Vhite (Hotel=keeper);
et Tpunan Cook (SatiOnmaster,IQOﬂs, Haurice Hoyne (Priest,1900); Dora
“Andrews (Postmistress,1901); Edgar Hawes (Carpenter,lgﬂz), Patrick
- Clancy (Hotel<keeper,1905); J. Janetzki (Saddler,1907);Patrick
Toore Cre&cher,l90 ) Thnmas Frawley (Butter Factory Manager,l907)

ILJ h ]

;vThe Ghurchss.
The Roman Catholmc Ghurch.

Land was acquired in the Cowwarr tcwnship for the Catholxc Church
in 1869, and in the name of the liost Rev. J. L. Goold, Bishop of Victoria. o
The first building there, 1869, served both as school and as church, Until - -
1890, Cowwarr formed part of the bal@ uiss;on, and priests stopped at Cowwarr
on their way toc Walhalla, - -

In 1890, Fathetr F. Dawson was appomnted Parlsh Prlest of Cowwarr.
The list of incumbents from that ddte until now is:

~ 1890-1894.:Hev. .By ‘Dawson: - - 1936=19464 .Rev. I F;tzpatrmck
11894~1900..Révs Js Nolan- | 1946-1950..(Perhaps Rev. G'Dennell}
'1900-1901..Rev. v Hoyne - = '1950-1960..Rev. J. Cunningham

1001 “1916: nReVu Dc Shanahan ‘ 1960“"1-9?1; QRe‘VK J' G‘. Gallagher-
1916~1936..Rev.ib.vMchahoﬂ o S

The Church of E g; and.

Two allotments in Black 5 of the townahmp of Gowwarr were acquired
for the Church of England, in 1874, by Rev. G. W. Kelly, linister in charge
of the Rosedale parish. .

: The first church, Christ Church, Cowwarr, was built in 1874, at o
a cost of £74-15- 0, and was opened, 16th. August, 1874. .

A A riew church was built in 1901, at~ a cost of £288,. Rev. H. T,
Fowler conducted the last service in the old church, 1/9/1901, and on- the e
following Sunday, 8/9/1901, Ven. Henry Langley dedicated the building in
the presence of a congregation of 90 worshippers. .

At first, Cawwarr was served. from\Rogedale, but 13 nnw parﬁ of the
Heyfield charge.

Some of those who have mlmlstere& ts the chwarr Church of &nglana
congregations have been Revs. Bradley, Sawtell, Clayden, Wheeler, Benn,
Lovegrove, i Francis, Hanceﬂk, Cairng, Jutton and Hammond the last three
being: ' ‘

"1 Rev.Paul Dunne;
" 'Rev.alan Linton '
Rev. Brian Petty (from Hovember,1970)
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" Postage Costs.

Our suggestion that recipients of our ‘*Newss" might like to send three
postage stamps to cover the cost of sending to them the year's four issues,
has béen well received. Approximately 100 people responded, providing $18-00
for our postage cash-box. In addition, we reduced our mailing list by about
150 names, to save another $12-00, cutting down our circulatian to 500,

D - '_,_:costing $10 each issue, or $40 for the year..
) If we retain the same Ustamp" ‘support in 1972, our postage expenses will
be $40 less $18 in stamps, for a total of $22, which is high enough but
bearable .

-
S

T obitvardes.
Eﬁr Ro’bert Hantschel, 1886-1271.

Mr. Bob Hentschel, a well-known figure in Traralgon and liorwell for
many years, died in the Central Gippsland Hespltal, Traralgon, cn Tuesday,
Tth. September, 1971, aged 85 years,

.. He grew up’in Morwell, where, as a young man he condueted a livery-
stable business, before becoming an estate agent at Morwell and Traralgon.

He had an active mind and a good memory, attributes which made him a
very interesting and helpful member of our local historical societies.

.. He was a very musical men, and founded the Morwell Citizens' Band, more
than 40 years ago. Over the last fifteen years, he has been a dynamic
member and President of the Traralgon Eisteddfod Committee. However, most .
of us will remember him simply as a good friend and a pleasant ,personality.

Mrs. Alice Baxter.

. The death occurred suddenly, early in October, of Mrs. Alice Baxter,
of Stratfcrd, Secretary of the Stratford Historical Society, and a member
of the Gippsland Regional History Committee.

Mrs., Baxter was born in VWales, emigrating to Australia with her husband
after the Second World War. Before her retirement in Strai:ford, she had been
the post~mistress at Denison.

It was she who founded the Stratford Historical Society, anly abcmt
three years ago, and was the foundation secretary of the Society, a pesition
she held until her death. She was the correspondent at Stratford for the = -

"Gippsland Times", and worked part-time at the Times' office in Sale.

The Tenth Jear. .

This issue of the "News" (Vol. 10; No. 4) completes our tenth year of
blication., We began with a weekly article in the "Morwell Advertiser"

}(m%z and 1963), went on to produce a menthly news sheet for ten months of
the year (February to November,inclusive), 1964-1969, and for the last two. .
years, 1970 and 1971, have made the "News" a quarterly, appearing in
February, lay, August, and November. ELvery year, we collect the year'
issues into one volume. Z

. We have printed a reserve supply of each of our ten volumes, which are
a.va:.lable for purchase at ¥1-00 for each volume, or $4-00 for five volumes.
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‘Victorian Committee of Affilisted Historical Societies .. Gippsland Region.
The Royal Historical Society of Victoria has grouped its affiliated

societies into regions. The Gippsland Regional Group held its first meeting
‘at Morwell High School, Sunday, 12/9/71, 11 a.m, t0 3 p.m.

Minutes of the Meeting, 12/9/71.

; Represented -at the meeting were the Central Committee from Melbaume
(¥r. and Mrs. Pullin ,Mr. H. Forster), Maffra (Mr. L. Miles), Moe (lir. A. Ringin
and Mr, A. Summerton), Morwell (Mr, I. Maddern), Traralgon (Mrs. J. Court and
Mrs, V. Plant), Sale (Mr. A. Chester and Mr. J. Chestelﬁ Stra‘hford (Mrs. Alice
Baxter), Warragul (lMiss 0. Marrabel and Mrs. J. L. Armour), and Yarram, (Mr.and
Mrs. M. Howes). An apology,by letter, was received from Orbost H. S.
oo - My, Maddern was appointed Chairman of the meeting, and lr, Howes,

Secretary.

After a very interesting, useful, and happy discussion of the advantages,
the difficulties, and the ways and means of holding Regional activities, the
following resolutions were accepted unanimously: :

1. That the Gippsland Region be divided into two regions - West Gippsland,
N west of Rosedale, and East Gippsland, east of Rosedale.
2. That Mr. A. Chester, Sale, be appointed the Regional Representative for
the new region, East Gippsland.

- ‘.}31;9 follqwing suggestions were made and approved unanimously:

1. That regional meetings should take place once or tw:we yearly, = in
March-April, and/or September-October.
2. That such meetings should be held on Sundays.

The new regional groupings for f}z.ppsland will mean that thera will be
eight societies in the western region, and eight also in the eastern region, as
shown below: .

Eas egion of Gippsland ~ Vestern Re ion of Gipps
Bairnsdale H.S.; Foster H. S. Berwick HeS.; Korumburra HeS.
Maffra H.S.; Omeo H.S. Leongatha H.S.; lMoe H.S. o
Orbost H.S.; Sale H.S. : Morwell HeSe; Traralgon H.S.
Stratfﬁrd H.S. Yarrem H. S. : Warragul HeS.; Wonthaggi H.S.

Regresentat:we o oMr, A . Chest er

Latrobe Va;lgx Historical Socie‘bigg

The final activity for this group will be the Ohrxstmas Party at the
Traralgon City Offices Reception Room, Monday, 13th. December, starting at
8,00 p.m, - The Guest Speaker will be Mr. Andy Ringin, Secretary of the Moe
Historical Society, and his subject will be "Bogong Jack".

"Regollections of Farly Gippsland Goldfields" by Richard Macka}: W

Edited and Regghhshe& by Dr. C. Brmdge&-ﬁebb, ;aralg_gna

. This book of 96 pages, an invaluable historical record af eaxly
Gippsland, was written by Richard Mackay in 1915, when he was 8l years old.
It was printed privately in Traralgon, and, consaquently, original copies of
the book. are rare. :

Now, Dr. C. Bridges-Webb has done G:.ppalan& historians a service by
editing the book; writing an introduction for it, and having it re-publwheﬁ‘
The new publication will include eight pages of illustrations, and two maps.

Orders will be taken by any of the local historical societies, but
more directly from Dr. Bridges-Webb himself. His address is Deakin Street,
Traralgon, 3844, and the price of the book is §3-~50.

Other Publications 1.

Gipysland hlstor:.ans have had a busy time in 19‘71, with five M:her
publlca‘hinns during the year. They were: ’
. "History of Briegalong," published in April, 1971 :
"Centenary History of Rosedale Shire", published in Ifx’a.y, 1971
. "History of Morwell High School, 1970 and 1960", published in July.
"History of Cowwarr, 1866-1971", published in October, 1971 e
"History of Glengarry", (Mrs. Jean Court), published in our"News" for May.
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Butler's Uood's Point -and Gipple Lend Directory, 1866.

Ve are devoting this issue (Vol.10; No. 4) %o reprintihg +the Gippsland
section of a very interesting and historically valuable Directory, published
in 1866. The compiler took each township or settlement in turn, and listed
for us the residents and their occupations, house by house, and street by =
street., His survey starts at Port Albert, and then swinge in a wide,northern
circle to Sale, Stratford, Grant, Maffra, Bald Hills, Walhalla, Toongabbie,
Rosedale, lerton, Yarram, Alberton, and back to Port Albert. ;

Then, starting again at Rosedale, he traveis along the track to
Helbourne, through Traralgon, lioe, Berwick, Dandenong, Springvale and .
Oakleigh, which was then counted as part of G:Lppslanﬂ.

This was the time when the coach service, Sale to lielbourne, had ;}us‘c
begun (September, 1865), and twelve years before the railway was built.
There was nobody in South Gippaland; Warragul and other townships, brought
into being by the railway,did not exist; and places on the coach road were
still very small. For example, only seven people are .usted for Traxalgon
which is spelt "Taralgon".

But the figures for,the populations of the townships are a little
deceptive, since, with rare exceptions, only the men are listed, and not the
wonen " and, .children, . Probably, we should multiply our additions by five or six,
or even more, to make the mpula*hmn of Traralgon in 1866, not simply seven,
but perhaps 35 or 40 persons. :

We make one other comment. These were the days before free and coms. .
pulsory education, when the majority of people could not read or write. 4s a
result, the spelling of names is frequently inaccurate, as the eomp:xlea:',
perhaps ,had to spell the names oi‘ people as he heard them,

: . ogt Albert Harbour.
EM Street, Souﬁh £0. R’arth Left-hggd Side.

Government wharf B Jacob Ferris, bookseller s‘aatienasr, etc.

Harbour office =~ . ‘ Thomas VWatson, farmer
David Fermaner, hsx‘oou:r»master = Whymark,. carpenter :
Timothy MeCarthy, storeman - Cobb & Co,.,booking office
Turnbull's bonded store o Thos Burrows,auctioneer & valuer
Turnbull, Howden & 00.,merchan‘bs Post Ofi‘icﬁ. postmaster,&acab Ferris:
Turnbull, Howden & Co.,agents for Electric Telegraph Office - . .
the "Keera" and "Ant" steamers ‘manager, Jacob Ferris o
Custom House: V. R.Belcher, collector David & Thomas Duncan, storekeepers
of H.l.C. : David & Thomas Duncan, residence
Custom House: Thos. . Turner, cleck = W.B.Hood, Gipp's Land Hardware Co.
and landing waiter WeB.Hood, agents to Colonial
John Gillion, Port Albert Hotel Insurance Company -
Office of the "Gipp's Land Guardian" John Hood, merchan'b, residence.
_T_g_mavi% Road, South to I . Left-ﬁ% Side.
D. Mackenzie, Ship Imn (corner) -~ - - Jil.Roberts, r}.raper, outfi%ar, eto.
James Flamner, storekeeper John Aghton, Commercial Inn 5
Thomas Nice, tailor o Chureh of England, St. John's:
ReJ.Bargery, storekeeper = Rev.J.C.T.Streteh,, minister
George Smith, butcher " Toll Bar = '
George Stanway,Victoria Boardinghouse = James Joseph Hobbs, accountant
Rev.James W.Tuckfield, Wesleyan " Peter Sainth, carpenter
minister, residence " Alexander Stewart, m‘bourer
William Carter,boot & shoemaker = ' Thomas Job, carfer
Tarraville Road, South to North, Right~Hand Side.
Bank of Viectoria (corner): James Flamner, store
Hanager, W.H.Parr Captain Spring, resideme
Preasbyterian Church; minister, John Walsh, storekeeper =

Rev, Mr. Dobidmenn SR Robert Burns, residence

PN
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. [ Po. gg Albert
Victoria Street, West %o East.
Right-Hand Side. , ‘

Bank of Victoria (corner) , William Howden, residence
George Scutts, butcher .. David Tui'nbull residence
George Rowlands,. whaelwright and .

blacksmith - Left-fland Side
We We Walduck, solicitor, and John Hood, mez-chant & forwarding

conveyancer, etc. ' T agent to H. M. Customs
William Wood, carter o William Jeames, clerk
Joseph Hadley, wood splitter , John Hood, agent to the "Charles
Robert Alexander, farmer Edward" steamship (corner)

Wellington Street — South o North
Right-Hand Side. | S
William Phill, ostler - George H. Phillips, Government pilot

Charles McIntyre, harbour departmen‘t Richard B.Kelly, surveyor,residence
John Thomas, harbour department . D.Fermaner, harbour master,rasidenca
William Brown, harbour department Samuel Thatcher, mariner .~ -
Prancis Bolton, carter George E. Goodwin, carrier
Elizabeth Lockhurst, widow S

: wm._
l’almg;gston Street, Bast to Uast, Left~Hand Side.
Police Station Common School,490: J.P .B.Frost,master
Temporary Gaol , . 7 We. Re. Belcher, HJM.Cus, residence
Immigrants! Depot - . Semuel Colvin, carrier ,
Thomas M. Turner, res:s,é.ence S0 e John Colvin, labourer -
Treasury O0ffice s ~ John Wilkinson, residence
Court House : Rosina Garland, widow

Survey Off:t.ce, RaBe Relly,draftsman Thomas Foreman, fisherman -

Q&gg;g Street, West ‘bo East, La:f‘t:ﬁgg{ d Side.

John Colvin, labourer (corner) . ¥illiam Gibbett, carrier :

William Turton, Government surveyor, Charles Dessent, carrier S
~ residence (corner) Thomas(ﬁug}c_ms,; carrier

James Stacin, harbour d.epartmen‘t Sergeant lMeDonald, residence

Margare‘l; Cullum, widow o . :

w‘ s s

William Turton, Gevernm&nt surveyor, John Avery, carpenter
residence L ’__‘_;j_\*_illia;n:ﬁutcgison, storemaz; K

Andrew inderson, carpenter ¢

Information. ‘ :

Police Station: Sergeant F&aﬂonald, ’t:wo troopers, one constable
Temporary Gaol: Ed. J. Coleman, gaoler.

Treasury Office :

Court House: police magistra.te, Ce Js Tyers

Court House: elerk to the Bench, E. Kelsall ’ o
Survey Office, in in charge af Richax‘d B. Kelly, dra:ftsman. ’

- Larraville.
Bridge Street, South to North.
Right-Hand Side. | : : frad L L
Tarraville Bridge, erected 1862 ' JaGe Brc&dfaot,reaidence‘*iselle ”Vua"

Catholic -Church: Fr. O'Keane, priest -~ -

Left-Hand Si.
Father 0'Keane, residence
Taxrraville Police Station: Shire of Alberton, Council Chambers
Richard Carden, constable John Toole, labourer
Common School, 615: J.G.Broadfoot, Richard Price, sawyer

master ' Thomas Carter, carrier




Reeves Street.

Right-Hand Side.
Thomas O'Rourke, labourer
Thomas Pope, Freemasons' Arms.
William Hepburn, ostler .

- John %Willis, carrier

Richard Thompson, bear&:ing school
School House
Henry Black, storekeeper
Martha Crain, widow
Patrick MoGrath, Commercial Inn
Ee Wo Crossley, ironmonger
Henry Macdonald, storekeeper
James Cullain, blacksm:.th, and

.. wheelwright -~
Mrs. MeHNish, milliner, etc.
J. F. Dight, butcher ‘
John J. Lear, saddler, etc.
Alexander Hall, chemist & druggis*h

Right-Hand Side (continued)
Post Office: postmaster, Alexr. Hall
Electoral Registrar, Alexander Hall
W. H. Disher, general storekeeper
Weighbridge

David Smith,blacksmith, storekeeper
Robert Ratcliffe, carrier »
James Kenna, shoemaker
Joseph Hayward, dairyman
James Cooper, labourer

Left-~Hand Side.

Thomas Lang, Royal Hotel

Je & J. Bomford, drapers,outfitters
Ge.Davis & D.Smith, blacksmiths,etec.
Simeon Napper, butcher

James Reeves, residence.

Lefton . $~h:rea%;, West to n:asg.
Right~Hand Side.

Jacob Snowden, contractor
Te He Smith, residence
T. H, Swith, Gipp's Lend Store

‘Joseph Ratcliffe; miner

_Abraham Bland, staz'ekeeper,’ Yaram Yaranm

Thomas Tucker, contractor

- Left-Hand Side.

William Catchpole , Tarraville Hotel
John Chandler, miner

Edmund Edwin, miner

Dr., Goldie, residence

Ramgay Williamson, shoemaker.

Stewart Street.

Right-Hand Side.
Fritz Piera, sawyer =
Rev.Launcelot chbinscn,reszdence
Presbyterian Church

Jacob Inder, contractor
Rev.J.T. C.Stre{cch, C.of E.mnister

Left~Hand Side.

Captain Thoms, residence
James Crane, carter
George Davies, carpenter
William Hibby, carter

Main Road from Tarraville to Woodside

Rz.ght-ﬁand Side.

John Cromb, contractor .

Richard Taaling, labourer .

¥William Haines, carrier

John Ray, labourer

John McCarthy, carrier

Lily Leaf Bridge, erected 1865,
contractor, John Cromb:

Bdward Ho_’pgo_gh -eontractor

Left Left-Hand Side.
William Happersey, bootmaker
John Smith, miner

Jonathan Bassett, carrier
William Foreman, miner

Squatters.

William Buckley John Rooke
- Bowden -~ Bath

John Carpenter

George Hogg '

~ John Collins
James Taylor
' Uriah Hoddinott

Shire of Alberton... Sesttered.

John Macphail
Henry Jones
P. C. Bucklay

Famersz :
James M. Flymn

Don McKelpin
John Lamb

Henry Sherwood - == Randall
George Scutts " John Glynn
Matthew Ford . John Brown
Henry Black Michael Newport

James Jessop
Reeves Brothers
P. Noolan

- Jweeney
‘B. Donoghue

Morris O'Halloran
Napper Brothers
" Pietro Castello

Thomas i ilson

~- Bayles -~ Ricketts.
G. Herbert Michael Moore
John Mackay John Griffiths
Mrs. MeCoy William Moore
William Willis  John Brown
W M.S eymour - Thompson
Fred Willianms . John Alford
Thomas Willis John Nicholl
M, O'Mara Te& J.Buckley
William Scott Chas, Smith
M. Kennedy John Callaghan
- Davies - Galvin ,
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Main Road, Woodside tc Sale

nghtéﬁand S“de

Woodside Bridge, crected 1865,
contractors, Holson & Inder -

John Wishart,Sir Henry Barkly Hotel

Post Office,postimester, John Wiahart

Robert Clement, carter :

Edward Garcon, carpenber

Thomas Monaghan, sawyer

William Williamson, boarding~house

v l‘ 16‘ NO«: 4-: .Qi&‘llt‘lltﬁlli‘&z 21:

oodside.

Main Raadmﬂcontinuedl

Grant's Creek Bridge
Edward J. Grant, Half-Way House,
Monkey Creek
John McPhail,Merryman's Cresk Eotel
MePhail's Stockyard
Merryman's Creek Bridge
Stradbroke Police Station:
John Smallman, trooper.

Lﬁﬂg ford.

Richard Davis, Brldge Inn

Longford Bridge, erected 1861

Latrobe Bridge . -

James Flirt, w&ax;inger

Latrobe Teoll Gate = William Dyer,
collector and contractor.

Main Road to Sale.{left side
George Fry, sawyer E '
John Collins, Woodside Fotel
H.W.Salter, Royal Mail Hotel
MePhail's cattle yards
Joseph Weldon, labourer
Isaiah Miles, Swamp Inn

Sale.

Tork Strest, North to South.
' @twﬂand Side.

Mrs. Clark, Turf Hotel

Mrs. Wm. Greenwood, widow

Samuel Dawson, Secretary, ivon
Road Board, residence

William Merr, labourer

John Gibbs, labourer

Fredericlk Roder, cooper

George Edwards, tinsmith

John Warton, shnemaker -

Francis Thorp, shosmaker

Mrs, Harvey, widow

Frederick Targett, tailor

Joseph Meloughlin, builder

Joseph White, ostler ‘

Valentine Fidler, miner

Richard Greenaway, labourer

Robert Ruck, tailcr

William Bearpark, ‘bootmaker

John Cabana, wine & spirit merchant

Richard Packett, butcher |

Bank of Victoria:C. R.Sibbold,manager

Nehemiah Guthridge,mayor,residence

W.T.Sprod, residence

John Mitchelson, painter,etc,

Printing Office of"Gippslander and Sale
Express“,Edwaxd G,Atklnsan,prcyrxetor

Boggy Creel Lime Works.

Right-Hand Side (continued)
John Russell Webb, clerk,residence
(Dawson Street)

Sale Brewery; Richard Jamieaon,’ '
proprietor.

Left-Hand Side.

Benjamin Winch, farmer -
Thomas Purdon, carrier
John Mooney, labourer

John Windom, carpenter
Catherine Macallister,resmdence

‘John Edmonds, labourer

Louig Jenson, builder

.07, Page, bootmaker

Je Jo Drew, tinsmith

Duncan Bros.,wine & spirits’

G» Gibbs, boarding-house -
Frederick Roader, cooper -
S.Christensen,baker, ccnfeetioner W
Day School ~ : '
~ Hubtchison, wine & spirmts
William Guthridge, residence

Wm: Guthridge, Aurora flour mills

.. Donald Mackintosh, residence

Raymond Stree 4, Scuth to North, ngat Hand Side.

Church of England' Archdeacon Stretch, -

ninister
J« Ho Pettit, office
We J. Tricks; accountant S
Office of North Gipp's Land Steamboat
S (ompany
Archxbald ﬁaceachrazn, horse & cattle
© pale yards _
Atkinson & Lees, golicitors
T. Johnson & Co. provision merchants
Gipps!' Land Lakeg Navzgatlon Company’
“office
James ‘W Travers, ‘butchers
Robert Shanklin, cGhemist & druggist
M, Shanklin, seedsman

Mackenzie & Rosg, general store

Bank of Australasia, D.Trail,

- manager

i Robert Topping, saddler, etc.
J. Murray & Co.,clothiers, etc.
" John Hanna, baker

J.W.Cary, hairdresser (corner)
4. J. Shanley, Albion Hotel

‘W.T.Caty, barman, Albion Hotel

Daniel ?‘Icc'hee Y ironmonger ,N:.B «Co ) .

J.F.Liston, Flooding Creek
dispensary

Dr. Hedley's consulting rooms

- - We Hoe Vize, photographer
- Liston & Vize,aerated water manufacturers
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Sale (continued)

Ra. o ‘d Street cont,.).South to No
Right-Hand Side, o

Hargreave,Brennan & Co, storekeepers

Je« O'Brien, baker & confectioner

Michael Campbell, saddler,etc.

Robert Smith, draper :

Sergeant Scanlon, residence

Hen.ry We Stea&, z’eSidencﬁé I‘L;BaCQ

Wesleyan Church, Rev.Henry Balcer,.
minister - -

Carron Timber & Iron Yard, J . Law
and Cos ,proprﬁ.a‘hérs :

Joseph Law, residence o

Dr. Macalister, residence

James Leslie, engineer,blacksmith

John Glass, blacksmith

John Glass, regidence . .

William Hosk:.n, czaxrier

Marcus Lind, carrier -

John Sothern, surveyor

Robert Alexander, residence

Mrs, Carpenter, schoolmistress

Daniel Kennerbry, miner

John Newman, woodsplitter, -

Charles Stuart, candle maker

Dessaily Street. North to South.

Right~Hand Side.
Charles Hanley, carrier -
Thomas Fryer, brickmaker -
Samuel Mitchelson, watchmaker
Dunean MeCole, residence, M.B.C.
William Patten, solicitor
Office of the Liverpool & London &

Globe Insurance Co.,agent Wn.Patten -

John James English, residence
John James,builder & lime merchant
William- ﬂcCole, bu’ccher

Poster Street, Wesi: o Ea.st.
1ggt~Hand Sidg. '

James Macfarlane, labourer .
Samuel Mitchelmore, oarpenter
James Bearpark,coopar,resideme
Thomas White,mail-driver
Williem Larkins,labourer
Robert Roberts, contractor
Edward Hyde, labourer

J.Sewell,horse bazaar & livery stables
D.Fyffa,Royal Exchange Ho‘tel (corner)

Cobb & Co., booking office .:

Richard Mackay, broker,etc. -

William H.Bray, saddler
E.Anderson, watchmsker

John Trood, tobacconist

Office of"Gippslander Express"

John Clements, boot & shoe. maker

FoJeSmith, saddler,etc.

Platshek,Brasch & Co.,drapers,store
Pearson & English, stock & com.agents

JeD.Leeson, watchmaker,stc. -
Daniel Sayer, saddler,etc.
Jas,Davey & Co.,drapers, s*ho:oekpra
Sale Police Station

Town Clerk's Office, open 9 to 3.3. aeme

Town Hall
Council Chambers

James Gerrard, chemist & drug@g_

B Henry Butler, solieitor

Left H Si

Wm.Monger, timber merchant,
residence

Thomas Disher, surveyor

William Collier, residence

David Fyffe,Royal Exchange Hotel

Post Office and Talegraph Office

School "

Church . -

Michael Malphy, Star Hof;el

M Canly; bootmaker . ~

0ffice of"Gipps! Land Times"

H.W.Stead,wine & spirit merchant

W.Bryant, bakery,boarding-house

George Rotherwell, saddler

Henry Hill, cabinet maker

Geo. Wood, boarding-house.stahle

‘Sarah Plough, dressmaker

William Williamson, surveyor
Rosina Johnston,widow,residence
Henxy Beard,comm:xssion agent. :
‘residence o
B.K.Warren, surgeon, accoucheur

" Duncan McCole, irommonger, ebcs

Robert, Gibbs & Co.,blacksmi'&hs,etc.
Lef S:Ld 5

George McKe:cm .

John Stephens, ca:cpenter
Donald MacClean, carpenter
Elizabeth Lovell, laundress
W. T. Puddefort, brick-maker

James Hyam, ‘buildar. S

W.F.Parker, house paintexr,etc.
Henry Francis, bootmaker :
P, Borwardt, tinsmith

James Bearpark, cooper

Left-Hand Side.
Left-Hand Side.

.- Mechanics! Institute: Robert

-Tapping, .secretary

" John Thomson, r«asidence o

He M. Gaol
Court House o
Mackenzie & Ross,store (ccmem)

George French, Club Hotel

W. H. Smith, residence - o
Colin Murray, wine & spirite
W.H.Smith. draper s

John Bland, ironmongex \
National Bank; F. T. Farran
Daniel Leaaon,goldsmth,sewellw
J. Rice, bootmaker

A.H.Kitchen, shceing fﬁrge

John Alliss, cabinet maker

- Bughe, solicitor

Booth and Co., cabinet makers '

..".‘).

LR SO
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&&%*ﬂ%d Side. e
John Kilmartm, Jabourer
Colin Murra;sr, resxdence

- Left-Hand Side: -
R C.{}hurch, ‘Fr. 0'Keane, minister
James Hyme, bricklayer - - -
John Sewell,horse bazaar, resi&enee
William Bray, res:.dence
Henry idanms, boctmaker
Luke Murphy, carrier

Lef’hmﬂw Szde (can‘c.z SRR
James mmn, carr:.er ' T
Charles Hépkins, mariner .
John Hayes, plasterer
Thomas Pmca, bra.cmnaker
Thomas Sedtt, bmckmaker 3
Robert Cambpell, mason .
Robert Green, carrier -
Richard Murrell, sawyer
John Bastlake, carpenter.

George Duncan, msrchant, maidence
Richard Packett,butcher, residence
Bdward Iord, carrier . . .
William Guy Bull, hamassmaker
John “v‘riggleworth, carpenter ‘
Frederick Mallett, carpenter
Ephraim Barber, blacksm:.th, ete.
Emil E. Cary, draper .

James Pelleigo, coach propr:.e’bor

Lef‘tuﬁand sgg,gz
Patrick Brenon,. resideme R
Andrew M.Robertson,: cuntx*actor
David Bisset, residence.
David Bisset, bubcher
James Himell, carrier
We Be Vize, residence:
William Travers, residence

Thompson Street, North to South, Riggtnﬁand Sige.

Gustave Schnexder, timber merchant,res.

Thomas B. Hawkins, carpenter

Boarding & Day School: Mrs, ankins,H.’I‘.

:- Joseph Waters, bricklayer
John Ball, woodsplitter.
Jung Sing, carrier
Boyle Talbot, carrier -~

Patrick Toe:te, carrier

Henry Charleswcrhh, 1abmer
George Cupid, carrier:

William Bamford, butchei .
John Dethong,billiard markar, res.
Rev. Henty Baker, Wesleyan minister
N, W. Thamas, st@makeeper ‘

Thomas Johnsont la.bourer -
John McMaster, miner

John Reid, sawyer

Samuel Diddanes, brickmaker
Stephen -Knight, farmer -
James Jacobs, ﬂarrier e

Lefi-Hand 8 de

Arthur Mackenzie, banker, reszdence
Werner & Klux,.Gipps!-Land Soap and
Candle dorks (cbmer)

| Left-and Side (cont.) ..
James :E'ettet ~builder, et

~Mary Baylen, widow

Anna Henry, residence ..

Daniel Roach, labourer . . .

Charles Gordony “eoachdriver Cor
Richard Andrews, labourser .. . . .
Lancett Smith, miner Lo
John Burns, labourer

Peter McDonald, 1aw3rer

Duncan Mackenzie, carriar

Susan I@‘ormen, wmd&w "
John Inglis, storekeesper, M'B C. -

John Bray, mmer

Daniel Proser, jomex‘

R:Lght»Hand Side 5

James Belcher, carrier
John Hull, carter. S
Mrs. Lonadale, reszdence

‘T"hn Cate, carrier - o
Chavles Ray, carvier, = -

Samuel Foymbee, ed:z.tor '
William Jones, oarpenter o
Sarah Foster, widow :
Albert Mitchell, bootmaker
Mrs. Mitchel, day school °
Robert Geddes, carpenter
James Burton, labcurer.

d Side.

David Ely‘bhe, carrieyr
John McCole, carrier ©
John Doin, gardener

_Frank Newton,. carrier

Robert Glxmn, carrier Lt
Minnie Peck, widow .= = . 00 Dul
_William Anderson, labourer ":. T
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Sguatters: - - SR
William Montgomery,f <P. e Butler oo “James Aitken
Willian' Pearson,M,L.A.,J.P.  Duncan Campbell - John Wilson
Alexander Pearson, J.P. John King Daniel Muldoon .
W. B. Cunningham, J.P. Matthew Macalister Jobn Muldoon
Turnbull & Henderson Isaac Buchanan John Russell

Mary Ann Jones (Fulham) J. Di Smith
Farmers: Bdward Watson; -~ Bates: M. Welchy

Thomas Blacker
Edward Fisher.

— ﬁcIntyre, carrier; -- Weaver,carpenter; Henry Jacobs, carrier;
Captain Slade, residence; Thomas McDowell, storeman

Cunningham Street, West to East, Right-Hand Side.
George Ross, residence.

M. n Rﬂaé from Sale to Stratford.

Right-Hand Side,
Bayles Bros., carriers

Michael Maughen, farmer

Left-Iand Side.,
David Magen, labourer
De Hong, farmer

Robert Bushe, residence.

Left~Hand Side {continu
Daniel Cudey, carrier '
William Hardurge, labourer.
Rev. Father Slinch, residence
Rev., Fr, O'Keane, residence.

Stratford.
Merrick Street, Right-Hand S:.ge.

Mary Bevan, widow .
Dixbn Stieet, Risht-Hand Side.

Thos.F.Bullock, regidence, Registrar
of births,deaths. Vaccinator.
Patrick McL*aughlin’-s ‘bakery

B;gckb S"" ee'%:. R:Lg_lrt»H and Side.

Rebecca Haslet, residence
Daniel Orchard, Bridge Inn
Bull and Sons, saddlers

Iyers Street, Right Hand Side.

John Matthewson, sawyer

Richard Birtles, sawyer

Lloyd Bros., storekeepers

Poat Office; postmaster,’l‘hos.moyd

George Latham, butcher

George Latham, residence

Common School, No. 596; schoolmaster,
John T, H. Bowman

Police Station;:{}onstable Feely

R. C. Church, Rev. Father Shinieh

Left-Hand Side.

Frederick Mi'tchell, hricklayar
Robert Barker, accounte.nt g

Left~-Hand Side.

Richard Galloway, blacksmith
Samuel Swan, residence

Patrick Cahill, shoemaker
Frederick Reeves, carrier .
James Patten, baker

Henry Allinson, shoanaker

Left~Hand Side.

John Reeves, carrier

James Carey, blacksmith

James Linnery, carrier ,
‘John T.H. Bowman, residence.

Main Road - from Stratford to G;;an‘t, Right-Hand Side.

.- George King, saWyer

. ‘John Lee,. accommodation house

.o George Taylor; Stockyaid Hotel

(Junction 01d & New Tracks).
TsJohnson & Co, stables.

(Iguana Creek) . ~
William Murray, acaommadation house
Murdock Mackintosh, storekeéper
Alfred Wilford, stoieman ‘
Richard Marnall,accommodation- hcuse
Richard Gee, accommodation House.
.- George Power, accommodation house.

Prederick Suith, Squirrel Forest :s«zot'al

Henry Cocnbs; . sawyer .
Peter Long, Hotel

Martin Colo,Castle Burns Greek Eatel

John James, carrier

Michael Lambert, labou.mr
(River crossing) -

Government Boat

Alexander Trazll,accemo&atian B:guse

Zerpheus Le Sues, boatman
~William' 'Nicol, Royal. I‘:tail Ha‘bel

John Morgan, carrier..

Nicolo An’kicevieh,mai}. Rest Hotel
Mary Holland, storekeepeér Sl
Daniel Lusk, woodsplitter -~
Patrick McKeénnie,; labourer .. ..
Malcolm McGuinness, restaurant .-
Dennis Connelly, Dargo Hotel
Jungle Creek Quartz Reef: Horatio

Hartley, manager
Fredk., Goss, Spring Hill Hotel- s'bore

Battista Glnla.ni, butcher
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Main Road - from Straf:t‘ard tc Grant, Em’c«-'ﬁand Ss.de gcantlnueal

. Francis Brown, sawyer’
Edward Thomas, Browery Arms Hotel -
Edward Thomas, Alpine Brewery C %ic}izi gz:znegﬁ ;ﬁgi« teacher
G, C. C"g"a”’ carpenter .. o Pish, Star Hotel
g‘gﬁﬁz J‘mﬁ;; gsa‘g’gffc'er . Jemes Enwright, Shamrock Hotel
- ? Thomas Tyrrellg Junction Hotel

T.Johnson & Qm ,aacg}mmadatmns houset. ~ John Mamhall, accommodation house

Frances Crawford,accommodation house . Joseph Hardy, Bulgaback Hotel

Simon Gillis, Iguana Creek - Thos.Francis Ahier, Jungle Hotel

Henry Florance, Lord Howe Inn ©° Thouas Balintine,Junction Hotel.
o ‘ ' GRANT.

Ligar Street, lLeft-Hand Side. S

Richard Dalton, storekeeper H.W, Stead, wing & sp;.r:.ts merchants

Agnes Hopkins, La Serana Hotel Thomas Beech, builder -

Lensea Daget, dressmsker Denald Nicholson, storekeeper o

Charles Hollar, carpenter . Hutchinson,; wine & spimts merchant

Soloman Beech, storekeeper Dr., Matthews, Medical Hall

Lee Brothers, produce store D, Biggs, watchmaker,

Right-Hond Side. . , o
William Lightbound, sawyer Unioh Bakery; 4, Calder & Co.
Kingswell & Beecher, livery stables James Digney, residence

and store - James Digney, blacksmith
Norman Stewart, bootmaker S Harrison & Co,general storekeepers .
W. B. Kampf, geﬂcval stcre o Jeremiah Cannelly, produce store
Frederick Daws, Ro sefers! Hotel Rose and Crown stables ‘
William Fes%e::*y restaurant ’ Jamas Camp, storekeeper .
Dumphy Bros.,storskcepers, etc. . Turnbull Houden & Co.,merchanta '
J. Ramsay, tobacesnist " Bank of N,S.W.,Mr.McCoy, manager =

Francis Martin,Niagara Hotel (corner) J.H:Byles, wrdzxal manufacturer
Thomas Odell,.Cemp Hotel (corner) Left-Hand Side

James Vanston, Grant bakery . .. I . "
, 3 ohn Dcwpaey, Exchange Hc‘bel o
JeF.Turten & Co., bakers Thomas Curran, Royal Mail Hotel

Ryan Brothers, printing office = " a5 o aun cdge, Pioneer Hotel: -
Colonial Bank; lMr. Dobson, manager John Haw‘l‘még A@iéine Hotel .
Thomas Hunter, . share broker . = John H, Thomas, butcher T

S Frankenberg,wine & spirits . . D.Frendenthal, Exhibition House

Post Office; S.Frankenbérg, pi. Alfr

) ' o9 = ed Abrahdm, Rose & Crown Hotel
Wn Armstrong, draper & clothier: T .H.Huelsner: &;’CQ, ,to‘bacccms’cs o
John Thompson, rg,s,z_dence . o

Davies Streef, R‘s ghtmﬁand Sige. .

John Odell, Oneo Restaurant o Henry Bo}qer’taaﬁ, carpenter
H.T.Herberte, wabchmaker, jewelex',etc. John Adams, carpenter ‘
James Futcher, tinswith - -- - oW HiBruckner, cordial manufacturer -

wson Street, Left-Hand SidEn

Dr. Forbes, rﬁszdeﬁce o Gold Mining Company fozces. El Dnrado,
Thomas Tyrrell, J’unc*bmn H:atel Reliama,Britma,Rase of Australia,
Bank of Auvctralasia fﬁ Hibernia,Uncle Tom,Callingwood,Pioneer,
William Kelly ,Victoria Hotel =~ Excelsior,Great Extended - -~
Henry Pope, Mit.Pleasant Hotel M, Smallpage & Co., managers.
Stephen 0'Halloran,Victorian Bakery Joseph Bowen, hairdresser '
William Manuel, blacksmith . Shier & Co, provision'store

White & Co, general store : Thomas Finely, pie shop . o
Peter %Ihite, Albion Hcﬁ:el J.W.Johnzon, medical dispensary .

- Hughes, barrister =~~~ J.W. Hodgson, printer

Je De Emerson, ‘solicitor . G.Te.Jones, mining agent

F. Hadgson, sharebroker DU S'!:ephen ‘Slater, . I‘reemasons‘ ﬁrma Hetal
_ , S " H. Bredet, goneral store . .~

‘ Gggrge Haller, draper,clothier. n
Street; Right-* : .

J. Stubbs & Co., bu"t:chers o Warden®s Office; Wal‘ser Butler,warden
Bank of Victoria;lr.Mackenzie,agent Survey Camp




lorwell Historical Seciety lew
Gertrude Street, Left-fand Side. :
Thomas Odell; Camp Hotel (corner) Arthur Hurley, minew

Watson & Abbott, offices o James Norwood, Collingwood Store
William Adams, Royal Hotel — = James Norwood, Court House Hotel
~-MacDonald, barrister , Charles Living, mining engineer.
Union S’creets R:.ghtwﬁ‘and Side. ‘ Daley Street, Left-Hand Side.
Alfred R.Walker ' surveyor,res;dence - Mendershauzen,Chef National Ho"ael
T«B.Abbott, sharebroker, residence A+ Brockhof, tobacconist
JeGHoWilmot, distriet surveyor James Thomas, miner

Abraham Rebinson, miner Augustus Kennie, miner

Robert Albury, miner

Maffra.
Main Road from Stratford to Wood's Point.
Left-Hand Side. Right-Hend Side (continued)
William Merry, farmer . Camphell & Morrison, storekeepers
arles Horsedale, blacksmith Pogt Office: Wm.Campbell,postmaster
ohn Tate, labourer Office of Registrar of Births,Deaths,
William Silvester, bubcher - eteé,Wm,Canpbell, deputy registrar
James Nelson, blacksmith Patrick Garvey, labourer :
, . William Barnet, labourer
¥, OVia Rightolland Sides Robert Stewart, carpenter
. ra, farmer . D ‘ v
. R X onald McFadyan, shoemaker
W¥illiam B. Crisp, hotel James Gibne eneral storekeeper
Thomas Quirk, woodsplitier William Scazé gbu‘t‘cher per
Thomas Burgoyne, carpenter’ James Gib Macalisk H tel
-~ . James Maxwell; saddler . es ney, Hacalis e? ove *
‘l‘anamba D:Lstmct,
Main Road to Bald Hillg - from Stga‘bfgm g Wood's Point.
Ri. ggu-ﬂand Side a Left-Tand Side.
John Johnson, squatter . L Jchn Williams, farmex
Walter Rose, farmer - Edward Cummins, farmer
John Allerdice, farmer George Davies, farmer
James Clyn, farmer S - Daniel Davies, farmer
John McLoughlin, squatter . == Sylvester, farmer
Martha A.Watts,accommodation house : Daniel Gallagher, farmer
Joseph Halliday, packer John Williamson, jun.,farmer
Jobn Ryan, packer " ' John Williamson,sen.,farmer
Timothy Hogan, packer ‘ , - William Williamson,cattle dealer
Edward Roach, packer © Archibald Williamson, fa.rmer
John Clowes, overseer _ ’ William Allidice, farmer
Daniel Blair, farmer . , Mesbeek Osborne, farmer
Malcolm Macfarlane, farmer ‘ ' -~ Pentridge, farmer -
@dklliam Ferguson, brewer ' William Cross, farmer
James Blair, cattle dealer John Hardy, woodsplitter

Robert Blair, farmer James MeKay, woodsplitter -
Thomas Blair, faimer . . : S : :
William Chester, ea.m‘ier o

)

ormation - Stratford ta e Bald Hills Sea’con.. o

Vewburn Park , the residence of John Johnson,Esq. ,squatter, Whtwe
station is’ bea.u’clmlly situated on the main road from Stratford to Bald Hills.
-+ M. Osborneé,;Esq., farmer. This being the last house on the left hand
to Bald Hills; and there being a plentiful supply of good water, it is well
worth a visit from any traveller to Bald Hills,Stringer's or Domnelly's Creeks.

BalQ Hills.

informetions COurt House, held once a month, W.H. B‘natar,Esqo,Pohce
Magistrate, Robert W.Firebrace,J.P.; residence, Heyfield.

James Quinlan, Clerk to the Police Couxt or ?Bench.

- Warden's Court, about to be erected. ’ -

Police Station, Tyers Street. Constable Harris in charge, and -
he is also Inspector of Slaughter Yards. Lt
Bald Hills Prospecting G.M,Co.,Ltd,formed July,23rd. E&ana er, Reber*t Kmx., ,
Prospectors, George O'Malley and James Johnson. - »

Bald Hills Racecourse. Situated 3;}; miles from tewnssh:s.p, Boxing Day Raees.
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Butler Str mgg'h Ri M@Manﬁ Sidﬁe

. Bald Hil}.s Scontinued}gj :

Office of Reglstrar of Births and deaths; Bezmty Regis*i‘rar, C, Rumpff .

Post Office; open

8 8.m. Lo 8 p.m. Postmaster, C.Rumpff; Sor“be*r, James Bmwne..

Txegs Streef;, ghm««ﬁdnd

Ma.r’c:n.n Fox, &az.xyman, e*ac -
John Griffiths, miner. .

T;g;ex's Street, mftmﬁand.

-Court House

Police Station; Constable Harris

Qute S‘treet, R*s a”wtm}lam:‘., S;x_,ge.

Gibson & Knox, fajm&:

Thomas Gleeson, blacksm:.th ;
C. Rumpff, general storekeeper
Patrick Lyons, baker

George Powel, packer
Thos.Kenevan & Jas Burley,packers
Henry Guthrie, packer

John Wilson,general starekeeper
Charles Horne, sawyer

Thomas Dargan, carpenter
‘DaCrockett btewart ,carpenter

Janess Pendlebury,sharebroker, res. '

James Wright, Chef de Cusine
Robert Martin, miner

John Henrick, bullock driver
Edward Martin, Back Creek Hotel

" William Dolan, packer

John Byrne, storekeeper
Thos.Gleeson, blaclsmith & residence
John Taylor; packer -

Thomas Powel, packer

George O'Malley, prospector

James Johnson, prospector =

Butler Street, B:wzgwhanﬁ. Sz.da=

John Byrne,stovskeeper (corner) .
William Dolan, packer (corner)

Henxy J. Hayes, buicher.

John J. Clarke, nail contractor
Ferguson Wallace, mail driver

Pgter Clement, packer »
Henry Davies, starakeeper,“ﬁsidence _

Butler Street, Lefi-Hand Side.

Post Office, Open 8 &.m.~ 8 pm (corner)

CoRumpff, general storekeeper
James Brown, letter sorter
William Fennon, storeman
Edward ilartin, Back Creek Hotel
Henry Davies, gzneral storekeeper
Charles Marshall,boarding house

- Pa’cr::.clc Bryan, bushman

Main Road from Bald H:L}.lf% to § ringer's Creek, Rg@tmﬁand Side.

Bridget Rome, Mt. Pleasant House
William Dudman, Poiat View Hotel
(New track to Stringeris Creek,one

George Steady, mining engineer
William Dudner, prospector
John Jones, prospector ;

mile above the hotel)

R o 'g.*gg' gr’s CI‘S-“;_,_
_I_sﬁ rmations ..o .
William. Gardner ,Mq.,a‘ P.,' B.T.Barnard, Esq.,warden
Two troopers ab .Police Station: Escort leaves aboul once a month.
Bank. of Victoria; D.B.Little, agent.,
Ferdinand Duval, postmaster, P.0. open from 8 a.m. to 7 pe.m. The mails
leave every Tuesday at 10 &.m.,for Melbourne, Rosedale, Sale, Talbot,

Bald H:;.lls, Donnelly's Creek, Wood's Point, and C:moked River.

Mails ar

Ve every ﬁonday, e:t 4 Pollo

Main Streetg. Lafuuﬁaml. nge.

Elgie Chance; Huberi Florance,miners
John Bennett; John Humphrey, miners
Christian Christianson, baker
William E. Ball, Anchor Brewery
Laurence Lynch; James Sldaden,miners
‘George Rawson; Thomas Reddish,miners

Francis Carter; John Wllliams,miners_ )

John Bo}.ton, miner
* John Thompson, baker
Richard Smart, bootmaker
Harlow Nickes, musician
Cornelius Murphy,Shamrock Hotel
Bell & Rigby; chemists & druggu.sts
- Thomas Newson, buicher :
James Rice, brewer
Mark Rice, miner
John Jones, blacksmith
Daniel Meikell, miner
Thomas Coz, hotel

'Be.nk cf Vlctor:n.a' agent D.B. Ls.dell

Dr. Hadden M.D.,residence
William Callow, storekeeper

Donald Martin, miner

Power Murray, miner
- Samuel Steers, miner .

Samiel Carver, Exchange Hotel
Post Office;postmaster, Mr.Duval
Roberts & Duvall, storekeepers
Thomas Gad, storeman '

Samuel Tédylor, mine manager,res.
Bdward Jones, Reefers' Arms Hotel

" D. B. Smith, butcher

Frederick Smith, miner
Richard Glee, minex
Charles Annis, miner
‘Roderick licKenzie, miner
Charles Brooks, miner
"Abraham Buckley, miner
- Jemes Rogers, miner -
‘ .}‘oseph Hall; Phxli;: Beck minerm
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Main Stvee't R»@'ht Hend Side.

Dav;\.d Hugnes Jahn Bines, miners )
Thomes Garner, miner .
William Garner,. harebromr
Arthur Mathiscn, miner .
Cornelius 0Donnell, mner
Henry ., Clam, miner _
William f;‘mmd, csarpenber
Charles I L;c:, niner
Cosmopolitan Jotel stables
Chasg.Peterson, Cos*ncpahtan Eotel’
‘John Wilson, miner . 7
James Rice, general utomlxeeper :
Christian Cabalzer, boo‘bmalfer
Henry Rosales,mine engineer,res.
Walhalla Gold Finmg Company ;
Henry Roc ales,manager..
William Hughe,a, uiner
John Carbery, miner
John Lawley;Azthur R&ce,minez's

John Yine, sen;John Kine Jun.,miners

Richard Elliott, baker
George Clough, coachmalker
Exchange Hotel stables
Sam.B.Hester,Cyclops Forge
Richard Read;Hy Vickery, miners
Robt.Blaikie;Jchn Podesta,miners
Jas, HillsFredk.Steven, miners
South Girps' Land Quartz Gold
Mining Coj;manager;,San.Taylor
William Richardson, engine driver

John Cr:x.bbms, riner i .

Informa.t:mm . ; ,"w ne Lanagers :

John Haywood, engineer
Jas.Peterson;Thos.Patterson,miners
Peter Browm; Henry Hansford, miners
James Oghill, miner
Alpine Quartz Gold Mining Coj;

P.H. Mchrdell, manager
Wn.Ogden Porter, general manager -
Alfred Morrissy, miner
Edward Rapel, shareholder
Peter Holmes, cook
Francis Lowry, shareholder
Bernard Flinn; Wm&allagher,mners
John Allen, miner
Neptune Quartz Gold Mining Go. :
Joseph. Hall, blacksmith
Jas. Phelp; Thos Power, miners.
Kloppmann S
Police Station; two troopers; -

Lock-up keeper, Cons.Jas., Irwin
Thos. Rosg; John Kennedy, miners
Morris Lynch; Joh:n Daly, miners

Wn.Thompson; Richard Norris, miners

Edward Trenand;lawrence Tait, miners
John Curran, bushman

WmeLeary; John Leary, miners .
Wm. Dowett; Mitchell :selleon,miners' '
Jas. Grant; Gostey Kenerch, mlners
John Tanger, miner

George Topley, miner

oo

JoCod Jehman.w Stringer's C“"%k: Quartz Gold-iining Company R S
:  The Walhalla Gold-Mining Company L W
Saxmel Taylors. «oThe Thistle Quartz Gold-Mining Company
South Gipps?-Land’ Quartz«-«(}mshlng Compary
W}.llla;m Gardnf‘*r.- The ' Long Tunnel Gold-Mining Company
" Golden Fleece Gold-lMining Company

P.H Vehrdell ard.
WmeJ.Ogen Porter...AL

Ho.6 Nox \.h Cehen’s Reei‘mout—lno-Scmp Quart z«-Mining Cos

pine: Que.r‘s z~Crushing Coupany -

(Not €ivon).esescssThe Neptune Quarts Gold«"ﬁim.ng Company .

I:.L_nmr:.@:m

1. Offiace of 'hhe Lil 1376.&1@ Amalgamated Quartz Gol&-l&.mmg Oompany. :

Menager, Alfred Lee.

James Austin, miner; residence

2. Pest-{!‘?f:;.c&.«» ‘Postmaster, ‘Bdward Alexander; open 7 a.n, to 8 pam. :
Mails arrive from Stringer's Creek, Rosedale and other post tm«ms
on londays at 10.a.m. For Stringer's Creek, Roseda‘!_e, and other :
towns, post closes at:10:'asm, and leaves at 1l-acm, o
3« The Happy-Go-lucky Gold-Mining Co.; manager, Joseph Coates.
4. Castle Rosso Quartz Gold-Mining Company
5. Homeward Bound No.2 North-Zast Happy-Go-Lucky Quar‘bz Croldwhmmg Gompany,
pmpmeﬁors, John Hall and Co. '
6. Extenswe C{mcert and Ball Room, adjoining the Meum‘:a..n Qusen Hatel. Thw ,
roon is ' for the purpuse of holding meetings for the benefit of miners
- and other local bodies, etc. : :
7. The Happy-Go-Lucky Quartz Prospectwg, Company. »
8 Cogpa:’* Mines. Temporary manager, William Peaz‘sen,}?.sq., J Pos M.L.A.

Main Read fmm Hanww(}o-l;uckv 40 .Toongabbie o : :_"'., o S
Carpenter's Bridge, erected 1864 -
Thomas H. Mark, restaurant L

The Sprinws.,
Thomas Colexnan, Halfuwa.y chse
(Junct'l en of ’i"he two roaﬂ.s 't:o otrmge‘sx’s Creek} Fredkﬁhemaod accemmo&atwn.

Thomas H. Mark, engineer, residence
John Duff, accommoglatmx; house.




y=Go=Lucky

cont inued

Main Street ~ From Stringer‘s Creek, mt—ﬁand Side.

Francis Clarke, accommodation house,

Stockyard Hill
Joseph Taylor;John Braggs, miners

John Andrews;Thomas Griffiths, miners

James Austen, miner, residence

Office, Lillydale Amalgamated C0.;
manager, Alfred Lee

Edwin Bond, boarding-house

John Graham’s hotel & stables

Edwin Bond, butcher

John Graham, Mountain Queen Hotel

Post Office; postmaster, Edward

Llexander

Edward Alexander, general store

John Hall, baker and miner

Henry Hayes;Patrick McAntee, miners

Mansell Allev, general storekeeper

Thomas P. Lee, miner ‘

Frederick Sherwood, carrier

Frederick Sherwond's stables

John Graham Deakin, general store

John J.KingiThos. Cameron, miners

i

Robert Kinder;Wm. Hookway, miners
Hy. MeGlond; Geo. Baliny, miners
John Finch, miner

The Happy-Go-Lucky Mining Co.;

- manager, Joseph Coates .
Castle Rosso Quartz Mining Co.
John Hopgood;Wm.Fenwick, miners
Those. Ernna; Thos., Connor, miners
John & Wm. Hetherington, miners
Michael Hickey;Edmund Reese,miners
John Murphy;Michael McKearney,miners
David Connelly, miner
Office, Happy=-Go-Lucky Prospecting

Company
Joseph Coates, mine manager, res.
Noe2 North-fast Happy-Go-Lucky;
proprietors, John Hall & Co
Henry Baller, plumber & glazier
Charles Travis, miner
James Attwood, butcher

Main Street, Left-Hand Side.’

Martin Ryan; Wm. Tait, miners
John Scarf, miner

Thomas Morris, butcher

George Nash; George Lewis, miners
Patrick McKennaj;John Carr, miners
Joseph Finch; John Merret, miners
Robert Parrott. miner

George Meekin, engine-driver
William Black, sawyer

Joseph Claxrik,cordial manufacturer
Charles Spearing, miner

Richard Donohu, miner

William Davis, Cafe Cusine

David HudsonjRichard Gordon,miners
George Bear; Walter Lyons, miners
George Jamison, sawyer

Peter Ashton; James Edger, miners
Chas. Wood; John Dobshere, miners

Alexander Stewart, miner

Isasc Wilson, engine-driver

Geo. Charleswood;Wm.Barnes,miners
Alex. Stewart; Wm. Fermen, miners
John Smith; James Smith, miners
James Pack; James Ake, miners
Wme Smith; John Jenkins, miners
Thomas White; Jas. Henning,miners .
William Moore, carpenter

John C. Kempble, miner

Henry Penifold, boardz.ngnhouse

- David Taylor, blacksmith
‘John C.White; George Lewis,miners
-Cousin Tom; George Graham, miners

John Staples, miner T~
Copper mines .

Henry Irson; Lockhart Morton;.
. Joames Day; George Cragg.

Main Street

Right-Hand Side
Dominick Campbell, bullock driver
Matthew Brown, bushman '
Edward Maddocks, miner
George Jones, bushman
William McAlpine, packer

George Clift; Hugh' Ba:i.ley, packers

Philip Horton, butcher

Henry Whittle, restaurant, packer
Margery Fowkes, packer

Samuel Parker, miner . ’
Alfred Hollingsworth,carpenter
Henry Taylor, bushman

William Cadden, storeman
Benjamin P, Cadden, general store
Alexander White, carpenter
William H. Ostler, residence
McDonald's Diggers' Rest Inn

Main Road to Rosedale

Frederick VWise, residence
Edward Winden, sawyer

Right-Hand Side !, cg_xﬁ;gge@)

James Thompson, packer

Robert Oats, barman and cusine
Samuel Tanner;Chas.Coleman, packers
Fredk,Wise; Thos. Driver, sawyers .
Janes Fenned, sawyer

James Bruce, prospector

John R. Magendie, packer

.John Chapey, sawyer

Police Station. Survey Caump.

Left-Hand Side.
Dennis 0'Brien, shareholder,packer

- Jerome, shareholder, packer
James Caskie, carpenter
Chas.Walker; Ben. Hill, blacksmths

. Jonathan Bassett, storekeeper

Andrew Elliott; John Cowen; Thos.Clark;
Geo, Cliff; Richard Cliff, packers
Andrew Moudie, carpenter -
Thos.Lloyd; Joseph & John Lucas; -

. William Iucas, packers

Charles Cuting, accommod,atiozi house.
Thomas Coleman, Half-u.ay Eouse

(Junction of the two roads to Rosedale and Sale.)




-

.

Raaedale. o

Prince Street.

Police Station: Constable and Lock~up Keeper, John G*Conno:r o

Lyons Street ht-Hand Side

Glengarie Bridge, erected 1861
Glengarie River

Henry Luke, Royal Hotel
John Williams, draper, etc
John Williams, residence

- George Rintoul, blacksmith
" William Rintoul, blacksmith
James Cowell, farmer
William Vatts, farmer

Lyons Street, Left-Hand Si —
Je Gi Deakin, general atcrekseg&r

" James Widdison, farmer

Paul Cansick, Rosedale Hotel::
Rosedale Hotel stables = = - -
Joseph Butterworth, stables . -
Michael Cavanagh, packexr

Janes Cowell, packer

Prince Street, Right-Hand Side.
Henry Luke, Royal Hotel (corner)
Police Station; Constable O'Connor
- Coalgate, carpenter

Robert Robinson, saddler

Poa Nine, Rosedale Bakery

Robert R. Duke, packer

Thomas Williams,. sawyer

Henxy R,in’coull, bushman

Prince S‘treet, Lef'buﬁggﬁ Sxdgg

Post Office; H@m:y Luke,posﬁmastex

Henry Luke, general storekeeper

. John C. Linney,. draper, etc.

- Prince Street, Left-Hand Side (cont

John Wait, carrier

Henry Powell, butcher

Robert Crane, carrier

Edward L. Simmons,M.D., surgery
Common School,No.770; J.C.Gregory.
head-teacher; Mrs.Cavanagh (3&‘ }E.S
Mechanics! Institute. N
Thomas Tims, carrier - ..

John Prazer, wheelwrigh’c

Charles Chowmn, bricklaysr,

Henry Philips, bushman - -
Charled Col&ms, bushmen -

Off Prince Street,m ;@gz

HMrs. Hickey, widow ;
William Vinceﬁt, shoemaker -

Left Sidg.
George Rintoull, residence

0ff Prince Street.Left-Side (conts
Enoch Porch, sawyer R
William Allen, carpenter =~ -~ ~
William Moore, ‘carpenter ‘

" Timothy Hogan, residence.

~lgeatterod.

Mrs. Were, residence

John Meloughlin, carpenter
John Cairns, bushman
Joseph Farley, bushman ‘
William Munday, butcher
-- Sunderman, contractor
John MelMahon, carrier
John Sproule, farmer - . .

"~ Alexander Allen, sawyer

Thomas Curran, bushman

-- Hunter, carpenter

Geo. Smith; Wm.Crighton, bushmen
George Ross, baotmaker . .
Thomag Cocks, bushman.

Jéhﬁ'iiﬂickéy, carrier .
- Charles Cullin, bushman
William Hilliard, carrier . -

Willian Yates, bushman

John Rowley, carrier

Thomas Rintoul, packer:

Albert Beard;Edward Hanﬁon,carriers
Robert Stanley, farmer -

" 'Charlés Valker, farmer

Jas. Davidson, farmer, carrier

" Jag. Rintoul; Philip Howe, farmers

Hdward Simns ,'MQVD. ’an; ,reﬂidme
Joseph Baines, -accommodation house’
Robert Lethbridge, catile dealer

Information agout gg Qg},g,

Thomas Dickson, overseer.

liechanics! ,Institute Prince St., sec..John C.Linney; Treas..John Williams. -

Common School, Pr:ince St. Schoolmaster,

JeA.Gregory; W ormnistress ' ?irs .Ca?ana@

Secretary & Treasurer, ..Robert Lethbmdga. C
Trustees..John MeMahon, William Allen, Edward Simmans, George Rintoul},
~ - James Rintoull, James Robertson
Church Services every alternate Surday..Rev.W.J.Login; Rev.i} D, Macartney
Rosedale Cemetery situated on the main road to Ta:r::e:'a.\z':i.l}ge‘.r : 4
Cricket Club Ground, centre of the township :
Rosedale Racecourse, on the main road to Tamaville, Races held, aning Day;

Justices of the Pe%g

Donald lMeleod; i
Court of Petty Sessions Held monthly;

BEdward Simmons, M.D.,John Turnbull -
W.HeFoster, Police Iﬁagistra‘&;e, oL

Richard Quinlan, Clerk to Petty Sessions

blic Vaccinator; Z.L.Simmons, M.D.

Post Office: Mails depart for Melbourne,lMoe,and Tarralgon, da::.ly, 6 p.m.,

Sunday excepted; for Sale,daily (nondays excepted);

for Port Albert, g&eki&.

Mails are due at Rosedale from -main road centres,. daily, at midnights - -
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Main- Road: from Rnsedale to ‘l‘arramlle s B

Right-Hand Side.

Robert Lethbridge, Esq., Sydney. Cottage o

John Stacy, head-gardener
James Borain, stock-driver

Left-Hand S; de.

Merton Station o
.. BEdward W. Bayliss, squatter
Janesg. Davies, stockrider
James Glynn, stockrider

Merriman's Creek Brzdge, bua.i‘t i865

Merton. L

Williams! stable.,

Richard W:.llmame,herriman's Gx-k Hcmse
Thomas He. Barker, Chef de Cusine:
William A.Sheppard, bushman :
Isaac Lear, accommodation house

Bruthen.

Chas. Thos. Lucas, accamndation
house

Bruthen Bridge, erected .emguat, 1865
August, 1865

Bruthen C‘reak

m Road fronm Tarrav:«.llg to gé;am ,_Y_aram Rig;;t«ﬁand S'tge»

Jessie Nelsan, Modgate Park:
John Bayley Henderson, engineer

George French, carrier
. John Wallworth, carpenter.

Victoria Reserve, Right-Hand Side.

William Pepper, residence
William Harris, storekeeper
A, Palsey,Esq., residence - -
John Amey, residence .

Joseph Whitworth, labourer’
James Gregory, labourer -
Francis Cawiey, labourer
John Taylor, labourer

Jacob Martin, labourer

Wme & H.F. McLoud, farmers
W.E.Egan; John Dunn, farmers
John Smith, bostmaker

Alberton

Victoria Reserve, Left-Hand Side.
Neil Cristinson, storekeeper
Pogt-Office; pos%master,i&r.ﬁristinsan
John Mackenzie, farmer

John Armstmng, meéchanic

John Stone, residence

Andrew VMiller, farmer .

Thomas Johnston, brickmaker

"Henxy Wilks, labourer

John 0'Neil, farmer

Thomas Runey, farmer - o
George Colliss, beerhouse keeper :
Patrick Lynch, farmer

Information about Alberton.

Police Station. Police Barracks.

CuJ.Tyers,Esq, P.M.
Church of England; Rev. Mr. Stretch, minister

Edwaxd Hard.?rick,‘ solicitor

Common School, William Pepper, ‘schoolmaster,

Main Road from Albgrt___o_z_l_ g Xaram Yaram, Left~Hand Side.

Henry Hutch:x.son, gardener
Robert ]iiyme, farmer
E. Newton, Esq. - ‘
Simon Crouch labaurer :

Captain Slade, supenntendent of
police, residence

John Reilly, shoemaker

Samuel Buckley, farmer

Right-Hand Sida -

James Slater, carrier @ :
Richard Hiho; Edward Fox, famers
John Doherty, farmer
David Williams; Hy. Hobsnn,bushmen
Wme Scott; Wm.Wilton, farmers
Jeremiah Regan, carrier 3
Gedrge Huntingdon, labourer
" Common "School, No. 693, :

....schoolmaster, W. He Mason

Left-Hand Side. :
William Milton, farmer - . « o

Henry Eastway, bushman-. ‘
Richard Goss; Jas.Read, farmers
John May; Thos.--Duke, farmers
William Foy, Yaram Hotel
Chas,.Hawkins; Chas.Wood, farmers
Henry Allridge, wheelwright -
Mrs. Bally, widow

John -Thomas Bally, .farmer

. ‘Charles Vox, farmer -

Yaram Yaram,

Left-Hand Side {continued) ;
Wm.,Jeff; Sam. Rendell, farmers
Samuel Rendell, carpenter .

Common School

" Thowas Barlow, mailman

Charles Devonshire, garderner

- ..Post-Office, Jas. Colliss,postmaster
. 0ffice,. Lonclon &. I:ancashim Fiz‘e

- and Life Conmpany

B.P.Crompton, storekeeper.
Thomas Wilson, carpenter

John Clark, wheehrri.g};t

' John Morris, sawyer
Abraham Bland, storekeeper = . -
.John CGarpeunter, reszd.ance v' ’ g

John Carpenter, farmer

John Carpenter,flour. & saw mills
~ Robert Parott, bushman

Catherine Wilson, widow - ..
Samuel Wilsen, carrier

. Francis YWood, farmer _ e
- A B"dman: Trenton Valle‘y Statwn.

William Mason, shoemaker




Rz.ggt»Hand Sidg;
Willian Woodhouse,; farmer
George Pearl, gardener
James Rogs, farmer =
William Nairn, farmer
John Casholt, brickmaker
James Mulroy, labourer
Jobhn Hutchison, stonemason
John Nolan, coachman
Griffith Griffith, painter
Willian Jardine, labourer
Thomas Farris, . brm]maker
Marks?® w*ﬁ"s;a.ges

Left-Hend Side.
Captain Kelsall, residence
Robert Ewen, market gardener
Port Albert General Cemetery;
secretary, Mr. Kelly
Ee Fo Tyers,P.M., residence
David James, fisherman : ~
William James, clerk, reai&sma :
Matthew Goy, carpenter et
~-= Justice, carpenter:
ReB.B.0,. Fro&t, residence
James Rogers, carrier
Marks'! cottages

" Main Road from Rosedale to Melbourne.

Bengamm Taylam, farmer

Tar ;&gg

FeFeTurnbull, squatter, residence
Police Station; Trooper Wm, Smyth
Willian Vesper, carrier . .
John Whaley, ostler

Samuel Bradley, mbuurar

William Buntine, cattle amvem

Duncan Campbell,squatter, Hotel
Pogt-0ffice, open 9 a.m. 0 8 peme

. Postmaster, Duncan Campbell
William Noble, letter-sorter

Duncan Campbell,general storekeeper

Moe, or Westbury

Henry Millar, Retreat Hotel

- Post O0ffice; Postmaster, Henry Milla.r

(Moe Bridge, erected 3.865)
~=- Janno, Diggers' Rest Hotel

Ha, Road cont inued

Daniel O*Brien, Limerick Arms Hotel

Daniel Connor, farmer

Michael Bourke, Latrobe Hotel ‘

Pogt-0ffice; Pm.,HMichael Bourke
(Latrohe Bridge, erected .1856)

James Gates, Cranbourne

Jacob Dragesitaz, Red Hill

William Bourke, labourer .

Mrs.J.Bovman, Gipps'! Land Hotel
(Pakenham Bridge,erected 1865)

James Craik, gardener

Abel Pearce, labourer

John Randall, labourer

William Stenner, carpenter
Robert Richaxrdson, labourer
William Kirwin, "dairyman

John Ginty, dairymen

Charles Gowan, labourer

James H., Smith, labourer \
W. & H. Brisbane, store}s:eepam
W. Tiernan, shoemaker .
Ralph Brunt; WmeBrown, farmers
Thomas Davidson, farmer
Office, Berwick Road Board
Presbyterian Church; Reve = Duff
Wesleyen Chapel

Robert Gran‘h, wheél‘wrigh‘t

B mi(&&k

Thomas Eggleton, miller

. == Thompson, carpenter
Samuel Cant, labourer

Richard Stevenson, M,D.

‘Henry Searle, blacksmith .
_ George Bangray, storekeeper

Gilbert Irwin, storekeeper

. Michael 0'Brien, labourer

George Miller, farmer

. William Burrows, brickmaker

Post Office; Pm.,Robert Bain
Robert Bain, Border Hotel

Henry Wilson, Berwick Hotel

~= Elwin, farmer .

Andrew Reaves;Michael Frawly,famers

Michael Hennessy, Eummering Hotel

William ‘Bartl‘ett ’

John Baker, coachman

John Hender, resz.clenoe
Mrs, Martin, widow _
John Hemam:mgs, carpenter -
Alfred Hemmings, schoolmaster — .

E. D. Ellis, general’ stox’ekeeper R

P. Harlstone, miller

Church of England =

Samuel Rudduck, storekeeper
C. Hewitt's booking office
Dandenong toll-gate; M.’ Haway
Thomaa Wx.lson, 1ahourer C

_ ThosMarr; - Walton, farmers.

" pandenong. N AT
. "7 Alex. W. Bowman, Bridge Hotel

J. Dunbar, Dandenong Hotel

Jafhes Greaves, butcher . o
Thos.Anderson;John Strange, minera
Thomas Gatland, baker,etc.

F. Anderson, whip manufacturer . - -
Sydney Smithson, merchant ,gcldhroker; .

. Post Office; postmaster, H. Babson o
' Presbyterian Church; Rev. H;‘. Mare. .-

William Potter, butcher «

Edward Nichols, harness maker
Geo.Dick; Gregomr Keiglag,boatmakwa
Robert Xidd, blacksmith
David Pope, residence. '
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Spring Vale.

James Coates, Syring Vale Hotel Post~0ffice, postmaster, Jas. Coates
Janmes Coates, storekeeper Wellington Church

, Qakleigh _ ‘
Thomas Irwin, Mulgrave Arms Hotel WmoBraithwaite, Foresters! Arms Hotel,
Toll-Gate; colliector,Daniel Iredale and store
Robert Barben, Oskleigh Hotel o Wesleyan Church ‘
T. Jones, butcher Thomas Bishop, wheelwright: _
Je« Anmand, baker James Barr, clerk to petty sessionﬁ :
Henry Dikinan, storekeeper ~~ Darlow, squatter
Ge Hunt, storekeeper Charles Benson, residence

Francis Doran, storckeeper ' C. Martin, M.D.,public vaccinator
: Peter A.King,Racecourse Hotel.

Main Road (continued).

Thomas Irwin, Mulgrave Arms Hotel Peers! lielbourne Hunt Hotel
Ellen Westwood, Royal Hotel e

- Mail Arrangaments for Rosedale.

The Directory gives full détails of the mail arrangements for Rosedale
in 1866, as set out by the postmaster at thai: tme, Henry luke, - -

Departures from Rosedale:

Por Melbourne, loe, and Tmalgon, &amly at 6 p.n.,Sunday excepted -
For Stringer's Creek and Happy-Go--Lucky, (via Toonga‘obleg, on ‘
Monday,at 6.peme . .

For Donnelly's Creek and Edwards' Creek, Bald Ihlls, and Heyfield
Bridge (loose bag), on Mondays, Thursdays,and Saturdays, at 9 a.m.

For Sale, daily (lMonday excepted ot midnight; and Tuesdays,
‘Thursdays, and Sundays, at 9 a.m.

For Porté Albert and Tarraville, on 6undays, a‘b 6 a,m. '

Arrivals at Rasedale ]

From Melbournc, loe, Tarralgon, daily " (excep‘c ﬂondays) at midnight.
From Str:mge ¥s Creek, and Happy-Go-Lucky {via Toongabbie) on
Tuesdays, at 6,30 p.i.
From Dsnnel}.y?s Creek, Edwards' Reef, Bald Hills, and Heyfield Brxdge ’
(loose bag); on Tuesdays, Fridays, and Sundays, at 9 Bells
From Sale, daily (Sundays ekcepted) at 9 a,m, -
From Pnr%: aAlbert.and Tarraville, on Saturdays, at 4 Pells

F:mal Comments.

A little ccnsmderation inclines us to believe that th:.s Bz.x‘ectory is
not all-inclusive, and that it would not be wise to assume that there were
no settlers ir other parts, such as the Bairnsdale area, or in Snu‘ch Gippsland,
other than the Port Albert district.

And why is there no mention of Liorwell Bridge, and Pei:er Jeremiah
Smith's hotel there, or “the occupiers of Hazelwood utatmn and Imryvale
Station?

‘Ke‘smr’chel ess, the Dircctory is a most valuable record, and to read
such names as Fermaner and Belcher in the Pt.Albert area; C. Rumpff and
Robert Gibson at Bald Hills (or Seaton); Henry Rosales and Dr, Hadden at
Stringer's Creek (Walhalla) end meny others, is like meeting 0ld friemis
again, e

Da.ffez'en“t readers W:.'i}. pwk out different names, but few,perhaps,
will notice, in the Tarraville list, (Reeves S‘breet), "®, W. Crossley, imn-
monger', the father of one of nuswralla’s famous singers, Ada Crossley.

And . can the entry "e Darlow" under Oakleigh, liain Road, refer to
James Monkton Darlot, the squatter who was first to settle in the Horsham -
areay: and who, mdeed, gave the name of "Horsham" +to that 1it*tle village, °
about 1847. He occupied Brighton Station, which included Horsham in its

boundaries, from 1843 to 1852, and then returned to the F‘el‘boume area, dying

in Brighton, lelbourne,. in 1903, at the age of 91,

One more comment on the casual spelling of names. The constable at
Rosedale has his name spelt "0*Connor" and "O'Conner". And surely, Rev. E‘r.
Slinch, and Rev. Tr, Sln.m.ch at Stratford, are the same man. v

——



